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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to fully appreciate our prospects and take informed investment decisions. This report and 
other statements - written and oral - that we periodically make, contain forward-looking statements that set our anticipated results based on management plans and assumptions. 
We have tried, where possible, to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’, ‘expect’, ‘project’, ‘intend’, ‘plan’, ‘believe’, and words of similar substance in connection 
with any discussion of future performance.

We cannot, of course, guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we have been prudent in our assumptions. Achievement of results 
is subject to risks, uncertainties, and potentially inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove 
inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated, or projected. Readers should bear this in mind. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any 
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.
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Directors’ Report
To,
The Shareholders,

Presentation on the 91st Annual Report highlighting the business and operations of the Company on a standalone basis and the audited financial statements 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

Pursuant to the Order dated 6th April, 2021 of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad (“NCLT Order”), Corporate Insolvency Resolution 
Process (“CIR Process”) has been initiated against the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, (“Code”) and 
related rules and regulations issued thereunder with effect from 6th April, 2021 (Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process Commencement Date). Mr. Pinakin 
Shah has been appointed as Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) in terms of the NCLT Order.

The powers of Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended effective from the CIR Process commencement date and such powers along with the 
management of affairs of the Company are vested with the IRP in accordance with the provisions of Section 17 and 23 of the Insolvency Code read with 
Regulation 15(2A) & (2B) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing 
Regulations”).

Financial highlights

The Financial highlights of the Company, on standalone basis, for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 is summarised below:
			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Gross turnover 3126.50 1689.15
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation, Finance Cost, Exceptional Items and Tax 507.05 201.34
Less: Depreciation 262.31 281.75
Less: Finance costs 812.04 794.92
Profit/(Loss) before tax and Exceptional Items (567.30) (875.33)
Less: Exceptional Items - 426.64
Profit/(Loss) before tax (567.30) (1301.97)
Less: Provision for taxation – Current tax - -
         Provision for taxation – Earlier year - (0.15)
         Deferred tax - -
Profit/(Loss) after tax (567.30) (1301.82)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (567.30) (1301.82)

Financial performance

Fiscal 2021-22 was moderate year for the Company as reflected in the financials. Your Company reported 85.09% increase in gross sales from ₹ 1689.15 crore 
in 2020-21 to ₹ 3126.50 crore in 2021-22.     

EBIDTA increased to ₹ 507.05 crore in 2021-22 from ₹ 201.34  crore in 2020-21. Net loss for the year is ₹ 567.30 against the previous year’s loss of ₹ 1301.82 
crores. The earnings per share (face value of ₹ 1) stood at ₹ (9.47) (basic) and ₹ (9.47) (diluted) for 2021-22 against ₹ (21.88) (basic) and ₹ (21.88) (diluted) for 
2020-21. 

Transfer to Reserves 

The Company has not transferred any amount to the general reserve during the current financial year.

Dividend

As your Company is under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Company has not recommended dividend on the equity shares of the Company 
for the Financial Year 2021-22. 

Dividend Distribution Policy

Pursuant to Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”) the Company has formulated its 
Distribution Policy and the same has been uploaded on the website of the Company which can be accessed at http://sintex.in/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/
Dividend_Distribution_Policy.pdf

Share Capital

During the year, the Company has not issued any shares on exercise of conversion by the FCCBs holder. As at 31st March, 2022, FCCBs worth US$ 6.50 million 
(of the US$ 110 million FCCB issue) were outstanding for conversion into equity shares. 

The Company’s paid-up Equity Share Capital continues to stand at ₹ 59,92,17,962/- divided into 59,92,17,962 equity shares of ₹ 1/- each as on 31st March, 2022.
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Fixed deposits

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
there under.

State of Company’s affairs

Sintex is a respected name in the textile industry in India. The Company is engaged into the cotton and 100% wet linen yarn manufacturing. It produces 
premium quality compact and specialized blended yarns. The high-quality yarn has been widely accepted by weavers, knitters, composite textile mills and large 
buying houses who are working for brands in India and in across the globe.

The Company is continuously monitoring the Covid situation & accordingly managing the operations of the Company. The Company plant was operational for 
whole year including period of 2nd & 3rd wave of Covid 19 by taking precautionary steps. Further, during first quarter ended 30th June 2021, there is severe 
damage at our factory plant situated at Taluka Jafarabad, Lunsapur, Amreli, Gujarat due to Cyclone Tauktae on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May, 2021. The loss / 
damage is covered by the Insurance. Process of claiming insurance is going on. Plant of the Company was not operational due to non availability of electricity at 
our factory plant due to damage of Cyclone Tauktae. Electricity was restored at our plant on 05th July, 2021 and operations of the Company have commenced in 
a phased manner and achieved 95% capacity during the year under review. The expected quantum of loss is approximately ₹ 115 crores on account of Cyclone 
Tauktae.      

The Company has discontinued the manufacturing operations of structured fabrics (except bleaching facility) at Kalol effective from 1st July, 2019 on account 
of high cost of operations.

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

A petition for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 filed by Invesco Asset 
Management (India) Pvt. Ltd. (Financial Creditor) has been admitted against the Company vide Honorable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad bench 
order dated 06.04.2021 and Mr. Pinakin Shah has been appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench under section 13(1)(c) of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

The Committee of Creditors (CoC) Members had approved a resolution plan on 19th March, 2022 submitted by Reliance Industries Limited jointly with Assets 
Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited, which was subsequently submitted to the Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench on 23rd March, 2022 in accordance with 
Section 30(6) of the Code. The same continues to remain sub-judice with the Hon’ble NCLT.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of 
the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report & Covid-19 impact.

The company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the financial statements to determine the 
necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of 7th November, 2022 there were no 
subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed. Overall there has been inflationary pressure in the country, which can be seen 
in dramatic increase in prices of various raw materials, fuels and transportation cost. In our case, cotton which is our main raw material, price has gone up 
substantially even after arrival of fresh crop in the market. Cotton price have doubled in last six months and yarn prices have not increased in line with cotton 
prices. Accordingly, in current time margins are under pressure.

Performance of subsidiary – BVM Overseas Limited

Sintex’s presence in domestic as well as export market is partially through its wholly owned subsidiary, BVM Overseas Limited.

Sintex is trading its yarn in domestic and international markets through this subsidiary. 

BVM Overseas Limited

The Company is the trading arm of Sintex Industries Limited in India and in international markets. While the Company currently trades in yarn, other products 
like fabrics, sheeting etc. will be brought under the Company’s fold at a later date for capitalising on trading opportunities in India and with international 
customers over time.

During the financial year under review, the turnover increased to ₹ 681.46 crores against ₹ 291.37 crores in 2020-21. Out of the total turnover, about 79.19% 
accrued from the international market. The Company reported an EBIDTA of ₹ 2.63 crore in 2021-22.

For information relating to contribution of subsidiary company to the overall performance of the Company, please refer AOC – 1 forming part of this Annual 
Report.

Changes in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures/wholly-owned subsidiaries:

During the year under review, there was no change in the status of subsidiaries and joint ventures/ wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives
 
The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The CSR Committee has formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR policy) 
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company. The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as ‘Annexure - A’.
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Suspension of trading in equity shares :

The Company’s Equity Shares has been suspended for trading to avoid market complications as per BSE Notice No. 20220321-66 dated 21.03.2022 and NSE 
Notice no. 0323/2021 dated 21.03.2022.

Internal Financial Control (IFC) systems and their adequacy 

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors have the responsibility for ensuring that the Company has implemented robust system / 
framework for IFCs to provide them with reasonable assurance regarding the adequacy and operating effectiveness of controls, to enable the Directors to meet 
with their responsibility.

The Company has in place, a sound financial control system and framework in place to ensure:
•	 The orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to Company’s policies,
•	 Safeguarding of its assets,
•	 The prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
•	 The accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and
•	 The timely preparation of reliable financial information.

A formal documented IFC framework has been implemented by the Company. The Company regularly reviews the effectiveness of controls and takes necessary 
corrective actions where weaknesses are identified as a result of such reviews. This review covers entity level controls, process level controls, fraud risk controls 
and Information Technology environment. Based on this evaluation, there is nothing that has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate any material 
break down in the functioning of these controls, procedures or systems during the year. There have been no significant events during the year that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal financial controls. The Company has also come to a conclusion that the IFC and 
other financial reporting was effective during the year and is adequate considering the business operations of the Company.

Statutory Auditors and Auditors’ Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder,  M/s. R Choudhary and Associates (FRN:101928W), 
Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in 88th Annual General Meeting to hold their office till the conclusion 
of 93rd Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Report given by M/s. R Choudhary and Associates, Chartered Accountants on the financial statement of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 does 
not have any qualifications, observations, reservation or comments or other remarks, which have any adverse effect on the functioning of the company. The 
notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

Reporting of Fraud

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, either to the Company 
or to the Central Government.

Cost Auditor

As per the requirements of the Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, your 
Company is required to maintain cost records and accordingly, such accounts are made and records have been maintained every year.

The Interim Resolution Professional of the Company has appointed M/s. Shah Mehta & Co., Cost Accountants, Ahmedabad as Cost Auditor to audit the cost 
records of the Company for the financial year 2022-23. The Cost Auditors have submitted a certificate of their eligibility for such appointment. As required 
under the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the cost auditor is required to be placed before the Members in a General Meeting for their 
ratification. Accordingly, a Resolution seeking Member’s ratification for the remuneration payable to M/s. Shah Mehta & Co., Cost Accountants, Ahmedabad is 
included in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Chirag Shah & Associates, Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The 
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2021-22 of the Company and its material subsidiary company i.e. BVM Overseas Limited are annexed herewith as 
‘Annexure - B’. There were no qualifications, observations, reservation or comments or other remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report, which have any adverse 
effect on the functioning of the Company.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Jayesh H.  Khatsuria (DIN : 08626274), Director is due to retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and is eligible for reappointment. 

Mr. Pratit A. Patel (DIN: 07841812) & Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi (DIN: 06818747) have  given their resignation as Independent Directors of the Company with 
effect from 20th October, 2022. Further, Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge (DIN: 08755299) & Mrs. Keerti Laxman Lachhwani (DIN : 08757712) have given their resignation 
as Independent Directors of the Company with effect from 27th October, 2022. Also, Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi, Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge and Mrs. Keerti Laxman 
Lachhwani have filed e-form DIR-11 with the Registrar of the Companies, notice of their resignation as Independent Directors of the Company. 

The Interim resolution Professional will put the notice of resignation of said directors before the Committee of Creditors (CoC) for their approval pursuant to 
relevant provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016.
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During the year under review, there was no change in Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 16(1)(b) read with Regulation 25(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 

All Independent directors of the Company have integrity, necessary expertise and experience required for effectively performing their roles and discharging 
responsibilities. Also, your Company has received annual declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they have already 
registered their names with the data bank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs [“IICA”] as prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
under the relevant rules.

As stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Secretarial Standards-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, brief profile of Mr. Jayesh H.  Khatsuria proposed to be appointed/reappointed, 
nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, names of the companies in which they hold directorships and membership/Chairmanship of Committees 
of the Board, shareholding in the Company and disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se are provided in the Notice attached forming part of the 
Annual Report.

The Independent Directors have been updated with their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company by specifying them in their appointment letter along 
with necessary documents, reports and internal policies to enable them to familiarise with the Company’s procedures and practices.

Insurance 

The Company’s plant, property, equipments and stocks are adequately insured against major risks. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements 
in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 that:

a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material  
	 departures;
b)	 the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so  
	 as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;
c)	 the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,  
	 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
d)	 the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
e)	 the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were  
	 operating effectively;
f)	 the systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Note: Since the Company is under CIR Process, the management of the affairs of the Company is vested with Interim Resolution Professional. Accordingly, the 
above mentioned duties and responsibility of Directors have been performed by Interim Resolution Professional of the Company.

Sintex ESOP 2018

The Company instituted the Sintex Industries Limited -Employees Stock Option Plan-2018 (ESOP Plan) to grant equity based incentives to eligible employees 
of the Company and its subsidiaries and directors of the Company, excluding independent directors and a total of 30,00,000 options were available for grant 
under the ESOP Plan. The Company has not granted any stock options pursuant to ESOP Plan to eligible employees of the Company and looking to the present 
financial position of the Company, the Company has terminated the ESOP Plan.

Secretarial Standards

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

The Consultation Meetings of the Interim Resolution Professional

As the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company had been in operation from 6th April, 2021 as per the Orders passed by Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench, the powers of Board of Directors were suspended. Therefore, instead of Board Meeting, the Consultation 
Meetings were called and chaired by the Interim Resolution Professional of the Company and the meetings were held on 29th June, 2021, 13th August, 2021, 
25th September, 2021, 29th October, 2021 and 4th February, 2022. The intervening gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than one hundred and 
twenty days. Detailed information on the Meetings of the Interim Resolution Professional is included in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part 
of the Annual Report.

Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board of Directors

Since the powers of the Board of Directors and committees thereof had been suspended with effect from 6th April, 2021 pursuant to the order passed by 
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Ahmedabad Bench, the powers of the various committees viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have also been suspended with effect from the same date. Hence, no meetings of the committees were 
held during the year under review.
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As per regulation 15(2A) & (2B) of SEBI Listing Regulations, the companies under corporate insolvency resolution process are exempted from complying with 
regulation 17,18,19,20 and 21 of SEBI Listing Regulations with respect to Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee respectively, provided that the roles and responsibilities of the committees specified in the respective regulation shall be fulfilled by 
the IRP.

Board evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance as well as that of its Committees and individual Directors, including 
the Chairman of the Board. The exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation process and it covers various aspects of the Board functioning such 
as composition of the Board & Committees, experience & competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations, contribution at the meetings and 
otherwise, independent judgement, governance issues etc.

However, the Board being suspended due to commencement of CIR Process, the powers of the Board of Directors continued to be suspended till closing date, 
evaluation of Board, its Committees and individual directors has not taken place for the year 2021-22.

Independent director databank registration

Pursuant to a notification dated October 22, 2019 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, all directors have completed the registration with the Independent 
Directors Databank. Requisite disclosures have been received from the directors in this regard. Your Company has received annual declarations from all the 
Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they have already registered their names with the data bank maintained by the Indian Institute of 
Corporate Affairs [“IICA”] as prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the relevant rules and that the online proficiency self-assessment test as 
prescribed under the said relevant rules is applicable to them and they will attempt the said test in due course of time.

Independent Directors’ Meeting

As the commencement of CIR Process, the Board being suspended, no Independent Directors’ Meeting held during the year.

Extra Ordinary General Meetings / Postal Ballot

During the year under review, the Company has neither convened any Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the members of the Company nor passed any 
resolution through Postal Ballot.

Consolidated financial statements

The IRP reviewed the affairs of the Company’s subsidiary during the year at regular intervals. In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary, which form part of this Annual Report. The consolidated 
Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary, as approved by their respective Board 
of Directors. Further a statement containing salient features of the Financial Statements of each subsidiary in Form AOC-1 forms part of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. The statement also provides the details of performance and financial position of subsidiary.

Transfer of shares to IEPF demat account

The Company has transferred 92,005 Equity Shares to the IEPF demat account held with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) in terms of Section 
124 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the notified Rules of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 
2016, in respect of those shareholders, who have not claimed the dividend for the period of seven consecutive years or more.

Policies 

•	 Remuneration policy

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed and adopted the Policy for selection and appointment of 
directors, senior management and their remuneration. The Board recognizes that the various Committees of the Board have very important role to play to 
ensure highest standards of corporate governance. The remuneration policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report.
 
•	 Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information

Pursuant to the amendments in the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 vide The SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) 
Regulations, 2018 the Board of Directors of the Company has adopted new code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information (“UPSI”) (“Fair Disclosure Code”) incorporating a policy for determination of “Legitimate Purposes” as per Regulation 8 and Schedule A to the said 
regulations w.e.f. 1st April, 2019.

•	 Whistle blower policy 

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy through which the Company encourages its employees to bring to the attention of Senior Management & 
IRP any unethical behaviour and improper practices and wrongful conduct taking place in the Company. The details of the same is explained in the Corporate 
Governance Report and also posted on the website of the Company at the link http://www.sintex.in/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/Whistle_blower_policy.pdf

•	 Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders

Pursuant to amendments in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 vide the Securities and Exchange 
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Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, the Company adopted the revised “Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and 
Report Trading by Designated Persons” as per Regulation 9 and Schedule B to the said regulations w.e.f. 1st April, 2019.

•	 Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries

Pursuant to amendments in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, amended from 
time to time, the Company has adopted the revised “Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries” for laying down a criterion for determining Material 
Subsidiaries and their governance as per Regulation 16(1)(c) to the said regulations w.e.f. 1st April, 2019.

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are provided in the 
standalone financial statement (Please refer to Note No. 8 and 15 to the standalone financial statement), which are proposed to be utilized for the general 
business purpose of the recipient.

Contracts and arrangements with related parties

Related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business in accordance 
with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, there were material related party transactions which were entered into in the ordinary course 
of business and on arm’s length basis under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review, details of which are provided in 
form AOC-2 pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. Form AOC-2 
is attached herewith as “Annexure – C”.

All Related Party Transactions were placed before the meeting of IRP for approval. Prior omnibus approval was obtained for the transactions which were of a 
repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted were reviewed and statements giving details of all related party 
transactions were placed before the meeting of IRP on a quarterly basis. The Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related Party 
Transactions as approved by the IRP is uploaded on the Company’s website at the link: http://www.sintex.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/6_related-party-
transaction-policy-SINTEX_04.02.2022.pdf.

Disclosures of Related Party transactions as per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 are provided as note No. 39 to Standalone Financial Statements.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on the operations of the Company, as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is provided in a separate section and forms part of this Annual Report.

Corporate Governance 

Corporate Governance is, essentially, a philosophy. It encompasses not only the regulatory and legal requirements, but also the voluntary practices developed 
by the Company to protect the best interests of all stakeholders. The Company complies with all the Standards, Guidelines and Principles governing disclosures 
and obligations set out by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the Stock Exchanges on corporate governance.

A separate report on Corporate Governance along with Certificate from M/s. Chirag Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad on 
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as per Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is provided as a part of this Annual Report.

Your Company has made all information, required by investors, available on the Company’s website www.sintex.in.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time is annexed to this Report as ‘Annexure - D’.

Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return as on 31st March, 2021 and draft Annual Return as on 
31st March, 2022 are available on the Company’s website on http://www.sintex.in/investors/ and shall be further updated as soon as possible but not later than 
sixty days from the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Particulars of employees

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 are provided in separate annexure forming part of this Report as ‘Annexure-E’.

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being 
sent to the members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the members at the 
Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company. If any member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such member 
may write to the Company Secretary in this regard. 
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Significant and Material Orders impacting going concern basis passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals

A petition for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process filed by Invesco Asset Management (India) Pvt. Ltd. has been admitted against the Company 
vide NCLT, Ahmedabad bench order dated 06th April, 2021 and Mr. Pinakin Shah has been appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by NCLT, Ahmedabad 
Bench.

Application Made/ Proceeding Pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year by the operational creditors are 
available on the official website of the NCLT i.e. www.nclt.gov.in.

Risk Management

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is committed to managing the risks in a proactive and efficient manner. During the year, the 
IRP has reviewed the risks associated with the business of the Company, its root causes and the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the same. There are 
no risks which in the opinion of the IRP threaten the existence of the Company. 

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
 
The Company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

Your Company has zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any employee which may fall under the ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at workplace and the 
Company is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of every women working in the Company. The Sexual Harassment Policy provides for protection 
against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention and redressal of such complaints.

There were no complaints pending as on the beginning of the financial year and no new complaints were filed during the financial year under review.

The IRP further disclose that the Company has complied with the provisions relating to the Constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

General

The Interim Resolution Professional state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items, as there were no transactions on these 
items during the year under review:

1.	 Details relating to acceptance of deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.
2.	 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
3.	 Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.

Acknowledgements

The IRP would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from the financial institutions, banks, Government 
authorities, customers, vendors and members during the year under review. The IRP also wish to place on record its deep sense of appreciation for the 
committed services by the Company’s executives, staff and workers.

				  
			   On behalf of the Board (suspended during CIRP)

			   Pinakin Shah
Place: Ahmedabad	 Interim Resolution Professional
Date: 7th November, 2022	 (IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248)
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SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ANNEXURE - A to Directors’ Report
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended]

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company :

	 Sintex Industries Limited is committed to utilize its Human and Financial Resources for the benefit of needy people as mandated by the Companies Act,  
	 2013 and rules made there under. The Company believes that by taking up appropriate activities and projects, and carefully targeting beneficiaries, it can  
	 help in raising human development index as well as transform the lives of the beneficiary for better living on sustainable basis. 

	 Sintex Industries Limited is conscious of its obligations as a responsible corporate entity to promote social harmony, increasing opportunities for socially  
	 and economically disadvantageous sections of the society. The Company will endeavor to carry out various activities which have been stated in Schedule  
	 VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under.

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation / Nature
of Directorship

Number of meeting of
CSR Committee held
during the year

Number of meetings of
CSR Committee attended
during the year 

1 Mr. Amit D. Patel Managing Director, Chairperson of CSR Committee
No meetings CSR Committee held during the financial year
under review.2 Mr. Rahul A. Patel Managing Director, Member of CSR Committee

3 Mr. Yogesh Ghatge Independent Director, Member of CSR Committee

Note: Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge (DIN: 08755299) has given his resignation as Independent Director of the Company with effect from 27th October, 2022.

3.	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee. CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the  
	 company. :

	 Composition of CSR committee	 http://www.sintex.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/Composition-of-Committees-of-Board-of-
			   Directors-11.02.2021-1.pdf

	 CSR Policy	 http://www.sintex.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/SINTEX-CSR-POLICY_Revised_10.09.2020.pdf

	 CSR projects approved by the board	 Not Applicable for the financial year under review

4.	 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility  
	 Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report). : Not Applicable for the financial year under review

5.	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and  
	 amount Required for set off for the financial year, if any : Nil
  
6.	 Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : ₹  -698.69 crores

7.	 (a)	 Two percent of average net profit of the company as  per section 135(5) : Not Applicable due to losses

	 (b)	 Surplus arising out of CSR projects or  Programmes or activities of the previous financial years.: Nil

	 (c)	 Amount required to be set off for the financial  year,  if any. : Not Applicable

	 (d)	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). : Nil

8.	 (a)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Not Applicable

Total Amount spent
for the Financial Year.

(in ₹)

Amount Unspent (in ₹)
Total Amount transferred to Unspent

CSR Account as per Section 135(6).
Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII

as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount Date of Transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of Transfer

Not Applicable
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	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year : Not Applicable

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
Sl. 

No. 
Name 
of the 
Project

Item from 
the list of 
activities  in 
Schedule VII 
to the Act. 

Local 
Area 
(Yes/
No.)

Location
of the
project

Projection 
duration

Amount 
allocated 
for the 
project 
(in ₹)

Amount spent 
in the current 
financial year 
(n ₹)

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account for the 
project as per
Section 135(6) (in ₹)  

Mode of 
Implementation 
Direct
(Yes/ No).

Mode of 
Implementation 
Through 
Implementing 
Agency

State District Name CSR 
Registration 
Number

Not Applicable

	 (c)	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects  for the financial year: Not Applicable

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. 

No. 
Name 
of the 
Project

Item from the list of 
activities  in Schedule 
VII to the Act. 

Local Area 
(Yes/No.)

Location of the 
project.

Amount spent for 
the project (in ₹)

Mode of Implementation 
Direct (Yes/ No).

Mode of Implementation
Through Implementing Agency

State District Name CSR Registration 
Number

Not Applicable

	 (d)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Not Applicable

	 (e)	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable

	 (f)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year, (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Not Applicable

	 (g)	 Excess amount for set off, if any : Not Applicable

Sl.
No. Particular Amount (in ₹)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

Not Applicable
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9	 (a)	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. 
No. 

Proceeding 
Financial 
Year

Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account under 
Section 135 (6) (in ₹)

Amount spent in the 
reporting Financial 
Year (in ₹)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any. 

Amount remaining to 
be spent in succeeding 
financial years. (in ₹)Name of the Fund Amount (in ₹) Date of transfer

1 2020-21 Nil Nil Nil Not Applicable
2 2019-20 Nil Nil Nil Not Applicable
3 2018-19 Nil ₹ 9.51 crs Not Applicable Not Applicable

TOTAL ₹ 9.51 crs Nil Not Applicable

	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the proceeding financial year(s): Not Applicable

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl. 

No. 
Project 
ID.

Name 
of the 
Project

Financial Year in 
which the project 
was commenced

Project 
duration 

Total amount 
allocated for the 
project (in ₹)

Amount spent on the 
project in the reporting 
Financial Year (in ₹)

Cumulative amount spent 
at the end of the reporting 
Financial Year (in ₹)

Status of the project 
Completed / On going.

Not Applicable
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SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

10.	In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset  so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:
	 Not Applicable (asset-wise details)

	 (a)	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).	 Not Applicable

	 (b)	 Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.	 Not Applicable

	 (c)	 Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under	 Not Applicable
		  whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.

	 (d)	 Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired	 Not Applicable
		  (including complete address and location of the capital asset).

11.	Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).:

	 The Company was not required to spend towards CSR Activities on account of reported losses of ₹ -698.69 crores, being the Average net profit of the  
	 company as per section 135(5) of the Act.

			   On behalf of the Board (suspended during CIRP)

			   Pinakin Shah
Place: Ahmedabad	 Interim Resolution Professional
Date: 7th November, 2022	 (IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248)
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ANNEXURE - B to Directors’ Report
Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Sintex Industries Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Sintex Industries 
Limited (CIN: L17110GJ1931PLC000454) (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Further, pursuant to the Order dated 6th April, 2021 of the Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad (“NCLT Order”), Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (“CIR Process”) has been initiated against the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, 
(“Code”) and related rules and regulations issued thereunder with effect from 6th April, 2021. Mr. Pinakin Shah (having registration no. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-
N00106/2017-18/10248) has been appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by the Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench under 
Section 13(1)(c) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016. In view of this, my verification and/or examination of the Board process and compliance, 
Secretarial Standards as well as related relevant Minutes Books, Papers and documents etc are restricted from the period of 06.04.2021 to 31.03.2022 and 
wherever applicable herein after in this Secretarial Audit Report.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also 
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit by using appropriate 
Information technology tools like virtual data sharing by way of data room and remote desktop access tools, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made herein after. The 
physical Inspection or Verification of documents and records were taken to the extent possible:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

(iii)	The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct  
	 Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

	 a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

	 b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

	 c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

	 d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable to the Company  
		  during the audit period);

	 e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit  
		  period); 

	 f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and  
		  dealing with client;

	 g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period);

	 h.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

	 i.	 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015;
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(vi)	 Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified by the management, that is to say:

	 1.	 Indian Boilers Act, 1923
	 2.	 Static and Mobile Pressure Vessels Rules, 1999.
	 3.	 Chemical Accidents (Emergency Planning, Preparedness and Response) Rules, 1996.
	 4.	 Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989.
	 5.	 The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
	 6.	 The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 1977.
	 7.	 Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

	 a.	 Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
	 b.	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s):-

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. 

Adequate notice is given to schedule the Meetings of Resolution Professional by Interim Resolution Professional. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting.

All the decisions to manage the affairs of the Company are carried out by Interim Resolution Professional and as informed, there were no dissenting views and 
hence not recorded as part of the minutes. These functions are performed by the Interim Resolution Professional only to the limited extent of discharging the 
powers of the Board of Directors of the Company (suspended during CIRP) which have been conferred upon him in terms of provisions of Section 17 of the 
Code.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and 
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, during the year under review Petition for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Section 7 of the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code 2016 filed against the Company by Invesco Asset Management (India) Private Limited (Financial Creditor) for default amount of 
₹ 15,00,00,000/- (Principal amount) of Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) has been admitted against the Company vide Honourable National Company Law 
Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench order dated 06.04.2021. Mr. Pinakin Shah (having registration no. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248) has been appointed as 
Interim Resolution Professional by the Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench under Section 13(1)(c) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code 2016.

It was informed by Interim Resolution Professional that certain information including the minutes of meetings of the Committee of Creditors and the outcome 
of certain procedures carried out as a part of the CIRP are confidential in nature and could not be shared with anyone other than the Committee of Creditors 
and NCLT. Accordingly, no comment is offered on the possible compliance impact if any, that may arise.

We further report that, the resolution plan submitted by Reliance Industries Limited jointly with Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited was approved 
by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). As per Resolution Plan of Reliance Industries Limited jointly with Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited, it 
is proposed that existing share capital of the Company shall be reduced to Zero and the Company will be delisted from the stock exchanges i.e. BSE and NSE.

The Interim Resolution Professional of the Company has duly filed the resolution plan as approved by the CoC with the Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench on 
23rd March, 2022, in accordance with Section 30(6) of the Code for approval of the said Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT.

				    For, Chirag Shah and Associates

				    CS Chirag Shah
				    Partner 
				    FCS No. 5545
				    C P No.: 3498
Place: Ahmedabad	 UDIN: F005545D000369172 
Date: 23rd May, 2022	 Peer Review. Cer No- 704/2020   

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE - A

To,
The Members
Sintex Industries Limited.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility 

1.	 It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions  
	 of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.  

Auditor’s Responsibility

2.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial  
	 compliances.

3.	 We believe that audit evidence and information obtain from the Company’s management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our  
	 opinion.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

5.	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management  
	 has conducted the affairs of the Company.

				    For, Chirag Shah and Associates

				    CS Chirag Shah
				    Partner 
				    FCS No. 5545
				    C P No.: 3498
Place: Ahmedabad	 UDIN: F005545D000369172 
Date: 23rd May, 2022	 Peer Review. Cer No- 704/2020
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Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ruleNo.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
BVM OVERSEAS LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by BVM OVERSEAS 
LIMITED (CIN: U51900GJ2015PLC084582) (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also 
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit by using appropriate 
Information technology tools like virtual data sharing by way of data room and remote desktop access tools, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The 
physical Inspection or Verification of documents and records were taken to the extent possible:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(vii)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(viii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder: Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period;

(ix)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder: Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period;

(x)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct  
	 Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(xi)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’);

	 j.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011: Not Applicable to the company during  
		  the Audit period;

	 k.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015: Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period;

	 l.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018: Not Applicable to the company during the  
		  Audit period;

	 m.	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021: Not Applicable to the Company during  
		  the Audit Period;

	 n.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Non-convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021: Not Applicable to the company during  
		  the Audit period;

	 o.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and  
		  dealing with client: Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period;

	 p.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021: Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period; 

	 q.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations 2018: Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; and

	 r.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015: Not Applicable to the company during  
		  the Audit period.

(xii)	 The following specifically other applicable laws to the Company:

	 Not Applicable – as the Company is not engaged into a specific having separate legislative compliances.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

	 c.	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

	 d.	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s): Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period.
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and 
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and 
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events / actions having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the 
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has not passed any special resolutions.

				    CS Dhwani Rana
				    Partner
				    Chirag Shah and Associates 
				    ACS No. 43629
				    C P No.: 21737
Place: Ahmedabad	 UDIN: A043629D000360101 
Date: 21st May, 2022	 Peer Review Cer. No-704/2020

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE - A

To,
The Members
BVM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility 

1.	 It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions  
	 of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.  

Auditor’s Responsibility

2.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial  
	 compliances.

3.	 We believe that audit evidence and information obtain from the Company’s management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our  
	 opinion. 

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

5.	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management  
	 has conducted the affairs of the Company.

				    CS Dhwani Rana
				    Partner
				    Chirag Shah and Associates 
				    ACS No. 43629
				    C P No.: 21737
Place: Ahmedabad	 UDIN: A043629D000360101 
Date: 21st May, 2022	 Peer Review Cer. No-704/2020
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ANNEXURE - C to Directors’ Report
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

	 The Company has not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with its related parties, which is not in ordinary course of business or at arm’s  
	 length during financial year 2021-22.

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:                                                                                        (Amount in Crores)	 

Name(s) of the related 
party and nature of 
relationship

Nature of contracts /
arrangements / 
transactions

Duration of the contracts / 
arrangements / transactions

Salient terms of the contracts 
or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any

Date(s) of approval 
by the Board, if any

Amount paid as 
advances, if any

BVM Overseas 
Limited, Wholly owned 
Subsidiary

sale of goods/services Ongoing Sale of goods/services for the 
year ended 31st March, 2022 
amounting to ₹ 788.13 Crores #

Not applicable -

BVM Overseas 
Limited, Wholly owned 
Subsidiary

Purchase of
RoDTEP
(Remission of
Duties and Taxes on 
Exported
Products)
scripts/license

Ongoing Purchase of RODTEP Script for 
the year ended 31st March, 2022 
amounting to ₹ 0.43 Crores #

Not applicable -

BVM Overseas 
Limited, Wholly owned 
Subsidiary

To lease the
property of the
Company

Three Years To lease the property of the 
Company from 01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2024 at a rent of ₹ 0.007 
crores # p.a. for the purpose of 
business operation

Not applicable -

#  Including Tax

			   On behalf of the Board (suspended during CIRP)

			   Pinakin Shah
Place: Ahmedabad	 Interim Resolution Professional
Date: 7th November, 2022	 (IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248)



19

SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ANNEXURE - D to Directors’ Report
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
for the year ended March 31, 2022 is given here below and forms part of the Directors’ Report.

A)	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY –

	 1)	 The step taken for conservation of energy

		  In light of the global warming, which eventually may lead to scarcity of energy resources, the company has been focusing on efficient energy conservation  
		  practices as one of the key component of its responsible energy strategy.

	 •	 The humidification plants in all units are fully automated. The company has reduced the power consumption in winter season remarkably by continuous  
		  monitoring of outside favorable conditions thereby saved energy. 
	 •	 The latest technology needs compressed air for automatic machine functions. The company is continuously inspecting the air leakages at production  
		  machines, pipelines, joints, valves etc. on regular basis and attend any losses on top priority, thus achieving saving of electricity consumption.
	 •	 The lighting power has been reduced by proper balancing the lights as well as reducing the excess lighting thereby reduction in Kwh/Kg
	 •	 RF Dryer cooling system optimization done to save energy
	 •	 RF Dryer static heater operation optimization done to save energy
	 •	 NSC card suction fan speed optimization done for energy saving.

	 2)	 The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate source of energy : Not applicable

	 3)	 The capital investment on energy conservation equipment : NIL

B)	 TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT –

	 1)	 Major efforts made towards technology advancement

		  Following steps were carried out to effectively use of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP).

	 •	 Implementation of B2B service sales, and B2C sales in e-invoicing system in SAP
	 •	 Prevention of exact duplicate of material description in material master and prevention of exact duplicate of vendor and customer description, in SAP
	 •	 AI-RPA bot for SAP password reset
	 •	 Daily monitoring of sales order quantity and price changes
	 •	 Online attendance system for staff

	 Complete revival of Lunsapur factory IT Infrastructure after cyclone damage was carried out.

	 Following steps were carried out for machines:

	 •	 Due to cyclone and heavy rain, factory’s roofs and false ceilings were damaged. Hence, the machines were under water for few days. It was a challenge  
		  to restart the jammed machines again after gap of several days. The machine maintenance, refurbishment, replacement of mechanical / electrical /  
		  electronic parts, panels, spares, calibration were implemented by shop floor maintenance team with the help of digital technology tools.
	 •	 Although this year, new technology was not adopted, the company used its existing technology monitoring tools effectively. 

		  Thus, this year the company could run its machinery effectively after the cyclone impact. 

	 2)	 The benefits derived from product improvement, product development and import substitution

		  Following measures were taken during this year;

		  •	 The company has maintained its consistent quality standards. After cyclone, when the plant restarted, the company took several efforts to re- 
			   establish its quality standards. It was a challenge to refurbish the machines and maintain requisite quality standards. The company took feedback  
			   about quality from its customers time to time and maintained it. Hence, once factory was operational, the company was able to retain and satisfy  
			   its customers. 
		  •	 As the travel restrictions were lifted, the company’s sales, marketing and quality assurance team visited international and domestic markets to meet  
			   the customers.

	 3)	 Information regarding acquisition of imported technology during the last year

		  a)	 The details of technology imported: Not applicable
		  b)	 The year of import: Not Applicable
		  c)	 whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not applicable
		  d)	 If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons there of: Not applicable

	 4)	 Expenditure incurred on Research and Development

		  The company has incurred an expenditure of ₹ 0.16 crores towards Research and Development.

C)	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 	 (₹ in Crore)

Description 2021-22 2020-21
Foreign Exchange Earned in terms of Actual Inflows 20.11 3.78
Foreign Exchange Used in terms of Actual outflows 19.43 1.53
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ANNEXURE - E to Directors’ Report
Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and

Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

1.	 The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration for the financial year 2021-22 and the percentage increase in  
	 remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in the financial year 2021-22:

Sr. 
No. Name of Director / KMP and Designation

Ratio of remuneration 
of each Director/ to 

median remuneration 
of employees

% increase in 
Remuneration in the 

Financial Year
2021-22

1. Sunil Kumar Kanojia, Independent and Non-Executive Director N.A. N.A.
2. Pratit Patel, Independent and Non-Executive Director N.A. N.A.
3. Jayesh Khatsuria, Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director N.A. N.A.
4. Keerti L. Lachhwani, Independent and Non-Executive Director N.A. N.A.
5. Premnarayan R. Tripathi, Independent and Non-Executive Director N.A. N.A.
6. Yogesh S. Ghatge, Independent and Non-Executive Director N.A. N.A.
7. Rahul A. Patel, Chairman and Managing Director N.A. N.A.
8. Amit D. Patel, Managing Director N.A. N.A.
9. Hitesh T. Mehta, Company Secretary 6.51:1 15.00

10. Hitesh Dihiye, Chief Financial Officer 35.70:1 40.58

N.A. – Not Applicable.

Notes :
(1)	 As the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) w.e.f. 6th April, 2021, no such remuneration including sitting fees has been paid  
	 to Directors of the Company. Hence, percentage increase in Remuneration of Directors in the Financial Year 2021-22 and Ratio of remuneration of each  
	 Director to median remuneration of employees are not comparable.
(2)	 Mr. Pratit A. Patel (DIN: 07841812) & Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi (DIN: 06818747) have  given their resignation as Independent Directors of the Company  
	 with effect from 20th October, 2022.
(3)	 Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge (DIN: 08755299) & Mrs. Keerti Laxman Lachhwani (DIN : 08757712) have given their resignation as Independent Directors of the  
	 Company with effect from 27th October, 2022.

2.	 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year :

	 During FY 2021-22, the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees as compared to previous year was approximately 3.63 %.

3.	 There were 5508 permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31st March 2022.

4.	 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison  
	 with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase  
	 in the managerial remuneration:

	 •	 Average increase in the salaries of Employees other than the managerial personnel in the financial year by 3.85 %.

	 •	 During the year 2021-22, the Company has not paid any remuneration by way of salary, perquisites, allowances and commission to Executive Directors.

5.	 It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the as per the Remuneration Policy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
(a)	Industry structure and developments

1.	 The textile industry

India’s textiles sector is one of the oldest industries in the Indian economy, dating back to several centuries.

Indian textile and apparel industry plays an important role in development of economic activity in India. As of fiscal 2020, in terms of Gross Value Added 
(GVA), Indian textile, apparel and leather products occupy a share of 13%, which has seen an increase from 11% in fiscal 2012. As per Ministry of Textile annual 
report 2020-21, Indian textile and apparel has contributed to 11.8% of overall exports during fiscal 2020. It also states that Indian textile and apparel segments 
occupies a share of 5% in global textile and apparel segment. The key strength in Indian textile and apparel segment lies in large raw material base and 
manufacturing units present across the value chain. The industry caters to an employment of over 45 million individuals and 100 million individuals indirectly, 
which includes employment for women and rural population. The textile and apparel segment finds alignment with the India’s vision programs such as Make 
in India and Skill India.

(i)	 India has a strong textile value chain 

The textile industry in India is diversified with hand loom/shuttle loom/shuttle less loom/ knitting/hosiery textile at one end and sophisticated textile mills, 
which are capital intensive on the other end of the spectrum. The spinning industry is organized if compared to weaving industry, which is dominated by the 
decentralized production units. Presence of players across the value chain starting from production of raw material to production of yarn, fabric and garments 
in the country makes the Indian textile industry well placed at a global level in comparison to countries such as Vietnam and Bangladesh.

The domestic textile industry, which had seen demand slump in fiscal 2020 owing to onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, is firmly on course to recover in fiscal 2021 
on the back of reopening of businesses, educational institutions and retail outlets with increase in the vaccinated population. Sanctions on Chinese textiles have 
boosted Indian textile exports as well.

Government announcements such as the Production Linked Incentive scheme, setting up of mega textile parks, and extension of the Rebate of State and Central 
Taxes and Levies scheme are also supporting the sector.

Indian government has come up with several export promotion policies for the textiles sector. It has also allowed 100% FDI in the sector under the automatic 
route.

(ii)	Other Initiatives taken by Government of India are:

•	 Effective 01 January 2021, to boost exports, government have extended the benefit of the Scheme for Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products  
	 (RoDTEP) to all exported goods

•	 The Indian government has notified uniform goods and services tax rate at 12% on man made fabrics (MMF), MMF yarns, MMF fabrics and apparel, which  
	 will come into effect from January 1, 2022.

•	 In July 2021, the government extended the Rebate of State and Central Taxes and Levies (RoSCTL) scheme for exports of apparel/garments and made ups  
	 until March 2024. This will help boost exports and enhance competitiveness in the labour-intensive textiles sector.

•	 In September 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi approved the production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme in the textiles sector for man-made fibre  
	 (MMF) apparel, MMF fabrics and 10 segments/products of technical textiles at an estimated outlay of ₹ 10,683 crore (US$ 1.45 billion).

•	 In October 2021, the Ministry of Textiles approved continuation of the comprehensive handicrafts cluster development scheme with a total outlay of ₹ 160  
	 crore (US$ 21.39 million). Through this scheme, the government aims to support domestic SMEs and local artisans.

•	 The government allocated funds worth ₹ 17,822 crore (US$ 2.38 billion) between FY16 and FY22 for the ‘Amended Technology Up-gradation Fund Scheme’  
	 (A-TUFS), to boost the Indian textile industry and enable ease of doing business.

•	 In October 2021, the government introduced SAMARTH training at 75 training centers across the country, to accelerate the scheme’s coverage among  
	 artisans.

•	 In April 2022, the government initiated “Economic Cooperation and Trade Agreements” with Australia and the UAE. Indian textile exports to Australia and  
	 the UAE would now face zero duties. The government is also keen to initiate FTA’s with Europe, Canada, the UK and GCC countries. 
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(iii)	 India’s Textile and Clothing Trade

a.	 India’s textile trade (Textile plus Clothing) have posted export & import growth in 2021

After dip in year FY 21 (due to pandemic & subsequent lockdowns), India witnessed growth in export in year FY 22. After the ban on Xinjiang cotton, global 
supply chain started reshuffling. Hence, India could achieve its export target of US$ 44.4 Bn.

b.	 India’s Textile & Clothing export                                                                   (Values in Mn USD)

Description / Year 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
a. Cotton Yarn 2774.19 2802.67 5518.93
b. Cotton Madeups 3717.12 3957.14 4986.55
c. Cotton Fabrics 2230.4 2004.94 3101.7
d. Raw Cotton 1057.2 1896.69 2816.44
A. Cotton Textiles (a+b+c+d) 9778.91 10661.44 16423.62
    
1. Man-made Textiles 5,324.46 4179.64 6,293.66
2. Handloom Products 319.15 223.25 269.15
3. Wool & Woollen Textiles 181.49 108.67 166.33
4. Silk 72.33 76.41 108.98
5. Handicrafts & Carpets 3,171.16 3198.93 3,878.36
6. Coir & Coir Manufacturers 340.42 476.63 568.97
7. Jute 357.21 397.35 537.48
B. Other Textile (1 to 7) 9,766.22 8,660.88 11,822.93
    
Total Textile (A+B) 19,545.13 19,322.32 28,246.55
Readymade Garments (C) 15,488.05 12,272.21 16,016.03
Grand Total (A+B+C) 35,033.18 31,594.53 44,262.58

(Source: TEXPROCIL, Ministry of Textiles)

From the above table, it indicates that growth in Textiles plus Garments is 40% in 2021-22. Growth in cotton textile is 54%. In the same category, cotton yarn 
export witnessed 97% growth. In terms of quantity, growth witnessed 35%, which is a remarkable.

Developments:

After a long time, the Indian textile Industry could able to achieve the export target of US$ 44 bn in FY 2021-22. The domestic demand has also supported the 
textile and clothing industry after COVID-19. This led to improve performance of all segments of the textile industry in FY 2021-22.  

Indian cotton price remains over priced in the world. The sky high cotton prices, could not translate into higher yarn prices. This forced the company to cut 
production and shift away from cotton based products to blended or manmade fiber products as a temporary measure. When the industry realized that cotton 
crop is not good, they started looking at the option of import of cotton. Unfortunately, the same could not happen because of 11% Custom Duty on Raw 
Cotton that was imposed in Union Budget 2021-22. As a result, entire spinning industry was starving of cotton and about 30-40% spinning mills decided to stop 
production rather than incurring losses

(b)	Opportunities and Threats:

Opportunities: Major opportunities for Indian spinning industry

•	 USA’s ban on Xinjiang cotton
•	 Supply chain reshuffling due to ban on China’s cotton
•	 “China+1” strategy adopted by International Brands
•	 Second largest spinning industry nation with 24% share (China’s share is reducing)
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•	 Second largest cotton producing country in the world with 24% share 

In year 2020, Indian cotton prices were lower than US cotton. Meantime, Covid-19 Pandemic struck to the entire world. The global cotton textile, garment 
production and supply chains hampered. Trade war between USA and China took a major turn in September as USA initiated three withhold release orders 
(detention orders) on Xinjiang cotton products owing to human rights abuses.

Xinjiang is China’s largest cotton producing province with more than 80% cotton produced (out of 6 Mn MT) in this region. The news of ban on Xinjiang cotton 
in September 2020 affected 80% Chinese cotton products’ prospects, right from fibre to garments.

USA’ ban on Xinjiang (China) based cotton and derived products led to increase in export demand for cotton yarn, fabric, RMG and home textiles in other 
neighbouring countries.  As Indian textile industry is second largest after China, the impact of USA’ ban attributed positive impact on the Indian cotton yarn 
sector.

Below chart indicates India’s monthly cotton yarn export

(Source: DGCIS)

Barring one month, entire FY 2021-22 witnessed strong export demand for cotton yarn. During this period, overall 35 percent growth in the cotton yarn export 
witnessed. This growth attributed to economic recovery, downstream demand revival along with low base in fiscal 2021. Export demand for cotton yarn 
increased from China, Vietnam, and Bangladesh etc.

However, in FY 2022-23, from April 22 onwards cotton yarn exports reduced as Indian yarn remained costlier in the world market due to high cotton price.

Threats:

Exorbitant cotton prices posed a major threat in two quarters of FY 2021-22 

Raw material cost, i.e. cost of raw cotton, is the largest cost component for a spinning mill. As cotton is a seasonal commodity, procuring raw cotton at the right 
time and at the right price is crucial as it directly affects the operating margins of a spinning mill. 

Chinese spinning mills preferred to procure international cotton due to ban on local cotton. Chinese farmers looked to cultivate alternative crops due to lower 
demand for cultivated cotton. As demand for international cotton increased, China’s cotton imports surged. From September 2020, China’s cotton prices were 
consistently higher than International cotton prices and this trend was consistent till March 2022. 

For last several years, India’s domestic cotton prices are ruling below ₹ 50,000 per candy. However, India has surpassed this benchmark price in the month 
of June 2021. Prices in the domestic market increased with improvement in yarn demand in both the domestic and export markets. The cotton prices were 
continuously in upward trend and reached over ₹ 100,000 per candy in the month of May 2022.

Below chart indicates Cotton Prices (S-6) in last five years (₹ per Candy)

(Source: Gujcot Trade Association)
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Following factors affected on cotton prices. 
•	 Cotton production – Lower cotton production due to unseasonal rain and crop concerns.
•	 Cotton arrival was slow from October 21 to December 21. It was expected to receive 200 lakh bales during these three months. However, actual arrival was  
	 120 lakh bales. This was due to holding of the crop by farmers.
•	 Cotton consumption has increased in India due to strong demand from mills.
•	 Raw cotton (Kapas) prices were ruled 80 to 84% above MSP price. MSP for 29 mm is ₹ 5975/Quintal and 29.5 mm to 30.5 mm is ₹ 6025/Quintal. Kapas  
	 prices remained around ₹ 10,000/Quintal. Hence, farmers were reluctant to sell cotton easily.

Below chart indicates Kapas Price trend in the last one year (₹ per Quintal)

(Source: NCDEX, Investing.com)

Kapas prices have increased from ₹ 6,158 to 11,468 per quintal in the month of August 22. 

•	 Cotton fibre export remained lower as it was a need of the hour. 
•	 Spinning mills have insisted to abolish import duty on cotton 11% (CIF price). Accordingly, GOI revoked import duty from 14th April to 31st October 2022.  
	 However, Indian mills could not import more than 14 lac bales due to short duration and low price parity in domestic and international cotton.
•	 In order to reduce cotton prices, few spinning mills and Textile Associations have demanded to ban cotton commodity futures. Hence, SEBI suspended  
	 trading in cotton futures on MCX for a month January 2023.
•	 Cotton supply was very tight. Cotton trading MNCs, cotton traders, & ginners hoarded sizeable amount of cotton stocks. This has affected on supply side and  
	 cotton prices witnessed exponential price hike.

Thus, exorbitant cotton price posed a major threat in two quarters of FY 2021-22 and first two quarters of FY 2022-23.

(c)	Segment wise or product wise performance:

Performance in FY 2021-22

In the month of April 21 and May 21 due to the second wave of the pandemic, economic activities had suffered. The restrictions and lockdowns in various 
parts of India have affected the demand for yarn. The spinning, textile and apparel industry faced more challenges due to its labour intensive nature during this 
period. In the mid of May, demand for cotton yarn started picking.

However, during this period, cyclone “Tauktae” hit the entire coastal region of Gujarat. There was a severe damage at our factory plant situated at Taluka 
Jafarabad, Lunsapur, Amreli, Gujarat due to Cyclone on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May, 2021. The company had incurred a huge financial, operational and 
material loss. However, the company could not restart its operations due to power outage at our factory and surrounding tehsils. Electrical power network 
supply was restored at our plant on 5th July, 2021.

A)	 Impact of cyclone “Tauktae”:

Severe cyclonic storm originated from an area of low pressure in the Arabian Sea made landfall on this coast on 17th May 2021. It was one of the severe tropical 
cyclone brought heavy winds, rains and floods in the factory area. Mahuva – Jafrabad coast in Saurashtra region of Arabian Sea was the worst affected.

Winds blew at critically high-speed and rained heavily in the wind direction. Directions of winds were swiftly changing, taking heavy toll everywhere. The uplift 
pressures mounted by cyclone winds caused catastrophic failures in all the spheres of our establishments in the Factory and Housing Township. It took a very 
heavy toll on all the roofs covering of the main plants & allied buildings. All solar panels on our three units flew away with high speed in the trajectory and fell 
over the roofing area hugely affecting all our other units, raw material godowns and other ancillary and utility set up. Solar panels / metallic parts rolled over the 
sheeting roofs led to broke roofs & false ceiling and fell down over the machines. Overhead water tanks on the rooftops of the housing buildings fled distantly. 
The wind had smashed majority of glass windows and doors in both plants & township.

The high wind velocity of 220Km/hr wiped out majority of the buildings and other constructed features and grounded numerous HT towers of 220KV/66 KV in 
the approx. 50 Kms radius of plants putting entire vicinity in to the dark and due to this reason there was no power supply at the pumping station and water 
supply was interrupted. 

The company’s plant, machinery, factory buildings, raw material / finished goods warehouses and residential colonies have severely damaged due to cyclone 
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& subsequent rain. As roofs have damaged, rainwater poured on the machines and remained in the factory for next few days due to heavy rain showers. All 
internal electrical & automation installations had to undergo major refurbishing.

The production machines and utilities were not in a position to operate again due to clogging and failures of its several internal and external parts. It was a huge 
task and voluminous job to restore factory’s operations as if setting up a brown field project. The damage has affected on the production and operations of all 
the units. The raw material stock, WIP material, finished goods (Yarns) stocks were severely damaged. The company focussed to civil / electrical / mechanical 
procurement and installation work on top priority. The company tried its level best to restore its operations by replacing damaged roofs, false ceilings, floorings, 
spare parts of various machines, electrical / electronic / instrumentation components on a war footing. The company has to undergo rigorous refurbishment, 
maintenance and recalibration of entire production and utility equipment.

Entire factory operation came to complete halt during 18th May 2021 to 5th July 2021. All of the residential buildings in the township suffered moderate to 
major damages including collapsing of two RCC staircases of three workers housing blocks. Entire residential township’s electricity supply was running on 
generators during that period.  All mobile communication towers of service providers too collapsed & connectivity to the rest of the world was lost for almost 
a period of three weeks.

Internal road network in the factory area was blocked due to scattered damaged roofing, solar panels, glass pans and uprooted trees. Over 130,000 square 
metre new roof sheeting was laid with replacement of underdeck insulation in the three units and approx. 50,000 square metre was replaced in patches in the 
other units simultaneously with refurbishing of affected machines and other installations.

Restoration work of five units was completed in two weeks by June end and these plants started operating on resumption of HT power supply on 5th July 2021. 
Other three units started operating from 12th July onwards and by 22nd July all units were in operations. Township was restored to normalcy within three 
weeks.

Entire operations were under shut down for more than 50 days due to power outage. Restoring power after a wide-area outage was a big challenge. During this 
period, the company focussed to control the damage and incurred repairing work on war footing.

As supply of electrical power network supply restored, operations of the company have commenced in a phased manner. However, it took next several days to 
reach its highest capacity utilisation level and normalise the production.

All primary nature of restoration work for factory operations were prioritized and secondary works of restoration of allied structures are continued. 

Thus, the company had incurred a loss in terms of revenue/profitability in first and second quarter due to cyclone “Tauktae”. In the third quarter, the company 
tried to achieve its maximum capacity utilisation. 

B)	 Scarcity of cotton

Lower cotton production, hoarding of cotton led to exorbitant cotton price

1.	 Impact of cotton crop concerns and prices
	 Cotton quality was a major issue for procurement.
	 •	 Quality of the cotton - North Punjab and nearby area cotton crop affected due to pink bollworm. Gujarat, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana and Maharashtra  
		  region witnessed unseasonal rain. This led to affect cotton crop badly. 
	 •	 Crop concerns have affected on cotton quality in terms of grade. (Required RD value 73 to 75 has reduced to 68 to 70). The availability of good quality  
		  cotton by grade was low. 
	 •	 In SIL’s product basket, average count is above Ne 34s. Hence, for cotton procurement for its products (Ne 30s and below counts as well as Ne 30s and  
		  above counts) the company has to procure cotton from different states. 
	 •	 There was uncertainly, in the markets about cotton prices. Hence, the company managed to procure requisite cotton quality at competitive price. 

2.	 Volatile market scenario in domestic yarn market

	 •	 The S6 cotton surpassed its ₹ 50,000/candy mark in the month of June. The price has jumped by 80 percent to touch a record height of ₹ 90,000/candy  
		  in the month of March 2022 over a period of 8–9 months. Due to increase in cotton price, yarn prices were increased. However, hike in yarn price could  
		  not percolate in the downstream textile value chain on immediate basis.
	 •	 Textile value chain felt the heat of spiraling cotton prices. Domestic weavers and knitters were reluctant to buy the yarn at high price as their end  
		  customers such as fabric buyers, RMG units, brands were not paying them the requisite price hike at fabric stage. The volatile demand supply situation  
		  occurred in domestic markets.
	 •	 Demand for home textile segment especially for bed bath was inconsistent. Denim sector could not gear up for its potential demand.  
	 •	 Garment unit owners at Tirupur staged one-day strike and hunger protest by closing down their units to condemn yarn price hike. In North India, knitters  
		  also protested against the hike in yarn price. The industry representatives met several times to Government officials to control the cotton prices and  
		  insisted to remove import duty on cotton. 
	 •	 As covid waves were looming, yarn buyers remained under wait and watch for few weeks

3.	 Indian cotton price higher than US cotton

Cotton price – Normally Indian cotton S6 prices are lower than International cotton (US Cotton) prices. In FY 21-22, June, July, August and September Indian 
cotton prices surpassed International cotton. In the last quarter of 2021-22, Indian cotton was consistently expensive by 8 to 10 US Cents/Lb to international 
cotton due to tight supply.
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Below chart indicates comparison of Indian cotton Vs US cotton price

(Source: Cotton Incorporated)

	 •	 Indian cotton price remained costlier than US cotton for almost eight months. In the initial four months’ price gap was lower. However, in the last quarter  
		  Indian cotton increased by 10 US Cents/Lb. Hence, price competition increased in international markets.
	 •	 International buyers of yarn could not confirm the yarn orders as Indian yarn became costlier vis-a – vis yarn from Vietnam, Bangladesh, Indonesia etc.
	 •	 China market was under holidays due to spring festival and arrival of New Year 2022. In addition to this China’s buying of cotton yarn started reducing.  
		  China’s government was focusing on to increase consumption of Xinjiang cotton in domestic textile value chain. In Turkey, yarn prices remained lower  
		  due to lower price of international cotton. Hence, in surrounding European countries such as Portugal, Italy, challenges witnessed to sell yarns. Buyers  
		  from Bangladesh, Vietnam, Egypt have insisted for yarn prices commensurate with international cotton prices. While sufficing the buyers need, yarn  
		  margins compressed.  
	 •	 Secondly, currency fluctuations observed during the year. Indian Rupee weakened against US Dollar. In the month of April 2021, 1 USD was equivalent to  
		  INR. 74.06. In March 2022, 1 USD became equivalent to ₹ 75.90. This impact (2.48%) on currency has affected to change yarn price in USD terms. During  
		  May 21 and August 21 the Indian Rupee had appreciated to certain extent. However, volatility affected on yarn price. 
 
		  Currently, 1 USD is equivalent to ₹ 82.

 Below chart indicates currency fluctuations USD Vs INR for last one and half year

(Source: Investing.com)

	 •	 Thus, in international markets, margins have affected due to high cotton price and yarn price fluctuation in USD terms.

4.	 Overall impact

	 •	 Shipping, freight, fuel costs were remained on higher side and all other expenses have increased. 
	 •	 As crude oil prices have increased, Polyester Staple Fibre prices witnessed surge in the price.
	 •	 Raw material prices have increased over 80% in the last quarter. This hike has affected to shrink W.C. by 50%. This led to changes in cash flow cycles and  
		  scarcity of W.C. 
	 •	 With input costs rising, working capital requirement increased and demand was softening which was adding to cost pressures
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Conclusion:

In Year 2021-22, the company managed its operations well within its available resources. However, suffered due to cyclone and volatile cotton price:

1)	 Cyclone “Tauktae”- First & second quarter’s revenue/profitability and operations of factory were badly affected.
2)	 High raw material price – Increased burden on working capital. Cotton price increased by 80% affected to shrink W.C. by 50%. Cash flow cycles changed,  
	 Substantial reduction in inventory affected to increase RM % in yarn price.
3)	 Cotton quality in terms of grade – Crop concerns affected on productivity and yarn realisation.
4)	 Domestic market – Reluctance from downstream textile value chain to absorb cotton price hike affected on net price realisation.
5)	 Export market – High Indian cotton price than international cotton, Currency fluctuations, lower demand from China, cut throat competition from  
	 Bangladesh, Vietnam, Egypt have affected on net price realisation and profitability 
6)	 Increase in shipping, freight, fuel costs and all other expenses – Affected on margins.

From market perspective, yarn profitability was good in first, second and third quarter of FY 2021-22. However, during first two quarters the company’s 
profitability hampered due to Cyclone. The company had lost almost revenue of one-quarter during April to September period. In the third quarter, the 
company tried to achieve its maximum capacity utilisation. However, in the fourth quarter as cotton prices have hiked, market could not support to absorb 
price hike in yarn. 

The company managed its cash flows within available resources of funds. However, unpredictable cyclone and high cotton price were beyond its control. 

(d)	Outlook

Future prospects & business outlook

Future prospects:

Government is keen to double Textile + Clothing export target to US 100 Bn $ in next five years. Demand for Indian cotton products from USA will remain for 
next several years till the ban on China cotton. India is the second largest spinning installed capacity nation after China. Naturally, India can fill the gap vacated 
by China on immediate basis. Hence, India has a strong potential to bounce back and strengthen its position in the world textile industry.

Sintex has set up over 6.6 lakh spindles at single location in Gujarat. The location is nearest to the seaport Pipavav which is 25 kms away from factory. This is 
the major advantage for export of yarn and import of fibres. The factory is located in the heart of cotton-belt in India. Thus, transport cost is minimum for raw 
materials and export of yarn. The company produces 100% cotton combed compact, 100% carded compact and 100% wet linen yarns and various blended 
yarns such as poly/cotton, special blends such as flax/cotton, flax/viscose, cotton/modal, cotton/bamboo etc.

“State of the art” digital technology commensurate with industry 4.0 accreditation, sophisticated machines and highest degree of automation has ensured that 
the facility operates on a ‘no touch yarn” principle.

The product basket includes 100% cotton yarn (Ne 10s to Ne 140s) compact weaving and knitting yarns in combed/carded varieties to cater to leading weavers 
and knitters in India and across the globe. Sintex is exporting its yarns to over 50 nations.

SIL has an opportunity to produce Giza, Supima, Contamination free, Organic, BCI yarns. The company has installed machinery for Melange and dyed yarns. 
Brands like PVH insists for double yarns in gassed category. Hence, company can look into these special and value added yarns. There yarns will certainly fetch 
premium over normal yarns and help to improve topline. 

Business outlook:

“Indian cotton became costlier than China Cotton Index and US cotton”

In 2020-21 India’s cotton consumption has increased due to increased demand for Indian cotton products as supply chains reshuffled in domestic and 
international markets. India is gaining its export share to USA in textiles consistently.

However, cotton crop was a major concern in 2021-22. India’s cotton crop was lower by 13 percent over last year. This has created scarcity of cotton in India.

The below cotton data from Cotton Association of India (Published on 30th September 2022).

Details 2021-22 2020-21
Supply
Opening Stock 71.84 125
Crop 307.05 353
Imports 14 10
Total Supply 392.89 488
Demand
Mill Consumption 293.00 294
Consumption by SSI Units 19 25.66
Non- Mill Consumption 6 18.5
Total  Domestic Demand 318 338.16
Available Surplus 74.89 149.84
Exports 43 78
Closing Stock 31.89 71.84

(Figures in No. of Lac bales / each bale of 170 kgs)
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Cotton crop affected in USA, Brazil, Pakistan, and India. After ban on Xinjiang cotton, China focussed on importing more cotton from international destinations. 
As India could not import cotton, domestic supply was low, which resulted to increase in cotton price. Government of India’s decision to revoke the import duty 
on cotton did not show anticipated outcome.

India’s cotton prices have doubled from ₹ 48,000 per candy (peak level price for last decade) to ₹ 108,000 per candy. China’s yuan is falling and its cotton price 
started reducing from April 2022. Thus, Indian cotton yarn prices remain costlier in the world market.

In the FY 2021-22, China cotton index was consistently higher by 25 to 30 US Cents/lb than US & Indian cotton. Gap between US cotton & Indian cotton was 
prevailing around 5 to 7 US Cents/lb. From price perspective, this is an ideal situation for Indian spinning industry in normal market conditions. But from 
January 2022 onwards, gap between Indian & US cotton started widening. In March & April 2022 yarn prices from China, Vietnam, Uzbekistan, Indonesia, 
Turkey, Pakistan etc. became more competitive than Indian yarn as international cotton prices remained lower by 10 to 20 US Cents/lb than Indian cotton price.

Below chart indicates cotton prices in last three years.

(Source: Gujcot, China Cotton Org.)

From the middle of April 2022, Indian cotton price has surpassed China Cotton Index. This has created an alarming situation for Indian spinners. India lost its 
competitiveness in the world market as China’s yarn became more competitive than Indian yarn due to its higher export rebates.

Due to unexpected reduction in China cotton index, the company lost its business in China. US cotton price is lowest in the world market. Hence, the countries 
like China, Vietnam, Pakistan & Indonesia started exporting more quantity of cotton yarn in export markets due to its improved cost competitiveness on RM 
front. Several buyers in various countries (especially Egypt) have cancelled yarn orders from India. The company lost its cotton yarn market share in the world 
market due to these reasons.

As export demand has dwindled, more yarn quantity is available for supply in domestic markets. Domestic market is not in a position to consume surplus export 
quantity. As cotton price hike is not percolating in textile value chain, lifting of yarn is slow in domestic markets. Buyers, fabric merchants / garment buying 
houses / brands are reluctant to pay requisite fabric price to fabric manufacturers. Supply is more than demand in domestic market. Yarn stocks are piling at 
several spinning mills. Majority of the spinners have reduced its operations by 30 to 50%. Due to lower demand, the company is coming under pressure to sell 
its yarns and maintain its cash flows. Thus, due to cut throat competition amongst spinners to sell its yarn and maintain liquidity, yarn prices have come down. 
Lot of spinning mills reduced their operations due to financial losses.

As yarn profit margins are eroding, the company is struggling to maintain its cash break even. The company has reduced its operations to certain extent with 
focus to retain its work force. The company has introduced alternative yarns such as Polyester/Viscose, blended yarns, fine count cotton combed yarns, carded 
yarns to reduce cotton consumption. The company is constantly introducing and establishing new markets. The company has implemented new cost saving 
measures. The company is taking utmost precaution and trying its level best to sail through this difficult period.

Due to changed business dynamics, Indian yarn stockists have started importing cotton yarn. This is proving a biggest threat to Indian spinning industry. 
Multiple impacts of cotton price hike are denting prospects of the Indian spinning industry. New crop is arriving but yarn demand is low in the market. Weavers 
and knitters feel that during December 2022 cotton prices shall come down to bottom level. Hence, buyers are maintaining bare minimum yarn inventory.

Exorbitant Indian cotton price in comparison to the world market and substantial import of yarn, survival made quite difficult. In FY 2022-23, first two quarters 
remained uncertain for yarn business. In the third quarter, cotton prices are reducing since new crop arrival has started. However, demand is a major issue in 
domestic and international markets. 

Following factors are influencing the demand. 

1)	 Ukraine / Russia war
2)	 Inflation
3)	 Fear of recession / Global economic slowdown
4)	 Covid resurgence in China and China’s zero covid policy
5)	 Currency volatility of USD / CNY / INR
6)	 USA’s Federal Bank interest rate hike / increased interest rates
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7)	 Crunch in working capital faced by domestic weaving/knitting industry due to doubled cotton prices
8)	 Cut throat competition among Indian spinners for survival

Conclusion:

Indian cotton price remains over priced in the world. The sky high cotton prices, could not translate into higher yarn prices. This forced the company to cut 
production and shift away from cotton based products to blended or manmade fiber products as a temporary measure. When the industry realized that cotton 
crop is not good, they started looking at the option of import of cotton. Unfortunately, the same could not happen because of 11% Custom Duty on Raw 
Cotton that was imposed in Union Budget 2021-22. As a result, entire spinning industry was starving of cotton and about 30-40% spinning mills decided to stop 
production rather than incurring losses. As new crop arrival started, cotton prices have eased but demand for yarn is a big concern. The buyers are reluctant to 
buy yarn and still waiting in anticipation of further reduction in cotton price. The company is trying its level best to run its operation to maximum extent, but 
market situation is beyond its control. Unstable market situation is forcing the company to reduce its operations in FY 22-23. Thus, in FY 2022-23 first three 
quarters, the company’s performance hit badly.

It is expected, that demand will pick up in domestic and export markets in the coming months. We hope that in the mid of January 2023 demand will further 
increase for yarn and profitability shall improve in the last quarter of FY 2022-23.

(e)	Risk and concerns

The Company has a robust risk management framework to identify and mitigate risks arising out of internal as well as external factors. There is a formal 
monitoring process at unit and company level, wherein new risks are identified, categorised as per impact and probability, mapped to key responsibilities 
of select managers and managed with appropriate mitigation plan. To ensure transparency and critical assessment, the Company’s Risk Management Team 
coordinates the risk management system and ensures that it continues to remain relevant with evolving economic and sectoral changes. The risk management 
framework is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board.

(f)	 Internal control system and their adequacy

In an increasingly dynamic and competitive business landscape a robust internal control mechanism is an essential business imperative. For it is a critical 
element in ensuring that the organisation functions in an ethical manner, complies with all legal and regulatory requirements and meets the generally accepted 
principles of good corporate governance. It is an extension of the overall corporate risk management framework as well as is an integral part of the accounting 
and financial reporting process.

The Company has in place adequate systems of internal controls and documented procedures covering all financial and operating functions. These have been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining proper accounting control, monitoring operational efficiency, protecting assets from 
unauthorised use or losses and ensuring reliability of financial and operational information. The internal controls are designed to ensure that financial and 
other records are reliable for preparing financial statements, collating other data and for maintaining accountability of assets.

(g)	Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance

In the first quarter of 21-22, on 17th May cyclone “Tauktae” hit the entire coastal region of Gujarat. There was a severe damage at our factory plant situated 
at Taluka Jafarabad, Lunsapur, Amreli, Gujarat due to Cyclone on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May, 2021. The company had incurred a huge financial, operational 
and material loss. However, the company could not restart its operations due to power outage at our factory and surrounding tehsils. Electrical power network 
supply was restored at our plant on 5th July, 2021.

Restorations of five units was completed in two weeks by June end and these plants started operating on resumption of HT power supply on 5th July 2021. 
Other three units started operating from 12th July onwards and by 22nd July all units were in operations.

Restoring power after a wide-area outage was a big challenge. During this period, the company focussed to control the damage and incurred repairing work 
on war footing. As supply of electrical power network supply restored, operations of the company have commenced in a phased manner. However, it took next 
several days to reach its highest capacity utilisation level and normalise the production.

Entire operations were under shut down for more than 50 days due to power outage. In addition to this 22 more days required to electrical/Mechanical/
Process/Quality calibration, machine tuning, trial run, process optimisation etc.

Below table indicates analysis of financial performance and operational performance.	 (₹ in crores)

FY Year  2021/22 / Quarter Ending MAR '22 DEC '21 SEP '21 JUN '21
Revenue 1,075.91 990.74 660.49 476.72
PBDIT 141.72 177.75 99.98 87.60
PBDIT% 13% 18% 15% 18%
Operational performance
Production achieved in mn Kgs 26.83 27.29 21.14 13.86
Production target in mn Kgs 27.90 27.90 27.90 27.90
Shortfall in production % 4% 2% 24% 50%

In quarter ending June 21, the company could not operate from 17th May to 30th June 21 due to cyclone and electricity outage (45 days ~ 50% production 
shortfall). Revenue is in line with production. 
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In quarter ending September 21, the company could not operate from 1st July to 22nd July 21 due to cyclone and electricity outage (22 days ~ 24% production 
shortfall). In addition to this, trial runs, calibration / re-establishment of quality parameters, damaged goods affected on revenue.

Thus, company’s overall financial performance is in commensurate with operational performance.

(h)	Human resource

Sintex firmly believes that its intellectual capital plays a defining role in transforming business strategies into on-ground realities and is the critical catalyst 
towards sustaining profitable business growth.

In line with this conviction, the management continues to invest in its people capital to nurture skill and build capabilities, which in turn results in sustaining 
its industry outperformance.

The Company’s business (fabric and yarn) is managed by a team comprising 5508 members who are expert in their area of operations.

Sintex believes that empowering women fosters stability and prosperity in their family and the local area. In keeping with this belief, the Company has recruited 
a number of female members for managing the operations at its yarn.

The Company is also investing in a residential colony for its workforce with contemporary amenities namely a shopping center, sports field, amphitheater, small 
cinema hall and a large mess.

(i)	 Changes in key financial ratios

The details of changes in the key financial ratios as compared to previous year are stated below:

Particulars FY 21-22 FY 20-21 Reason for Significant Change, if any
Debtors Turnover (Days) 9.30 13.17 Improvement in average collection days.
Inventory Turnover (Days) 17.73 21.65 -
Interest Coverage Ratio (Times) 0.62 0.25 Due to improve in earning during the year
Current Ratio (Times) 0.74 0.73 -
Debt Equity Ratio (Times) 6.58 4.15 Due to provision of interest on Debt upto 31st March, 2022
Operating Profit Margin (%) 16.22 11.92 Due to improve in earning during the year
Net Profit Margin (%) -18.14% -77.07% Due to improve in earning during the year
Return on Net Worth -43.48 -69.45% Due to improve in earning during the year

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this document that are not historical facts are ‘forward-looking’ statements. These ‘forward-looking’ statements may include the Company’s 
objectives, strategies, intentions, projections, expectations, and assumptions regarding the business and the markets in which the company operates. The 
statements are based on information which is currently available to us, and the Company assumes no obligation to update these statements as circumstances 
change. There may be a material difference between actual results and those expressed herein. The risks, uncertainties and important factors that could 
influence the Company’s operations and business are the global and domestic economic conditions, the market demand and supply, price fluctuations, 
currency and market fluctuations, changes in the Government’s regulations, statutes and tax regimes, and other factors not specifically mentioned herein but 
those that are common to the industry
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Report on Corporate Governance
Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance:

Corporate Governance at Sintex Industries Limited has been a continuous journey and the business goals of the Company are aimed at the overall well-being 
and welfare of all the constituents of the system. The Company has laid a strong foundation for making Corporate Governance a way of life by constituting a 
Board with a balanced mix of experts of eminence and integrity, forming a core group of top level executives, inducting competent professionals across the 
Organization and putting in place appropriate systems, process and technology.

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP):

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Ahmedabad Bench, vide order dated 6th April, 2021 (“Insolvency Commencement Order”) has initiated 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) based on petitions filed by Invesco Asset Management (India) Private Limited under section 7 of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”). Mr. Pinakin Shah having IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248 was appointed as 
Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) to manage affairs of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Code.

Further, the resolution plan submitted by Reliance Industries Limited jointly with Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited has been duly approved by 
the Committee of Creditors (CoC) members under Section 30(4) of the Code as the successful resolution plan subject to approval of Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad. 
The Interim Resolution Professional of the Company has duly filed the resolution plan as approved by the CoC on 19th March, 2022 with the Hon’ble NCLT, 
Ahmedabad Bench on 23rd March, 2022, in accordance with Section 30(6) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

As per regulations 15(2A) and (2B) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the provision 
specified 17,18,19, 20 and 21 of the SEBI Listing Regulations related to Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee respectively, shall not be applicable during the insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is 
undergoing CIRP under the Code provided that the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as specified under regulation 17 shall be fulfilled by the 
Interim Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. Hence, the status of the Board of Directors and 
Committees provided in this Report is not available.

As mentioned above, in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a company undergoing CIRP is not required to comply with various regulations hence other 
consequential requirements mentioned in regulations may not be complied with by the Company such as obligations with respect to independent directors 
(regulations 25), familiarization programme imparted to independent directors, etc.

I.	 THE CONSULATION MEETING OF  INTERIM RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL:

As per regulations 15(2A) of SEBI Listing Regulations, the provision specified 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations related to Board of Directors regarding Board 
of Directors, shall not be applicable during the insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing CIRP under the Insolvency 
Code, provided that the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as specified under regulation 17 shall be fulfilled by the Interim resolution professional 
in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency Code.

•	 Composition:

	 The Board comprises of 8 (Eight) Directors drawn from diverse fields/professions as on 31st March, 2022. Mr. Rahul A. Patel, the Chairman of the Board is  
	 Promoter and Managing Director and Mr. Amit D. Patel is Promoter and Managing Director. The Company has 6 (Six) Non-Executive Directors, out of which  
	 5 (Five) are Independent Directors and another 1 (One) is Non-Independent Director. As the Company is under CIR process, the powers of the  Board of  
	 directors of the Company stand suspended and the same are vested in and are being exercised by Mr. Pinakin Shah, the Interim resolution Professional of  
	 the Company.

	 The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 and 17A of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013  
	 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). All the Directors other than Independent Directors are liable to retire by rotation. 

	 The total number of Directorships held by the Directors and the position of Membership / Chairmanship on Committees are given below. All the Directors  
	 are compliant with the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations in this regard.

	 In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, none of the Directors are members in more than 10 (Ten) committees excluding Private  
	 Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 or act as Chairperson of more than 5 (Five) committees  
	 across all listed entities in which he/she is a Director. The Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are only considered in computation  
	 of limits. None of the Directors is a Director in more than 10 Public Limited Companies or acts as an Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies.  
	 Further all Directors have informed about their Directorships, Committee Memberships/Chairmanships including any changes in their positions. Relevant  
	 details of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2022 are given below:
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	 Directorships and Membership on Committees:

Sr.
No.

Name of the
Director Category(1)

The Consultation 
Meetings of 

Interim Resolution 
Professional during 

the FY 2021-22

Attendance
at the last

AGM

No. of
Director-
ships in 

other Public 
Companies(2)

No. of committee 
position held in

other Public 
Companies(3)

List of Directorship
held in Other Listed

Companies ( Category of 
Directorship)

Held during 
the tenure Attended AGM held on 

28.09.2021 Chairman Member

1.
Rahul A. Patel,
Chairman &
Managing Director 

Promoter 
& E.D. 5 4 Yes 4 1 2

1. Sintex-BAPL Limited (Debt 
Listed) (Executive Director)
2. Sintex Plastics Technology 
Limited (Director)
3. Sintex Prefab and Infra 
Limited (Debt Listed) 
(Executive Director)

2. Amit D. Patel,
Managing Director 

Promoter 
& E.D. 5 4 Yes 4 2 4

1. Sintex-BAPL Limited (Debt 
Listed) (Executive Director)
2. Sintex Plastics Technology 
Limited (Managing Director)
3. Sintex Prefab and Infra 
Limited (Debt Listed) 
(Executive Director)

3. Sunil Kumar Kanojia I & N.E.D. 5 Nil Yes - - - Not Applicable
4. Pratit Patel (5) I & N.E.D. 5 Nil Yes - - - Not Applicable
5. Keerti L. Lachhwani (5) I & N.E.D. 5 Nil Yes 1 - - Not Applicable
6. Premnarayan R. Tripathi (5) I & N.E.D. 5 Nil Yes - - - Not Applicable
7. Yogesh S. Ghatge (5) I & N.E.D. 5 Nil Yes - - - Not Applicable
8. Jayesh H. Khatsuria N.E.D. 5 Nil Yes 1 - - Not Applicable

	 Notes:
	 (1)	 Category: 
		  I & N.E.D. – Independent and Non-Executive Director
		  N.E.D. – Non-Executive Director
		  E.D. – Executive Director
	 (2)	 The Directorships held by the Directors, as mentioned above excludes alternate directorships, directorships in foreign companies, Companies under  
		  Section 8 of the Act and Private Limited Companies, which are not the subsidiaries of Public Limited Companies.
	 (3)	 Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of Public Limited Companies.
	 (4)	 None of the Directors have any inter-se relationship among themselves or with any employee of the Company.
	 (5)	 Mr. Pratit A. Patel (DIN: 07841812) & Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi (DIN: 06818747) have  given their resignation as Independent Directors of the  
		  Company with effect from 20th  October, 2022. Further, Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge (DIN: 08755299) & Mrs. Keerti Laxman Lachhwani (DIN : 08757712) have  
		  given their resignation as Independent Directors of the Company with effect from 27th October, 2022. Also, Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi, Mr. Yogesh S.  
		  Ghatge and Mrs. Keerti Laxman Lachhwani have filed e-form DIR-11 with the Registrar of the Companies, notice of their resignation as Independent  
		  Directors of the Company. The Interim resolution Professional will put the notice of resignation of said directors before the Committee of Creditors  
		  (CoC) for their approval pursuant to relevant provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016.

•	 Core Skills/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of Directors:

	 Matrix setting out core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for an  
	 efficient functioning and those actually available with the Board and individual Board members:

Areas of Skills/expertise
required Description

Skills/expertise 
actually available

with the Board

Name of Directors having 
skills/expertise

Global Business Understanding of diverse business environment, global dynamics 
across various geographical markets, industry verticals and regulatory 
jurisdictions.

Yes 1.	 Rahul A. Patel
2.	 Amit D. Patel
3.	 Sunil Kumar Kanojia
4.	 Jayesh Khatsuria
5.	 Premnarayan R. Tripathi

Textile Industry domain Hands on experience on Textile industry including sourcing, 
manufacturing, marketing and business development

Yes 1.	 Rahul A. Patel
2.	 Amit D. Patel
3.	 Jayesh Khatsuria

Technology/Digital A strong understanding of technology and innovation, and the 
development and implementation of initiatives to enhance production

Yes 1.	 Rahul A. Patel
2.	 Amit D. Patel
3.	 Pratit A. Patel
4.	 Sunil Kumar Kanojia
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Financial and Management 
accounting

Comprehensive understanding of financial and management 
accounting and reporting as well as controls and analysis

Yes 1.	 Rahul A. Patel
2.	 Amit D. Patel
3.	 Premnarayan R. Tripathi

Strategic Planning and 
management

Ability to think strategically, identify and assess strategic opportunities 
and threats in light of organisation’s strengths and weaknesses, 
appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices, experience in 
guiding and leading management teams to make decisions in uncertain 
environments.

Yes 1.	 Rahul A. Patel
2.	 Amit D. Patel
3.	 Pratit A. Patel
4.	 Sunil Kumar Kanojia
5.	 Premnarayan R. Tripathi
6.	 Yogesh S. Ghatge

Sales, Marketing & Brand 
building

Experience in developing strategies to grow sales and market share, 
build brand awareness and brand  equity and enhance enterprise value 
and reputation

Yes 1.	 Rahul A. Patel
2.	 Amit D. Patel
3.	 Pratit A. Patel
4.	 Sunil Kumar Kanojia

Risk Management and 
Regulatory Compliance

Regulatory framework knowledge, ability to identify key risks to the 
Company in a wide range of areas  including legal and regulatory 
compliance and taking effective steps for risk mitigation

Yes 1.	 Rahul A. Patel
2.	 Amit D. Patel
3.	 Premnarayan R. Tripathi
4.	 Yogesh S. Ghatge

Corporate Governance, 
ethics and values

Experience in development and application of corporate governance 
practices and principles, serving and balancing the best interests of 
all stakeholders, maintaining accountability and responsibilities of 
Board, and management, building long-term and effective stakeholders 
engagements, driving corporate ethics and values.

Yes 1.	 Rahul A. Patel
2.	 Amit D. Patel
3.	 Sunil Kumar Kanojia
4.	 Premnarayan R. Tripathi
5.	 Yogesh S. Ghatge

•	 Independent Directors confirmation by the Board

	 All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR)  
	 Regulations and Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 All the independent directors fulfill the conditions of independence specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the  
	 SEBI (LODR) Regulations and they are also independent of the management.

•	 Reasons for resignation of Independent Director who resigns before the expiry of tenure :

	 During the year under review, there was no change in Independent Director of the Company.

•	 Responsibilities:

	 The Board of Directors represents the interest of the company’s shareholders, in optimising long-term value by providing the management with guidance  
	 and strategic direction on the shareholders’ behalf. The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its consideration and decision, which includes  
	 reviewing corporate performance, ensuring adequate availability of financial resources, regulatory compliance, safeguard interest of shareholders and  
	 reporting to shareholders.

•	 The Consultation Meetings of  Interim Resolution Professional:

	 As the Company is under CIR process, the powers of the board of directors of the Company stand suspended and the same are vested in and are being  
	 exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional. Therefore, instead of Board Meeting, the Consultation Meetings were called and chaired by Interim  
	 Resolution Professional of the Company. However, five meetings were called by Interim Resolution Professional during the financial year 2021-22 to approve  
	 financial statements, review and discuss the performance of the Company. The dates on which the Meetings of Interim Resolution Professional were held  
	 on 29th June, 2021, 13th August, 2021, 25th September, 2021, 29th October, 2021 and 4th February, 2022.

•	 Information placed before the meeting:

	 The Company provides the information as set out in Regulation 17 read with Part A of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations to the IRP and the IRP to  
	 the extent it is applicable and relevant. Such information is submitted either as part of the agenda papers in advance of the respective Meetings or by way  
	 of discussions during the Meetings. 

•	 Familiarisation Programme:

The objective of a familiarisation programme is to ensure that the Independent directors are updated on the business environment and overall operations of 
the Company. This enables the Independent directors to make better informed decisions in the interest of the Company and its stakeholders.

In compliance with the requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has put in place a familiarization programme for the Independent Directors to 
familiarize them with their role, rights and responsibility as Directors, the working of the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, 
business model, etc.

The details of programmes for familiarisation of Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the 
industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company and related matters are put up on the website of the Company at the link:http://
www.sintex.in/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/SIL_familiarisation_programe_for_independent_directors.pdf

As the Company is under CIRP, such familiarisation programme was not conducted for non-executive directors during the year under review. 
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COMMITTEES OF DIRECTOTRS:

The provisions as specified in regulations 18, 19, 20 and 21 were not applicable during the insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity 
which is undergoing corporate insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency Code provided that the roles and responsibilities of the committees specified 
in the respective regulations shall be fulfilled by the interim resolution professional of the Company.

II.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE:

	 The Audit Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors in accordance with the requirement of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and  
	 Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

	 The Audit Committee, as on the date of commencement of CIRP, consists of Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi, Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge, Mr. Pratit A. Patel, 
	 Mr.  Sunil Kumar Kanojia and Mr. Amit D. Patel. Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi, the Chairperson of the Committee was an Independent, Non-executive  
	 Director and had a strong financial and accounting background with immense experience. All the members of the Committee were financially literate  
	 and the composition of Committee was in accordance with the regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  
	 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 Notes: Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi (DIN: 06818747) and Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge (DIN: 08755299) have  given their resignation as Independent Directors of the  
	 Company with effect from 20th October, 2022 and 27th October, 2022 respectively. Also, Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi and Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge have filed  
	 e-form DIR-11 with the Registrar of the Companies, notice of their resignation as Independent Directors of the Company. The Interim resolution Professional  
	 will put the notice of resignation of said directors before the Committee of Creditors (CoC) for their approval pursuant to relevant provisions of Insolvency  
	 and Bankruptcy Code 2016.

	 Meeting and attendance during the year:

	 As the powers of the Board of Directors and committees thereof were suspended from the date of commencement of corporate insolvency resolution  
	 process with effect from 6th April, 2021, the Role of Audit Committee has been performed by the Interim Resolution Professional of the Company. 

Terms of Reference:

The role of audit committee included the following which is being exercised by Interim Resolution Professional of the Company.

The broad terms of reference of Audit Committee are as under:

1.	 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct,  
	 sufficient and credible;
2.	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;
3.	 Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors;
4.	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular  
	 reference to:
	 a)	 Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of  
		  Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.
	 b)	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
	 c)	 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the management.
	 d)	 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
	 e)	 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
	 f)	 Disclosure of any related party transactions.
	 g)	 Qualifications in the draft audit report.
5.	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval;
6.	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.),  
	 the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring  
	 agency, monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this  
	 matter;
7.	 Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
8.	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
9.	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
10.	Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
11.	Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
12.	Reviewing, with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;
13.	Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official  
	 heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;
14.	Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
15.	Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into  matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of  
	 internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;
16.	Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area  
	 of concern;
17.	To look into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of  
	 declared dividends) and creditors;
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18.	To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;
19.	Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;
20.	Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
21.	Reviewing financial statements, in particular the investments made by the Company’s unlisted subsidiaries.
22.	Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the  
	 asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments.
23.	Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its share  
	 holders.

Review of Information by Interim Resolution Professional:

The following information was reviewed interim resolution professional of the Company;

1.	 The Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations.
2.	 Statement of significant related party transactions submitted by management.
3.	 Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors.
4.	 Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

III.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee had been constituted by the Board of Directors in accordance with the requirement of section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

(i)	 Composition:

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, as on the date of commencement of CIRP, consists Mr. Pratit Patel, Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi, Mr. Yogesh  
	 S. Ghatge and Mr. Jayesh Khatsuria. Mr. Pratit A. Patel, the Chairperson of the Committee was an Independent, non-Executive Director. The composition of  
	 committee was in compliance with Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the  
	 Companies Act, 2013.

	 Notes:	Mr. Pratit A. Patel (DIN: 07841812) & Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi (DIN: 06818747) have given their resignation as Independent Directors of the  
	 Company with effect from 20th October, 2022. Further, Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge (DIN: 08755299) has given his resignation as Independent Director of the  
	 Company with effect from 27th October, 2022. Also, Mr. Premnarayan R. Tripathi and Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge have filed e-form DIR-11 with the Registrar of the  
	 Companies, notice of their resignation as Independent Directors of the Company. The Interim resolution Professional will put the notice of resignation of  
	 said directors before the Committee of Creditors (CoC) for their approval pursuant to relevant provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016.

(ii)	Meeting and attendance during the year:

	 As the powers of the Board of Directors and committees thereof were suspended from the date of commencement of corporate insolvency resolution  
	 process with effect from 6th April, 2021, the Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been performed by the Interim Resolution Professional  
	 of the Company.

	 Term of Reference:
	 The broad terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:

	 (a)	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy,  
		  relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;
	 (b)	Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
	 (c)	 Devising a policy on Board diversity;
	 (d)	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down,  
		  and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.
	 (e)	 To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or  
		  modification, as may be applicable.
	 (f)	 To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.
	 (g)	 To extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent  
		  directors.
	 (h)	To recommend / review remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and Whole-time Director(s) based on their performance and defined assessment  
		  criteria.
	 (i)	 To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

•	 Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors:

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee had laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors of the Company. The Criteria  
	 was set based on Profiles, experience, contribution dedication, regularity, aptitude, preparedness & participation, team work and contribution of each  
	 Director to the growth of the Company. An indicative list of factors that may be evaluated include participation and contribution by a director, commitment,  
	 effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, effective management of relationship with stakeholders, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and  
	 independence of behavior and judgement.
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Remuneration Policy

•	 Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors:

	 The Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of Sitting Fees and Commission. The Non-Executive Directors are paid Sitting Fees for each  
	 Meeting of the Board or Committee as attended by them.

	 The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are being paid an amount of sitting fees as follows:

1. Board Meeting ₹ 84,500/- per meeting
2. Audit Committee Meeting ₹ 40,000/- per meeting
3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings ₹ 15,000/-  per meeting

	 Executives Directors are not being paid sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board of Directors/Committees. Other than sitting fees, there were no  
	 material pecuniary relationships or transactions by the Company with the Non-Executive and Independent Directors of the Company.  

	 As the Company is under CIRP, no sitting fees was paid to non-executive directors of the company during the year.

•	 Remuneration to Executive Directors:

	 The Company pays remuneration to its Executive Directors by way of salary, perquisites and allowances (a fixed component) and commission (a variable  
	 component) in accordance with provision of the Schedule V read with other provisions of the Act, as approved by the Members. 

	 The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee approves the annual increments. The Board fixes a ceiling on perquisites  
	 and allowances as a percentage of salary. Within the prescribed ceiling, the perquisite package is recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration  
	 Committee. Commission is calculated with reference to the net profits of the Company in a particular financial year and is determined by the Board of  
	 Directors at the end of the financial year based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, subject to the overall ceiling as  
	 stipulated in Section 197 of the Act.

	 As the Company is under CIRP, no remuneration was paid to Executive Directors of the company during the year.

(iii)	 Service contract, severance fees and notice period

	 The appointment of the Managing Directors are governed by the Articles of Association of the Company and the Resolution passed by the Board of Directors  
	 and the Shareholders of the Company.

	 No separate Service Contract is entered into by the Company with the Managing Directors.

	 There is no separate provision for payment of severance fee under the resolutions governing the appointment of the Managing Directors. 

	 Perquisites include house rent allowance; leave travel allowance, gas & electricity, medical and premium for personal accident insurance, contribution to  
	 provident fund, superannuation fund and gratuity. 

	 The appointment of the Managing Directors is for a period of 5 years. 

IV.	 STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

	 The Stakeholders Relationship Committee had been constituted by the Board of Directors in accordance with the requirement of section 178 of the  
	 Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

	 Terms of Reference:
	 (a)	 Oversee and review all matters connected with the transfer of the Company’s securities.
	 (b)	Monitor redressal of investors’ / shareholders’ / security holders’ grievances.
	 (c)	 Oversee the performance of the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents.
	 (d)	Recommend methods to upgrade the standard of services to investors.
	 (e)	 Carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced by any statutory notification / amendment or modification as may  
		  be applicable.
	 (f)	 Resolve the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual  
		  report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.
	 (g)	 Review measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.
	 (h)	Review adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer  
		  Agent.
	 (i)	 Review the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of  
		  dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

	 The  Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board comprises of Mr. Pratit A. Patel, Mr. Rahul A. Patel, Mr. Amit D. Patel and Mr. Yogesh Ghatge. 
	 Mr.  Pratit A. Patel, Independent Director being Chairperson of the Committee. The constitution and terms of reference of Stakeholders’ Relationship  
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	 Committee of the Company are in compliance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

	 Notes:	Mr. Pratit A. Patel (DIN: 07841812) & Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge (DIN: 08755299) have  given their resignation as Independent Directors of the Company with  
	 effect from 20th October, 2022 and 27th October, 2022 respectively. Also, Mr. Yogesh S. Ghatge has filed e-form DIR-11 with the Registrar of the Companies,  
	 notice of his resignation as Independent Director of the Company. The Interim resolution Professional will put the notice of resignation of said directors  
	 before the Committee of Creditors (CoC) for their approval pursuant to relevant provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016.

	 Meeting and attendance:

	 As the powers of the Board of Directors and committees thereof were suspended from the date of commencement of corporate insolvency resolution  
	 process with effect from 6th April, 2021, the Role of Stakeholders and Relationship Committee has been performed by the Interim Resolution Professional  
	 of the Company..

•	 Details of Share Holders’ Complaints received and redressed during the year 2021-22:

Opening Balance Received during the year Resolved during the year Closing Balance
0 51 14 37

	 Note : The Company has resolved all pending 37 complaints successfully as on date.

•	 Investors’ Grievance Redressal Cell:

	 The Company has designated the Company Secretary as the compliance officer of the investors’ grievance redressal cell. For the purpose of registering  
	 complaints by investors, the Company has designated an e-mail ID - share@siltex.co.in . 

V.	 SHARE AND DEBENTURE TRANSFER COMMITTEE:

	 The Board of Directors has delegated the power of approving transfer/transmission of shares/dematerialization/rematerialisation of shares and debentures/ 
	 issue of duplicate certificates, split up / sub-division and consolidation of shares, sub-division and other related formalities to the Share and Debenture  
	 Transfer Committee comprising of Mr. Rahul A. Patel as Chairperson of Committee and Mr. Amit D. Patel as Member of Committee. As the powers of the  
	 Board of Directors and committees thereof were suspended from the date of commencement of corporate insolvency resolution process with effect from  
	 6th April, 2021, the roles and responsibilities of the Share and Debenture Transfer Committee was fulfilled by the Interim resolution professional of the  
	 Company.

	 7 Meetings of the said Committee were held during the Financial Year 2021-22, which were attended by Mr. Pinakin Shah, Interim Resolution Professional  
	 and Mr. Hitesh T. Mehta, Company Secretary of the Company.

VI.	GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

F.Y. Meeting and Venue Day, Date and Time Special Resolutions passed
2018-19 88th Annual General Meeting 

At Registered office: Kalol (N.G.) 382721
Monday, 30th September, 2019
10.30 a.m.

i)  Issue of Unsecured / Secured Redeemable’
    Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds by way of
    private placement

2019-20 89th Annual General Meeting 
At Registered office: Kalol (N.G.) 382721

Monday, 28th September, 2020.
04:00 p.m.
(through video conferencing / other audio 
visual means)

N.A.

2020-21 90th Annual General Meeting 
At Registered office: Kalol (N.G.) 382721

Tuesday, 28th September, 2021, 
04.00 p.m. (through video conferencing / 
other audio visual means)

N.A.

	 No resolution was passed through Postal Ballot during the Financial Year 2021-22, hence disclosure under this section is not applicable.

	 Whether any resolutions are proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: 

	 There is no immediate proposal for passing any resolution through Postal Ballot. None of the business proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annual  
	 General Meeting require passing a resolution through Postal Ballot.

VII.	SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

	 BVM Overseas Limited is the only material unlisted Indian subsidiary company. 

	 The financial statements, in particular the investments made by the unlisted subsidiary company are reviewed quarterly by the Interim Resolution  
	 Professional of the Company, the minutes of the meetings of subsidiary company are placed before the Company’s consultation meetings regularly.

	 The Interim Resolution Professional also reviews statement containing all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiary company.

	 The policy for determining Material Subsidiary as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link:http://www.sintex.in/wp- 
	 content/uploads/2019/04/SIL_Latest-material-subsidiary-policy-1.pdf
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VIII.	 Credit Rating:

	 During the year, there is no change in its credit rating. BWR has assigned “BWR D” rating for Company’s Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs).

IX.	OTHER DISCLOSURES:

	 (i)	 Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions:
		  No transaction of material nature has been entered into by your Company with any related parties as per Accounting Standard that may have any  
		  potential conflict with the interests of your Company. The related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial section of Annual Report. The  
		  Interim Resolution Professional reviewed the related party transactions undertaken by the Company in the ordinary course of business.

	 (ii)	 Details of non-compliance by the Company:
		  There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matters related to various capital markets or penalties imposed on the Company by  
		  the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority during the last 3 financial years.
 
	 (iii)	Code of Conduct:
		  The Company has formulated and implemented a Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company, which is  
		  also posted on the website of the Company.

		  Requisite annual affirmations of compliance with the respective Codes have been made by the Directors and Senior Management of the Company.

	 (iv)	CEO and CFO Certification:
		  The IRP and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company give annual certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board/Interim  
		  Resolution Professional in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The IRP and the Chief Financial Officer also give quarterly certification  
		  on financial results while placing the financial results before the meeting in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

	 (v)	 Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by Designated Persons:
		  Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by Designated Persons, as approved by the Board of Directors, inter alia, prohibits purchase /  
		  sale of securities of the Company by Designated Persons, while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company.

	 (vi)	Compliance with the Mandatory Requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations:
		  The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the SEBI Listing Regulations  
		  and has also updated its website under Regulation 46(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. It has obtained a certificate affirming the compliances from M/s.  
		  Chirag Shah and Associates, a firm of company secretaries in practice, the Company’s Secretarial Auditors and the same is attached to this Report. 

	 (vii)	Whistle Blower Policy:
		  The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism in line with the requirements under the Act and  
		  the SEBI Listing Regulations:
		  •	 For employees to report concerns about unethical behavior;
		  •	 To establish a mechanism to report to the management, concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Integrity  
			   Policy; and
		  •	 To ensure that adequate safeguards shall be provided to the whistle blowers against any victimization or vindictive practices like retaliation, threat  
			   or any adverse (direct or indirect) action on their employment and direct access to the Interim Resolution Professional in exceptional cases. The  
			   Policy also ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained whilst dealing with concerns and also that no discrimination will be meted out to any  
			   person for a genuinely raised concern.

		  No personnel/ person have been denied access to the Interim Resolution Professional. During the year under review, there were no cases pertaining to  
		  Whistle Blower Policy.	

	 (viii)	 Policy on materiality of and dealing with Related Party Transactions approved by the Interim Resolution Professional is uploaded on the Company’s  
		  website at the link: http://www.sintex.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/6_related-party-transaction-policy-SINTEX_04.02.2022.pdf 

	 (ix)	Pursuant to regulation 43A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board  
		  approved a Dividend Distribution Policy at its meeting held on July 28, 2016. The policy details various considerations based on which the Board may  
		  recommend or declare Dividend, current dividend track record, usage of retained earnings for corporate actions, etc. The policy is available on the  
		  Company’s website at http://sintex.in/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/Dividend_Distribution_Policy.pdf

	 (x)	 The disclosure of commodity exposures in terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated 15th, November, 2018 is  
		  annexed to this report as Annexure - 1

	 (xi)	Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A). Not  
		  Applicable

	 (xii)	A certificate has been received from M/s. Chirag Shah & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, that none of the Directors on the Board of the  
		  Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,  
		  Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority, is annexed to this report as Annexure – 2.
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	 (xiii)	Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditors and all entities in the network firm/ 
		  network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part,

		  The details of total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis to the Statutory Auditors and all the entities in  
		  the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part, for the financial year 2021-22 are as follows:

Sr. No. Name of Statutory Auditors Nature of services Fees paid (₹ in Lakhs)
1 M/s. R. Choudhary and Associates,

Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Other Certification fees

10.00
1.00

6.625
                                                                                                                                Total 17.625

	 (xiv)	Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year,  
		  the same to be disclosed along with reasons thereof :

		  As the company was under CIRP, where the powers of board of directors and committees thereof exercised by the Interim Resolution professional, this  
		  clause is not applicable.

	 (xv)	Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 :

		  Status of complaints as on 31st March, 2022:

Sr. No. Particulars Number of complaints
1 Number of Complaints filed during the financial year 0
2 Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year N.A.
3 Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year N.A.

	 (xvi) Others :
		  The Company has a comprehensive and integrated risk management framework to effectively deal with uncertainty and associated risks and enhances  
		  the organisation’s capacity to build value. The Risk Management framework of the Company has been designed with an objective to develop a risk  
		  culture that encourages identifying risks and responding to them with appropriate actions.

X.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

	 (i)	 Financial Results: The annual, half yearly and quarterly results are published in Financial Express (Gujarati) (Ahmedabad Edition) and Financial Express  
		  (English) (All Editions).

	 (ii)	 All quarterly results are also posted on our website -www.sintex.in 

	 (iii)	The company’s website www.sintex.in contains a separate dedicated Section on Investors’ Relation, where shareholder information is available. The  
		  Annual Report of the Company is also available on the website in a user-friendly and downloadable form.

	 (iv)	The management discussion and analysis report is attached with the Directors’ Report in this Annual Report.

	 (v)	 Press Releases made by the Company from time to time are also displayed on the Company’s website- www.sintex.in .

	 (vi)	Corporate presentations made to institutional investors or to analysts are posted on the Company’s website- www.sintex.in .

XI.	GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

1.	 91st  Annual General Meeting

Day, date and time Monday, 26th December, 2022, 4:00 p.m. IST
Venue The Company is conducting meeting through VC / OAVM pursuant to the circulars issued by MCA and SEBI and as 

such there is no requirement to have a venue for the AGM. For details please refer to the Notice of this AGM.
Book closure dates 20-12-2022 to 26-12-2022

2.	 Financial Calendar

	 The Company follows the period of 1st April to 31st March, as the Financial Year. For the Financial year 2022-23, Financial Results will be announced as per  
	 the following tentative schedule:

1st quarter ending on 30th June, 2022 Second week of August, 2022
2nd quarter ending on 30th September, 2022 Second week of November, 2022
3rd quarter ending on 31st December, 2022 Second week of February, 2023
Year ending on 31st March, 2023 Third week of May, 2023

	 Dividend: As the Company is under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Company has not recommended dividend on the equity shares of  
	 the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22.
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	 Listing on Stock Exchanges (As on 31st March, 2022):

Stock Exchanges /Type of Instruments/ Stock Code Address Telephone No.
BSE Limited (BSE)
Equity Shares
*Equity – 502742

25th Floor, P.J. Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001 022 - 22721233/34

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE)
Equity Shares
* Equity – Sintex EQ

Exchange Plaza, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051

022 - 26598235/36
022 - 26598346

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (“FCCB”)
ISIN: XS1414094927
Stock Code: SINTEX IND US$110M7%CB220525

2 Shenton Way
# 19 – 00 SGX Center 1
Singapore 068804

00 65-6236 8888

BSE Limited
Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures (“NCD’s”)
952870 – ₹ 250.00 Cr.
950353 – ₹ 112.50 Cr.
951037 – ₹ 137.50 Cr.

25th Floor, P.J. Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001 022 - 22721233/34

	 * Stock code 

	 International Securities Identification Number (ISIN)

	 ISIN is an identification number for traded shares. This number needs to be quoted in each transaction relating to the dematerialized equity shares of the  
	 Company. Your Company’s ISIN number for its equity shares is INE429C01035.

	 Payment of Listing Fees and Depository Fees

	 Annual listing fee for the year 2021-22 has been paid by the Company to BSE and NSE. Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2021-22 has been paid by the  
	 Company to CDSL and NSDL. 

3.	 Location of the depositories

Depository Address Telephone No.

National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) Trade World, 4th Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400 013 022 - 24994200

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) Marathon Futurex, A-Wing, 25th floor, NM Joshi Marg, 
Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013 022 - 2302 3333

4.	 Market Price Data

	 The share price data of the Company from 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022 as compared to BSE Sensex and CNX Nifty are as follows:

Month
BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Share Price SENSEX Share Price CNX Nifty
High (₹) Low (₹) High Low High (₹) Low (₹) High Low

April, 2021 3.89 3.23 50375.77 47204.50 3.95 3.25 15044.35 14151.40
May, 2021 3.94 3.30 52013.22 48028.07 3.95 3.25 15606.35 14416.25
June, 2021 5.83 3.60 53126.73 51450.58 5.65 3.60 15915.65 15450.90
July, 2021 5.04 4.25 53290.81 51802.73 5.00 4.25 15962.25 15513.45
August, 2021 4.80 3.51 57625.26 52804.08 4.80 3.50 17153.50 15834.65
September, 2021 4.44 3.50 60412.32 57263.90 4.45 3.50 17947.65 17055.05
October, 2021 5.63 4.14 62245.43 58551.14 5.60 4.10 18604.45 17452.90
November, 2021 14.09 5.91 61036.56 56382.93 13.45 5.85 18210.15 16782.40
December, 2021 18.58 9.39 59203.37 55132.68 18.50 9.10 17639.50 16410.20
January, 2022 20.45 9.00 61475.15 56409.63 20.35 9.00 18350.95 16836.80
February, 2022 11.39 7.69 59618.51 54383.20 11.45 7.65 17794.60 16203.25
March, 2022 9.30 7.82 58890.92 52260.82 9.25 7.75 17559.80 15671.45
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5.	 Performance in comparison to broad based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL index, etc.

6.	 Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2022:

No. of Shares held (Face 
Value of ₹ 1/- each)

Shareholders Shares
Number % of total Number % of total

Up to 5000 435977 96.23 248773270 41.51
5001 – 10000 9760 2.15 74825118 12.49

10000 – 15000 2701 0.60 33707524 5.63
15001 – 20000 1429 0.32 26210161 4.37
20001 – 25000 833 0.18 19341920 3.23
25001 – 50000 1408 0.31 51163058 8.54
50001 & Above 932 0.21 145196911 24.23

Total 453040 * 100.00 599217962 100.00

	 *  The shareholding of the promoter and promoter group, public shareholder and non-public non-promoter shareholder has been consolidated on the basis  
	 of the PAN as per SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2017/128 dated December 19, 2017. Accordingly, there is difference in no. of shareholders  
	 mentioned in Shareholding Pattern and Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2022.
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7.	 Categories of Shareholders as on March 31, 2022:

Category No. of Shares held % of Shares held No. of Shareholders % of Share Holders
Promoters Holding 27181127 4.54 15 0.00
Residential Individuals 524037777 87.46 433928 97.91
Financial Institutions/Banks 15236 0.00 9 0.00
Mutual Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00
NRIs /Foreign Nationals 14716871 2.46 3068 0.69
FIIS/FPI/Foreign Company 776622 0.13 6 0.00
Domestic Companies/Bodies Corporate 14290370 2.38 739 0.17
Trusts/Clearing Members/Others 16254198 2.71 5437 1.23
Investor Education and Protection Fund 905714 0.15 1 0.00
Insurance Companies 1040047 0.17 2 0.00
TOTAL 599217962 100.00 443205 100.00

8.	 Dematerialization of Shares:

	 The Equity Shares of Sintex Industries Ltd are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form. A total number of 59,72,81,291 Equity Shares of the Company  
	 constituting about  99.68% of the subscribed and paid-up share capital were in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2022. 

9.	 Suspension of trading in equity shares:

	 The Company’s Equity Shares has been suspended for trading to avoid market complications as per BSE Notice No. 20220321-66 dated 21.03.2022 and NSE  
	 Notice no. 0323/2021 dated 21.03.2022. 

10.	Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity:

	 (a)	 Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs):

	 The Company has raised USD 110 million step down foreign currency convertible bonds (FCCBs) due 2022. The bondholders are entitled to apply for equity  
	 shares at a price of ₹ 92.16 (reset pursuant to meeting of FCCB Committee of the Board of Directors on 14th September, 2016) per share with a fixed rate  
	 of exchange on conversion of ₹ 67.4463 to USD 1.  Outstanding FCCBs pending for conversion as on 31st March, 2022 is USD 6.50 Million. After conversion  
	 of aforesaid FCCBs, paid up capital of the Company will increase by 47,56,970 equity shares of ₹ 1/- each amounting to ₹ 47.57 Lacs.

11.	Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA): 

	 Share transfers, dividend payment and all other investor related matters are attended to and processed by our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent viz. 
	 M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited.

	 M/s Bigshare Services Private Limited
	 A-802, Samudra Complex, Near Klassic Gold Hotel,
	 Off C.G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380009.
	 Tel No.: 079-40024135
	 Email : bssahd@bigsharconline.com 
	 Website : www.bigsharconlinc.com 

12.	Transfer of unclaimed/unpaid amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund:

	 Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules,  
	 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), dividend, if not claimed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are  
	 liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”).

	 Further, all the shares in respect of which dividend has remained unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more from the date of transfer to unpaid  
	 dividend account shall also be transferred to IEPF Authority. The said requirement does not apply to shares in respect of which there is a specific order of  
	 Court, Tribunal or Statutory Authority, restraining any transfer of the shares.

	 In the interest of the shareholders, the Company sends individual communication to the shareholders to claim their dividends in order to avoid transfer of  
	 dividends/shares to IEPF Authority. Notices in this regard are also published in the newspapers and the details of unclaimed dividends and shareholders  
	 whose shares are liable to be transferred to the IEPF Authority, are uploaded on the Company’s website www.sintex.in

13.	Share Transfer System

	 However, as per SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and further amendment vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/ 
	 GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 2018, requests for effecting transfer of securities (except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall not  
	 be processed from April 1, 2019 unless the securities are held in the dematerialised form with the depositories. Therefore, Shareholders are requested to  
	 take action to dematerialize the Equity Shares of the Company, promptly.
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	 Nomination :

	 Individual shareholders holding shares singly or jointly in physical form can nominate a person in whose name the shares shall be transferable in case of  
	 death of the registered shareholder(s). Nomination facility in respect of shares held in electronic form is also available with the Depository Participants as  
	 per the bye-laws and business rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL. Nomination forms can be obtained from the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer  
	 Agent.

14.	Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

	 A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out reconciliation of share capital audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities  
	 Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Ltd (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. The reconciliation of share  
	 capital audit report mentions that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of  
	 dematerialized shares held with NSDL & CDSL, as depositories.

	 The Company has also obtained Certificate confirming due compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI  
	 Listing Regulations for half year ended 31st March, 2022 from a Practicing Company Secretary and submitted the same to the stock exchanges within  
	 stipulated time.

	 Plant Locations:

	 The Company’s plants are located at Kalol (N.G.) and Taluka Jafarabad, Amreli District, Lunsapur (Gujarat).

XII.	Address for Correspondence/ Investor Relationship Cell:

	 All Communications may be sent to Company Secretary at the following address:

	 Sintex Industries Limited
	 7th Floor, Abhijit Building-I, Mithakhali Six Road. Ellisbridge,
	 Ahmedabad - 380006,Gujarat
	 Email : share@siltex.co.in
	 Telephone No. : +91-6358855979

XIII.	Name and contact details of Debenture Trustees:

	 Vistra ITCL (India) Limited
	 The IL&FS Financial Center
	 Plot No. C–22, G Block, 7th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex
	 Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051
	 Tel: +91 22 2659 3535 
	 Fax : +91 22 2653 3297
	 Email : mumbai@vistra.com
	 Website : https://vistraitcl.com

XIV.	Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) (Debt Instruments)

	 Link Intime India Private Limited
	 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1),
	 Beside Gala Business Centre, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Corner,
	 Off C. G. Road, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006.
	 Tel.: 079-2646 5179, 079-3000 2684/85,
	 E-mail : ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in

XV.	Non-mandatory Requirements:

	 The non-mandatory requirements have been adopted to the extent and in the manner as stated under the appropriate headings detailed below:

	 •	 Reporting of Internal Auditor

	 The Internal Auditors of the Company regularly report their findings of the internal audit to the Interim resolution Professional.

	 Declaration:
	 It is hereby declared that the Company has obtained affirmation from all the Members of the Board and Senior Management personnel that they have  
	 complied with the “Code of Conduct and Ethics for Board Members and Senior Management” for the year ended on 31st March 2022.

					   
				    On behalf of the Board (suspended during CIRP)

			   Pinakin Shah
Place: Ahmedabad	 Interim Resolution Professional
Date: 7th November, 2022	 (IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248)
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Annexure - 1
Disclosure of commodity exposures as required under the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

1.	 Risk management policy of the listed entity with respect to commodities including through hedging :

	 The Company is managing commodity risk through team and competence building by creating a pool of commodity specialist. Specialist team, through its  
	 ground presence, Market research, and close co-ordination with vendors understand the market and manages the risk of commodity prices.

	 In agricultural commodity market, cotton is more prone to fluctuations and volatility. India is the largest cotton producing country in the world. Gujarat is  
	 the largest cotton producing state and Amreli is a largest cotton producing district in the state. The Company has set up its spinning unit in the cotton belt  
	 and Gujarat’s largest cotton producing district, Amreli. Hence, the Company predominantly uses local cotton to produce its yarns in the product basket.

	 Quality of cotton fibres affects spinning performance and quality of products. Hence, the Company’s prime importance and highest priority is to pay  
	 attention towards procurement and quality management of cotton bales.

2.	 Exposure of the listed entity to commodity and commodity risks faced by the entity throughout the year:

	 a)	 Total exposure of the listed entity to commodities in INR
	 b)	 Exposure of the listed entity to various commodities:

Commodity 
Name

Exposure in INR 
towards the particular 

Commodity

Exposure in Quantity 
terms towards the 

particular commodity

% of such exposure hedged through commodity derivatives
Domestic market International market

Total
OTC Exchange OTC Exchange 

Cotton ₹ 2126.33 Crores 
(Approx.)

11,87,48,656 Kgs. 
(Approx.) Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

	 c)	 Commodity risks faced by the listed entity during the year and how they have been managed :

		  We at Sintex are conscious about the challenges posed by Cotton as an agri-commodiy inter-alia from both agronomic as well as economic developments.  
		  The assessment of cotton volatility in terms of price, quantity and quality is a challenging task. However, the company is pro-actively connected to  
		  ground realities, which helps to tackle the price volatility in a better manner. The Company has embarked upon the following broad strategy to mitigate  
		  and control the variable posed by the price volatility.

	 1.	 Team and competence building – Established a pool of cotton specialists:
		  •	 The company has created the focus group of cotton specialist with wide and long experience in cotton both globally as well as in Indian market. 
		  •	 These groups are working on the company’s front end and evaluates cotton situation by first-hand information at field and ginners levels. They  
			   contribute to the procurement strategy by getting information on regular basis.

	 2.	 On the ground presence:
		  •	 Crop Survey: The Company is conducting structured field visit and crop survey in major cotton producing areas, to assess the company’s own cotton  
			   plant estimation and likely demand-supply situation. The ginner and other vendor supply chain base associated with the company over time helps  
			   to get on real-time ground information from field to market.
		  •	 Similarly, the team keeps tab on the global cotton exporting countries like USA, Brazil, Australia, and also some of the African countries to take stock  
			   of the situation first hand both from the point of view of assessing their practices, strategy and fundamentals including supply and quality prospects. 
		  •	 Over the period, the company has developed strong networking and supplier relations with the leading cotton growers in USA like JG Boswell,  
			   Auscott and Queensland cotton in Australia, Olam, leading cotton trader from Africa, Israel cotton board in Israel, Group Amaggi and Groupo Bom  
			   Futuro in Brazil to name a few. Similarly, the company has developed business relations with large multinational commodity companies, like  
			   Allenberg, Dryfuss, Glencore, Otto Stadlander, Reinhart, Olam, Ecom again to name a few. These networking and business tie up helps the company  
			   to get the global market information on real time basis.

	 3.	 Market research approach: Apart from the domestic markets, the company constantly keep a track the global prices both physical as well as on ICE  
		  futures, ZCE futures, MCX futures combined with the crops emerging from Northern, Southern hemisphere including Franco zone.

	 4.	 Efficient and reliable vendor base: Due care and structured process approach is taken to take on board the reliable and competent global as well as  
		  domestic vendor base with due diligence. This helps the company to ensure that contractual obligations are adhered to including timely and quality  
		  deliveries.

	 5.	 Collaborated approach: Importantly, the company has followed collaborated approach from demand side to end user perspective to pre-assess its  
		  future quality/quantities needs of cotton. Regular interaction with different stakeholders is undertaken within the company to achieve the benefit of  
		  collective wisdom.
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Risk mitigation:

The Company is managing commodity risk through team and competence building by creating a pool of commodity specialist. Specialist team, through its 
ground presence, Market research, a close co-ordination with vendors, understand the market and manages the risk of commodity prices.

This year the company has not procured imported cotton and the company relied on domestic Indian cotton. 

Sintex’s cotton procurement team effectively carried out crop surveys and frequent visits to ginners in the local vicinity to monitor cotton price and quality 
aspects. The company could interact with cotton growers, ginners due to location of the Company’s spinning unit in the heart of cotton producing area. The 
team also assessed buying trends by leading mills, cotton quoted prices by exporters, financial situation of the ginners, close co-ordination with vendors and 
cotton arrival trends etc. Procurement head kept vigil on the price trends by taking help of market research and online commodity database of various agencies.
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Annexure - 2
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Kalol - 382721, 
Dist. Gandhinagar, Gujarat.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED having 
CIN L17110GJ1931PLC000454 and having registered office at Dist. Gandhinagar, Kalol, Gujarat, 382721 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced 
before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.
mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, the application made by Financial Creditor has been 
admitted under the provision of Corporate insolvency Resolution Process under the IBC Code 2016 and board is under Suspension Mode.
 
We hereby certify that none of the below Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified by any statutory Authorities in writing.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company

1 Mr. Amit Dineshchandra Patel 00171035 21/10/1993

2 Mr. Rahul Arunprasad Patel 00171198 21/10/1993

3 Mr. Sunil Kumar Kanojia 00490259 30/10/2017

4 Mr. Premnarayan Ramanand Tripathi 06818747   23/12/2020

5 Mr. Yogesh Sakharam Ghatge 08755299   23/12/2020

6 Mr. Pratit Ashvinbhai Patel 07841812 13/11/2019

7 Mr. Jayesh Hasmukhrai Khatsuria 08626274 07/12/2019

8 Ms. Keerti Laxman Lachhwani 08757712   25/06/2020

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

		
	 For, Chirag Shah and Associates

	 CS Chirag Shah
	 Partner
	 FCS No.: 5545
	 CP No.: 3498
Place: Ahmedabad	 UDIN : F005545D000369260
Date: 23rd May, 2022	 Peer Review. Cer No- 704/2020    
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To,
The Members of
Sintex Industries Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sintex Industries Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2022 
as stipulated in the applicable regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, pursuant to the Listing 
Agreement of the Company with the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to a review of procedures and 
implementations there of adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the applicable regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the Efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
					   
				    For, Chirag Shah and Associates

	 CS Chirag Shah
	 Partner
	 FCS No.: 5545
	 CP No.: 3498
Place: Ahmedabad	 UDIN : F005545D000369293
Date: 23rd May, 2022	 Peer Review. Cer No- 704/2020    

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CERTIFICATION BY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)
Pursuant to Clause 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

This is to certify to Board that-

A.	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

	 (1)	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

	 (2)	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs   and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable  
		  laws and regulations.

B.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative  
	 of the Company’s code of conduct.

C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that We have evaluated the effectiveness of internal  
	 control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and We have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design  
	 or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which We are aware and the steps We have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D.	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

	 (1)	 significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

	 (2)	 significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

	 (3)	 instances of significant fraud of which We have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a  
		  significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

			   For Sintex Industries Limited	 For Sintex Industries Limited

			   Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye
Place: Ahmedabad	 Interim Resolution Professional	 Chief Financial Officer
Date: 23rd May, 2022	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Sintex Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Auditor’s Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sintex Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st 
March 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the 
year then ended, on that date and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind As”) and 
other  accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, Loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash 
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

i.	 We draw attention to Note 19(i) to the standalone financial statement, with respect to continuing default in payment of dues and Company under CIRP, most  
	 of the lenders have sent notices / letters recalling their loans given and called upon the Company to pay entire dues and other liabilities. Further, the  
	 Committee of Creditors has approved the Resolution Plan submitted by Reliance Industries Limited jointly with Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise  
	 Limited under CIRP on 19.03.2022. The IRP has submitted Resolution Plan before Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad for its approval. As on date approval of  
	 Resolution Plan is pending before Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad. Hence in view of the said facts & considering the matter of prudence, whole of the long term  
	 borrowing outstanding as on 31st March,2022 has been classified as current borrowings. 

ii.	 We draw attention to Note 35 to the standalone financial statement, which states that the company’s credit rating has been downgraded (Company’s credit  
	 rating is “BWR D” from Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd. for Non-Convertible Debentures), which may substantially impair its ability to raise or generate  
	 funds to repay its obligations. As mentioned in the same note, the company has defaulted in debt obligation of debentures aggregating to ₹ 500.00 Crores  
	 for the period April,19 to 6th April,2021 (date of admission in Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) apart from other credit facilities. However, Company  
	 has made provision for interest for the period April,2019to March,2022. Further, Company’s inability to meet its obligation in relation to the payment of  
	 certain letters of credit which led to devolvement and consequent over utilization of the cash credit facilities availed by the Company, delay in payment  
	 of certain term loan instalments as well as interest thereof. Further, as described in said Note, although the Company submitted various Resolution Plans to  
	 lenders on various dates, the Punjab National Bank filed petition before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Ahmedabad under Section 7 of  
	 Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 for initiating Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the company in December,2019. Petition for  
	 initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 filed against the Company by Invesco  
	 Asset Management (India) Private Limited (Financial Creditor) for default amount of ₹ 15,00,00,000/- (Principal amount) has been admitted against the  
	 Company vide Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench order dated 06.04.2021. Mr. Pinakin Shah (having registration no. IBBI/IPA- 
	 002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248) has been appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by the Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad  
	 Bench under Section 13(1)(c) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and moratorium period under Section 14 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code  
	 2016 is declared.

iii.	 We draw attention to Note 36 to the standalone financial statement, result with respect to impairment of assets. As described in the said note, the company  
	 has discontinued the manufacturing operations of structured fabrics (except bleaching facility) at Kalol effective from 1st July, 2019 on account of high cost  
	 of operations. The management of the company has assessed that any provision needs to be recognised on account of the impairment of assets in respect  
	 of property , plant and equipment of its Textile Division. The higher of Textile Division assets fair value (less cost of disposal) and its value in use as per  
	 valuation report obtained from approved valuer as on 30th September,2020 and is found lower than its carrying amount as per books of accounts of the  
	 company and hence the Company has recognised impairment loss of ₹ 426.64 crores for the year 2020-21. Therefore, the impairment loss has been shown  
	 under “Exceptional Item”. 

iv.	 We draw attention to Note 37 to the standalone financial statement, with respect to USD 110 Million Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds due 2022 (FCCBs)  
	 raised by the Company, there are USD 6.5 Million FCCBs outstanding for conversion as on 31st March, 2022.Further, the Company has defaulted in payment  
	 of Interest amounting to USD 0.64 Million for the period 25th May,19 to 31st March,2022.

v.	 We draw attention to Note 42 to the standalone financial statement, with respect to recognition of deferred tax assets. As stated in the said Note, deferred  
	 tax asset has not been recognized in view of losses during the year.
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vi.	 We draw attention to Note 43 to the standalone financial statement, with respect to spending on Corporate Social responsibility. As stated in the said Note,  
	 company is not liable to spent anything on it as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vii.	We draw attention to Note 49 to the standalone financial statement, with respect to realization of subsidies aggregating to ₹ 469.34 crores outstanding as at  
	 31st March, 2022 including interest subsidy of ₹ 210.96 Crores. As per the information and explanations furnished to us, IRP and the suspended management  
	 is taking necessary actions for realization of these subsidies and as stated in the said Note, IRP has also filed application in NCLT Ahmedabad for recovery of  
	 power and GST subsidies.

viii.	We draw attention to Note 52 to the standalone financial statement, with respect to confirmation of balances. As stated in the said note confirmation of  
	 balances (other than related party) in respect of amounts due from trade receivables, capital advances given and loans and advances granted as well  
	 as for the amounts due to/payables to trade payables have not been obtained and/or received by the company and, therefore, these balances remained  
	 unconfirmed.

ix.	 We draw attention to Note 54 to the standalone financial result with respect to expected quantum of loss is approximately ₹ 115.00 crores on account of  
	 Cyclone Tauktae. Till 31.03.2022 the Company has incurred expenses of ₹ 83.11 crore (including loss of inventory of ₹ 21.02 crores and advance of 
	 ₹ 5.07 Cr) for restoration of plant which was damaged due to Cyclone Tauktae on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May, 2021. As on 31.03.2022 the Company  
	 has recovered ₹ 16.64 crores by realization of salvage value of damaged materials and ₹ 1 crore as advance against insurance claim on 17.03.2022 from  
	 Insurance Company. Accordingly, as on 31.03.2022 net amount of ₹ 65.47 crores shown under the head “Other Current Assets - Advances recoverable  
	 in cash or kind” and not debited to Statement of Profit & Loss account, considering loss / damage is covered by the Insurance. Process of claiming insurance  
	 is going on. Further, out of 65.47 crores receivable from Insurance Company on account of Insurance claim of Cyclone Taukate, the Company has received  
	 ₹ 24.98 crores as on 25.04.2022 and ₹ 1 crores as on 27.04.2022 as advance against insurance claim.

x.	 We draw attention to Note 55 to the standalone financial result wherein it is mentioned that- the Company continuously monitoring the Covid situation  
	 & accordingly managing the operations of the Company. The Company plant was operational for whole year including period of 2nd & 3rd wave of Covid  
	 19 by taking precautionary steps. Further, during first quarter ended 30th June 2021, there is severe damage at our factory plant situated at Taluka Jafarabad,  
	 Lunsapur, Amreli, Gujarat due to Cyclone Tauktae on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May, 2021. The loss / damage is covered by the Insurance. Process of claiming  
	 insurance is going on. Plant of the Company was not operational due to non availability of electricity at our factory plant due to damage of Cyclone Tauktae.  
	 Electricity was restored at our plant on 05th July, 2021 and operations of the Company have commenced in a phased manner and achieved 95% capacity as  
	 on date.

xi.	 We draw attention to Note 56 to the standalone financial statement, wherein it is mentioned that The Company has outstanding advances of ₹ 531.91  
	 crores receivables from Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited. Petition for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Section 7 of the Insolvency and  
	 Bankruptcy Code 2016 filed against Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited by Bank of Baroda (Financial Creditor) has been admitted vide Honourable National  
	 Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench order dated 24.02.2021. The Company has submitted claims of ₹ 531.91 crores to Mr. Chandra Prakash Jain  
	 (IRP of Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited) on 16.03.2021. However admission of claim yet to be confirmed by IRP of Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited.

xii.	We draw attention to Note 57 to the standalone financial statement, with respect to insurance claim receivable. The insurance claim receivable includes  
	 insurance claim of ₹ 23.11 crores of F.Y. 2016-17 is outstanding as on 31st March,2022. The insurance company has repudiated claim pertaining to FY 
	 2016 - 17. Management of company has filed reply against the same and is hopeful of settling the claims in full. The Company has initiated legal proceedings  
	 against the same.

xiii.	We draw attention to Note 58 to the standalone financial statement, with respect to defaulted in repayment of principal and interest payments. The period  
	 and amount of continuing default as on the Balance sheet date are as under:
				    (₹ in Crores)

Name of lenders Principal Interest Period of Continuing Default Start Month
Banks / NBFCS
Punjab National Bank (Including Oriental Bank of Commerce & United Bank of India)        1,437.98 235.38 May-19
Punjab Sind Bank           321.74 80.10 May-19
Bank of India           540.77 172.90 May-19
Bank of Baroda (Including Dena Bank & Vijaya Bank)           856.31 297.82 May-19
Canara Bank (Including Syndicate Bank)           514.73 107.37 May-19
Central Bank of India           295.49 90.90 Jun-19
Union Bank of India (Including Andra Bank)           574.63 193.56 May-19
South Indian Bank           238.00 87.61 May-19
Karnataka Bank             95.21 31.70 May-19
IDBI Bank             73.08 26.39 Jun-19
State Bank of India           159.93 84.53 Aug-19
Axis Bank Ltd             82.42 24.01 Jun-19
Canbank Factors Limited               5.54 1.52 Jun-19
The Federal Bank Limited             13.28 3.40 Jun-19
UCO Bank Limited               0.42 0.11 Jun-19
Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank             75.81 16.77 Oct-19
DZ Bank AG           261.07           18.10 Oct-19
       5,546.41       1,472.17  
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Financial Institutions    
Export Import Bank of India           436.76          166.25 Jun-19
          436.76          166.25  
Non-Convertible Debentures          500.00          149.57 Jun-19

xiv.	We draw attention to Note 60 to the standalone financial statement, with respect to the Resolution Plan submitted by Reliance Industries Limited jointly  
	 with Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited has been approved by CoC. As per the said approved Resolution Plan there may be impairment of  
	 assets of the Company. However, as on date impact of the same is not considered in the financial statements as the Resolution Plan is pending before  
	 Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad for approval. Once the Resolution Plan is approved by Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad, the necessary effect of impairment of assets if  
	 any will be done in the financial statement as part of implementation of the Resolution Plan.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors and Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Board’s Report and Annexure to Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

Management’s and Interim Resolution Professional’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statement	
	
The Company’s Board of Directors and IRP is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures  
	 responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material  
	 misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,  
	 or the override of internal control.
•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under  
	 section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in  
	 place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether  
	 a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we  
	 conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements  
	 or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s  
	 report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements  
	 represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of  
	 section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of  
		  our audit.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

	 (c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow  
		  Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with  
		  Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the  
		  directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

	 (f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness  
		  of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

	 (g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as  
		  amended:

		  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration has not been paid by the  
		  company to its directors  during the year is in accordance with provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

	 (h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,  
		  as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements – Refer Note no 51 to the standalone  
			   financial statements;

		  ii.	 Provision has been made in the financial statements, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses,  
			   if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

		  iii.	There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor’s education and protection fund by the company.
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		  iv.	 (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either  
			   from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including  
			   foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly  
			   or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)  
			   or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		  iv	 (b) The management has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the company from any  
			   person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the  
			   company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the  
			   Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		  iv.	 (c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that  
			   has caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

		  v.	 Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

				    For, R Choudhary & Associates
				    Chartered Accountants
				    Firm Regn. No: 101928W

				    K M Chaudhary
				    (Partner)
Place : Ahmedabad	 M. No.: 133388
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 UDIN : 22133388AJKVJK2276
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(i)	 Fixed Assets

	 a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situtation of fixed assets.

	 b)	 The Company has a program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment  
		  in a phased manner, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its property, plant and equipment.  
		  Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the  
		  information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the title deeds and other records examined by us, we report that the title deeds in respect  
		  of all the immovable properties comprising of freehold land and buildings are held in the name of the Company except in respect of freehold lands  
		  having aggregate cost of ₹ 438.91 Crores, for which documents in favor of the Company are not executed as at end of the year. (Refer Note - 4.2 and 53  
		  to Standalone financial statements)

	 d)	 The company has not revalued its Property , Plant and Equipments and Intangible assets durint the year.

	 e)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinations of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings  
		  initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,1988 and rules  
		  made thereunder.

(ii)	 Inventories

	 (a)	As explained to us, the inventories, were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies  
		  were noticed on physical verification.

	 (b)	According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has been admitted under CIRP as per Honable NCLT, Ahmedabad order dated  
		  6th April, 2021. Accordingly, Clause 3(ii)(b) is not applicable to the Company.

(iii)	Loans given 

	 According to Information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any Secured or unsecured loan to companies, firms, Limited Liability  
	 Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting under clause 3 (iii) (a), (b)  
	 and (c) does not arise.

(iv)	Compliance of Sec. 185 & 186

	 In our openion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the compnay has complied with the provisions of sections 185 & 186 of the  
	 companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(v)	 Public Deposit

	 According to Information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year and in respect of  
	 unclaimed deposits, the company has complied with the proviosn of section 73 to 76 or any other relevent provisons of the copmanies Act, 2013.

(vi)	Cost Records

	 The company is maintaining the cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act in respect  
	 of service carried out by the company. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records  
	 and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the  
	 opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however not made a detailed examination of the cost  
	 records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)	Statutory Dues

	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

	 a)	 The Company has generally been regular in depositing its undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax,  
		  Customs duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

	 b)	 No undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the  
		  date they became payable. 

ANNEXURE A - to the Independent Auditors’ Report
for the period ended March 2022
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the Heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our 
Report of even date)
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	 c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, excise duty, and Goods and Service Tax on account  
		  of any dispute, which have not been deposited.

(viii)	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinations  of the records of the company, the Company has not  
	 surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as  
	 income during the year.

(ix)	(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has defaulted in repayment of dues to banks, financial  
	 institutions and debenture holders. Lender wise details of defaults in repayment of borrowing (Term Loan & Working Capital) and interest are given below.
				    (₹ in Crores)

Name of lenders Principal Interest Period of Continuing Default Start Month
Banks / NBFCS
Punjab National Bank (Including Oriental 
Bank of Commerce & United Bank of India) 1,437.98 235.38 May-19
Punjab Sind Bank 321.74 80.10 May-19
Bank of India 540.77 172.90 May-19
Bank of Baroda (Including Dena Bank 
& Vijaya Bank) 856.31 297.82 May-19
Canara Bank (Including Syndicate Bank) 514.73 107.37 May-19
Central Bank of India 295.49 90.90 Jun-19
Union Bank of India (Including Andra Bank) 574.63 193.56 May-19
South Indian Bank 238.00 87.61 May-19
Karnataka Bank 95.21 31.70 May-19
IDBI Bank 73.08 26.39 Jun-19
State Bank of India 159.93 84.53 Aug-19
Axis Bank Ltd 82.42 24.01 Jun-19
Canbank Factors Limited 5.54 1.52 Jun-19
The Federal Bank Limited 13.28 3.40 Jun-19
UCO Bank Limited 0.42 0.11 Jun-19
Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank 75.81 16.77 Oct-19
DZ Bank AG 261.07 18.10 Oct-19
 5,546.41 1,472.17
Financial Institutions
Export Import Bank of India 436.76 166.25 Jun-19
 436.76 166.25
Non-Convertible Debentures 500.00 149.57 Jun-19

	 (b)	Accordig to the information available on credit information companies, two lenders banks has declared the Company as wilful defaulter (Refer note  no.  
	 58 of to Standalone financial statements). 

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinations of the records of the company, we report that no short  
	 term funds has been used for long term purpose during the year.

	 (d)	According to the information and explanations given to us and  on an overall exminations of the financial statement of the company, we report that the  
	 Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Act. The  
	 Company does not hold any investment in any associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31st March,2022.

(x)	 (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument) any term loans during the period  
	 under audit therefore, Clause 3 (x)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

	 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinations of the records of the company, the Company has not  
	 made any preferential allotement or private placement of shres or fully or partly convertible debentues during the year. Accordingly Clause 3(x)(b) is not  
	 applicable to the company.

(xi)	(a)Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements and as per the information  
	 and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the company by its officers or employees has been  
	 noticed or reported during the year.

	 (b) According to the infromation and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in  
	 Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 14 with the Central Government during the year.

	 (c) We have not taken into consideration whistle blower compliants received by the Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and  
	 extent of our audit procedures.
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(xii)	The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable. 

(xiii)	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section  
	 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial  
	 statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(xiv)	(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion the Company has an internal audit system commensurate  
	 with the size and nature of its business.

	 (b) We have considered the internal audit report of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

(xv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year,  the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions  
	 with its directors or persons connected with him and hence paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xvi)	(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the  
	 Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly Clause 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) is not applicable to the company.

	 (b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company(CIC) as defined under the reguations made by the reserve bank of india hence  Clause 3(xvi)(c) and  
	 3(xvi)(d) is not applicable to the company.

(xvii)	 The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financia year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly Clause 3 (xviii) of the Order is not appliable to the company.

(xix)	The company has been admitted under CIRP  proceding by Honable NCLT , Ahmedabad dated 6th April, 2021 hence clause 3(xix) is not applicable to the  
	 company.

(xx)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount of CSR under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of  
	 the Act pursuant to any project. Hence Clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) is not applicable to the Company.

				    For, R Choudhary & Associates
				    Chartered Accountants
				    Firm Regn. No: 101928W

				    K M Chaudhary
				    (Partner)
Place : Ahmedabad	 M. No.: 133388
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 UDIN : 22133388AJKVJK2276
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ANNEXURE B - to the Independent Auditors’ Report
of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of Sintex Industries Limited.
(Referred to in Paragraph 2(F) under the Heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our 
Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of Sintex Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 2022 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on, “the internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference 
to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2022, based on, “the internal control with reference to 
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

				    For, R Choudhary & Associates
				    Chartered Accountants
				    Firm Regn. No: 101928W

				    K M Chaudhary
				    (Partner)
Place : Ahmedabad	 M. No.: 133388
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 UDIN : 22133388AJKVJK2276
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(₹ in crores)

Particulars Note As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
I ASSETS

Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4  7,042.47  7,303.51 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5  1,066.00  1,066.25 
(c) Intangible assets 6  0.83  1.60 
(d) Financial assets
      (i) Investments 8  38.38  40.16 
(e) Other non-current assets 9  392.56  387.30 
(f) Non-current tax assets (net) 10  4.11  2.03 
Total non-current assets  8,544.35  8,800.85 

Current assets
(a) Inventories 11  308.65  146.19 
(b) Financial assets
      (i)    Investments  -    -   
      (ii)  Trade receivables 12  336.24  128.24 
      (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13  26.61  20.05 
      (iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 14  -    -   
      (v)  Loans 15  73.50  67.53 
(c) Other current assets 16  880.96  697.18 
Total current assets  1,625.96  1,059.19 
TOTAL ASSETS  10,170.31  9,860.04 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17  59.92  59.92 
(b) Other equity 18  1,244.70  1,814.48 
Total equity  1,304.62  1,874.40 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 19  -    -   
(b) Provisions 20  3.25  4.37 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 21  - -
Total non-current liabilities  3.25  4.37 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
     (i)  Borrowings 22  6,670.47  6,532.61 
     (ii) Trade payables
           (a) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise 23  6.53  3.47 
           (b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprise 23  171.43  107.37 
     (iii) Other financial liabilities 24  2,006.71  1,329.68 
(b) Other current liabilities 25  5.09  2.85 
(c) Provisions 26  2.21  5.29 
Total current liabilities  8,862.44  7,981.27 
Total liabilities  8,865.69  7,985.64 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  10,170.31  9,860.04 

See accompanying notes 1 to 64 to the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For R Choudhary & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Sintex Industries Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 101928W	 L17110GJ1931PLC000454

K M Chaudhary	 Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
Partner	 Interim Resolution Professional	 CFO	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 133388	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248		

Place : Ahmedabad	 Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 Date : 23rd May, 2022
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SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(₹ in crores)

Particulars Note For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

I Revenue from operations 27  3,126.50  1,689.15 

II Other Income 28  77.36  55.01 

III Total Income (I+II)  3,203.86  1,744.16 

Expenses:

(a) Cost of materials consumed 29  2,191.00  1,110.24 

(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in- progress 30  (71.31)  5.21 

(c) Employee benefits expense 31  163.94  134.40 

(d) Finance costs 32  812.04  794.92 

(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 7  262.31  281.75 

(f) Other expenses 33  413.18  292.97 

IV Total expenses  3,771.16  2,619.49 

V Profit /(Loss) before tax and Exceptional Items (III-IV)  (567.30)  (875.33)

VI Exceptional Items 34  -    426.64 

VII Profit /(Loss) before tax  (V-VI)  (567.30)  (1,301.97)

VIII Tax expense:

(a) Current tax expense  -    -   

(b)Short/(Excess) provision of tax for earlier years  (0.00)  (0.15)

(c) Deferred tax charge/(credit)  -    -   

 (0.00)  (0.15)

IX Profit after tax for the year (VII-VIII)  (567.30)  (1,301.82)

Other comprehensive income

A   (i)  Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

          (a) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income  (1.78)  0.08 

          (b) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans  (0.70)  (0.59)

     (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of
           Profit and Loss

 -    -   

B  (i)  Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss  -    -   

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Statement of
          Profit and Loss

 -    -   

X Other comprehensive income for the year (A(i+ii)+B(i+ii)  (2.48)  (0.51)

XI Total Comprehensive income for the year  (IX+X)  (569.78)  (1,302.33)

XII Earnings per share (face value of ₹ 1/- each):

(a) Basic (in ₹) 44  (9.47)  (21.88)

(b) Diluted (in ₹) 44  (9.47)  (21.88)

See accompanying notes 1 to 64 to the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For R Choudhary & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Sintex Industries Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 101928W	 L17110GJ1931PLC000454

K M Chaudhary	 Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
Partner	 Interim Resolution Professional	 CFO	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 133388	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248		

Place : Ahmedabad	 Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 Date : 23rd May, 2022



60

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

(₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

A Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and Exceptional Item  (567.30)  (875.33)
Adjustments for:
Unrealised Forex (Gain)/Loss  (1.03)  0.75 
Provision for advances and Subsidy and Bad Debts written off  -    21.04 
Interest income  (4.24)  (8.50)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  262.31  281.75 
Finance cost  812.04  794.92 
Operating profit before working capital changes  501.78  214.64 
Adjustments for increase/decrease in Operating Assets/ Liabilities:
Trade receivables, loans and other assets  (396.69)  (77.71)
Inventories  (162.46)  (27.10)
Trade payables, other liabilities and provisions  67.57  (60.31)
Cash generated from operations  10.20  49.52 
Direct taxes (paid)/Refund  (2.07)  45.02 
Net cash generated from operations (A)  8.13  94.54 

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment/addition to capital-work-in progress(net)  (0.26)  (0.63)
Interest received  4.24  8.59 
Net cash used in investing activities (B)  3.98  7.96 

C Cash flow from financing activities
Repayments of long term borrowings  -    (8.39)
Interest Paid  (5.39)  (85.25)
Dividend paid  (0.16)  (0.19)
Net cash genereted from financing activities (C )  (5.55)  (93.83)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  6.56  8.67 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  20.05  11.38 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  26.61  20.05 

Notes:				  
1.	 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7
	 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

2.	 Cash and cash equivalents comprises of				     (₹ in crores) 
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
(a) Balance with banks  25.77  18.37 
(b) Cash on hand  0.22  0.57 
(c) Bank deposits with upto 3 months maturity  0.04  0.38 

 26.03  19.32 
Other bank balances 
 Earmarked balances with banks
- Unclaimed dividend accounts  0.58  0.73 

 0.58  0.73 
Cash and cash equivalents in Cash flow statement  26.61  20.05 

As per our report of even date attached

For R Choudhary & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Sintex Industries Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 101928W	 L17110GJ1931PLC000454

K M Chaudhary	 Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
Partner	 Interim Resolution Professional	 CFO	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 133388	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248		

Place : Ahmedabad	 Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 Date : 23rd May, 2022
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SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A.  Equity Share Capital				    (₹ in crores)

Particulars Amount
Balance as at 1st April,2020  59.41 
Changes in equity share capital during the year  0.51 
Balance as at March 31, 2021  59.92 
Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2022  59.92 

B.  Other equity				    (₹ in crores)

Particulars

Equity 
component 

of compound 
financial 

instruments 
(FCCBs)

Reserves and surplus
Item of other 

comprehensive 
income

Total
Securities 
premium 

Debenture 
redemption 

reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Equity instruments 
through other 

comprehensive 
income

Balance as at April 1, 2020  -    1,116.01  111.03  428.58  1,424.05  (9.56)  3,070.11 
Profit for the year  (1,301.82)  (1,301.82)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of income tax -Equity Instruments through Other 
Comprehensive income

 -    -    -    -    -    0.08  0.08 

Premium on conversion of FCCBs  46.70  46.70 
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan  -    -    -    -    (0.59)  -    (0.59)
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year  -    -    -    -    (1,302.41)  0.08  (1,255.63)
Transfer to FCCBs  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Balance as at March 31, 2021  -    1,162.71  111.03  428.58  121.64  (9.48)  1,814.48 
Profit for the year  (567.30)  (567.30)
Premium on conversion of FCCBs  -    -   
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of income tax -Equity Instruments through Other 
Comprehensive income

 -    -    -    -    (1.78)  (1.78)

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan  (0.70)  -    (0.70)
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year  -    -    -    -    (568.00)  (1.78)  (569.78)
Balance as at March 31, 2022  -    1,162.71  111.03  428.58  (446.36)  (11.26)  1,244.70 

As per our report of even date attached

For R Choudhary & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Sintex Industries Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 101928W	 L17110GJ1931PLC000454

K M Chaudhary	 Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
Partner	 Interim Resolution Professional	 CFO	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 133388	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248		

Place : Ahmedabad	 Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 Date : 23rd May, 2022
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1.	 General Information

	 Sintex Industries Limited (“the Company”) is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of yarn.

	 Sintex Industries Limited is a public limited company incorporated in India on June 01, 1931 under the Companies Act, 1956 and listed on the Bombay Stock  
	 Exchange and National Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is at Kalol (North Gujarat) – 382 721, India. The Textile Division of the  
	 company is situated at Kalol (N.G) and its Yarn Division is situated at Village Lunsapur, Talu: Jafrabad, Dist: Amreli.

2.	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

I.	 Basis of preparation and Compliance with Ind AS

	 These standalone financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been prepared in accordance with the Indian  
	 Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting  
	 Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (collectively called as Ind AS).

II.	 Basis of measurement

	 The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except  
	 for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value, as required by relevant Ind AS.

	 1.	 Derivative financial instruments

	 2.	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

	 3.	 Defined benefit plans

III.	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All financial information presented  
	 in Indian Rupees has been rounded to the nearest lakhs with two decimals.

IV.	 Current and Non-current Classification

	 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current classification.

	 An asset is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following criteria:

	 a)	 It is expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in the Company’s normal operating cycle,
	 b)	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
	 c)	 It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
	 d)	 It is a cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

	 All other assets are classified as non-current.

	 A liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following criteria:

	 a)	 it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle,
	 b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
	 c)	 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period
	 d)	 there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability beyond twelve months after the reporting period

	 The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

	 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has  
	 identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

3.	 Standard Accounting Policy

I.	 Revenue recognition

	 The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of yarn. 

	 Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that  
	 reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

	 The Company recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale. 

	 The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and  
	 payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

	 The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if any one of the following criteria is met.

	 1.	 The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance; or
	 2.	 The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or
	 3.	 The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an enforceable right to payment for  
		  performance completed to date.

	 For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the performance  
	 obligation is satisfied.     

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

	 Dividend and interest income

	 Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established (provided that it is probable that  
	 the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably). 

	 Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can  
	 be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,  
	 which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount  
	 on initial recognition.

	 Subsidy income

	 Income from Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidy will be received and all  
	 attaching conditions will be complied with.

II.	 Leases

	 Transition

	 Effective April 01, 2019, the company adopted Ind AS 116 “leases” and applied the standard to all applicable lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using  
	 the modified retrospective method with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised on the date of initial application. Accordingly,  
	 company has not restated comparative information and recognised right of use assets at an amount equal to lease liability.

	 The Company’s lease asset primarily consists of leases for building & Land. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of  
	 a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for  
	 consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract  
	 involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease  
	 and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

	 Company as a lessee

	 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease  
	 arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term  
	 and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense.

	 The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or  
	 prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated  
	 depreciation and impairment losses.

	 Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the  
	 underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts  
	 may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. The higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in- 
	 use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In  
	 such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the  
	 interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding  
	 adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

	 Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and finance cost portion of lease payments have been classified as  
	 financing cash flows.

	 Company as a lessor 

	 At the inception of the lease, the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company recognizes lease  
	 payments received under operating leases as income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

III.	 Foreign currency translations

	 The functional currency of the Company has been determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which it operates. The functional  
	 currency of the Company is INR. 

	 In preparing the standalone financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign  
	 currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items  
	 denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in  
	 foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms  
	 of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

	 Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences  
	 on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they  
	 are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

	 The Company has decided to continue the policy adopted for accounting for exchange differences arising from translation of long-term foreign currency  
	 monetary items recognised in the standalone financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial  
	 reporting period as per the previous GAAP i.e. exchange differences relating to long term foreign currency monetary items in so far as they relate to  
	 acquisition of depreciable capital assets is adjusted to the cost of such capital asset and depreciated over the balance useful life of such asset.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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IV.	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial  
	 period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for  
	 their intended use or sale.

	 All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

V.	 Employee Benefits

	 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

	 Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the  
	 contributions. For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with  
	 actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the  
	 changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of financial position  
	 with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive  
	 income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period  
	 of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.  
	 Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

	 •	 service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
	 •	 net interest expense or income; and
	 •	 remeasurement

	 The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item employee benefits expenses. Curtailment gains  
	 and losses are accounted for as past service costs. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the statement of financial position represents the actual  
	 deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits  
	 available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans. A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the  
	 earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring costs.

	 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

	 A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is  
	 rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

	 Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange  
	 for the related service.

	 Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected  
	 to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

VI.	 Taxation  

	 Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

	 Current tax

	 Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions  
	 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

	 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax  
	 liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset  
	 in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the standalone financial statements and  
	 the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.  
	 Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available  
	 against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference  
	 arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor  
	 the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Company is able to  
	 control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax  
	 assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable  
	 that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the  
	 foreseeable future.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that  
	 sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,  
	 based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

	 The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects,  
	 at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022

	 For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets on non-depreciable assets the carrying amounts of such properties are  
	 presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the  
	 deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

	 Current and deferred tax for the year

	 Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relating to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or  
	 directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

VII.	 Property, plant and equipment

	 The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the standalone financial  
	 statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition and hence  
	 regarded thereafter as historical cost.

	 The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other  
	 than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use,  
	 including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and  
	 equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs  
	 are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure is capitalized as the activities undertaken improves the economic benefits expected to arise from  
	 the asset. 

	 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued  
	 use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between  
	 the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under construction account. At the point when an asset is operating at management’s  
	 intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences. Costs  
	 associated with the commissioning of an asset and any obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalized where the asset is available for use but incapable  
	 of operating at normal levels until a period of commissioning has been completed. Revenue generated from production during the trial period is capitalized. 

VIII.	Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.  
	 Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and Amortisation method are reviewed at the  
	 end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful  
	 lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

IX.	 Depreciation and amortization 

	 Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is provided on  
	 buildings and plant & machinery on a straight-line method and in case of other tangible assets, on written-down value method over the estimated useful  
	 lives of the assets as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except for plant and machinery, where the life has been  
	 assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the plant and machinery, the estimated usage of the plant and machinery, the  
	 operating conditions of the plant and machinery, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance  
	 support, etc. The useful lives of plant and machinery has been estimated as 22 years and 30 years for different categories as technically determined.

	 When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific  
	 useful lives. 

	 Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives on straight line method. The amortization rates used for intangible assets are as under:

Class of assets Years
Software 5 years

	 Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease, except where the lease is convertible to freehold land under  
	 lease agreements at future dates at no additional cost.

	 The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is  
	 accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

X.	 Impairment of non-current assets

	 At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is  
	 any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to  
	 determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company  
	 estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be  
	 identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating  
	 units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

	 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there  
	 is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

	 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted  
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	 to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset  
	 for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

	 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash- 
	 generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the  
	 relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

	 Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its  
	 recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment  
	 loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of  
	 Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation  
	 increase.

XI.	 Inventories

	 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs  
	 including manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost of raw materials, traded goods and  
	 stores and spares are ascertained on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated  
	 costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

XII.	 Financial Instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of  
	 financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss) are added to  
	 or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

	 A.	 Financial assets

	 a)	 Recognition and initial measurement

		  i)	 The Company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issues and subordinated liabilities on the date on which they  
			   originate. All other financial instruments (including regular purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised on the trade date, which is the  
			   date on which the Company became a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or liability is initially measured at fair  
			   value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

		  ii)	 In case of investments in subsidiaries, the Company has chosen to measure its investments at deemed cost.

		  iii)	 The Company has elected to apply the requirements pertaining to Level III financial instruments of deferring the difference between the fair value  
			   at initial recognition and the transaction price prospectively to transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.

	 b)	 Classification

		  On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at; amortized cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.

		  A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

		  •	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
		  •	 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the  
			   principal amount outstanding.

		  This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using  
		  the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs  
		  that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are  
		  recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 12.  
		  A debt instrument is classified as FVOCI only if it meets both the of the following conditions and is not recognised at FVTPL;	

		  •	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 
		  •	 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the  
			   principal amount outstanding

		  Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are  
		  recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign  
		  exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to  
		  P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

		  All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration  
		  recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the  
		  Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such  
		  election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

		  If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized  
		  in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain  
		  or loss within equity.

		  Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L. 
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		  All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. 

		  In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at  
		  amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

	 c)	 Derecognition

		  A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

		  •	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
		  •	 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full  
			   without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks  
			   and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has  
			   transferred control of the asset.

		  When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and  
		  to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and  
		  rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s  
		  continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are  
		  measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

		  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the  
		  asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

	 d)	 Impairment 

		  Impairment of financial assets

		  In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the  
		  following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

		  a)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank  
			   balance 
		  b)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
		  c)	 Lease receivables under Ind AS 116
		  d)	 Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind  
			   AS 11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to as ‘contractual revenue receivables’ in these illustrative standalone financial statements)
		  e)	 Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL
		  f)	 Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

		  The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

		  I)	 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
		  II)	 All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

		  The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance  
		  based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

	       For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant  
		  increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.  
		  However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such  
		  that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance  
		  based on 12-month ECL.

		  Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL  
		  is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

		  ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the  
		  entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

		  i)	 All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial  
			   instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to  
			   use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument
		  ii)	 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

		  ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L).  
		  This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described  
		  below:

		  i)	 Financial assets measured as at amortized cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an  
			   integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write- 
			   off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.
		  ii)	 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.
		  iii)	 Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from  
			   its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.
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		  For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics  
		  with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

		  The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on  
		  purchase/ origination.

	 e)	 Effective interest method

		  The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant  
		  period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that  
		  form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,  
		  or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

		  Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

	 B.	 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

	 a)	 Classification as debt or equity

		  Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the  
		  contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

	 b)	 Equity instruments

		  An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments  
		  issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

		  Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit  
		  and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

	 c)	 Compound instruments

		  The component parts of compound instruments issued by the Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with  
		  the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will be  
		  settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity  
		  instrument. 

		  At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible  
		  instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortized cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion  
		  or at the instrument’s maturity date. 

		  The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound  
		  instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the  
		  conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity  
		  will be transferred to share premium/other equity. Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible note, the  
		  balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss upon conversion or  
		  expiration of the conversion option. 

		  Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation  
		  of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability  
		  component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortized over the lives of the convertible notes using the effective  
		  interest method. 

	 d)	 Financial liabilities

		  Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’.

		  Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

		  Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

		  Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The  
		  net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and  
		  losses’ line item in the [Statement of comprehensive income/Statement of Profit and Loss].

		  The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference  
		  between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and  
		  Loss. 

	 e)	 Derivative financial instruments

		  The Company has entered into forward exchange contracts or principal only swap which are in substance of forward exchange contracts to manage its  
		  exposure to foreign currency cash flows. 

		  Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value  
		  at the end of each reporting period. 
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	 f)	 Reclassification of financial assets

		  The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for  
		  financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only  
		  if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s  
		  senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s  
		  operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform  
		  an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the  
		  reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not  
		  restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

		  The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment
Amortized cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortized cost and 

fair value is recognised in P&L.
FVTPL Amortized Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated 

based on the new gross carrying amount.
Amortized cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortized cost and 

fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to reclassification.
FVTOCI Amortized cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortized cost carrying amount. However, 

cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured 
as if it had always been measured at amortized cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other adjustment is 
required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in 
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification date.

XIII.	Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or  
	 less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash  
	 and short-term deposits, as defined above.

XIV.	Earnings per share 

	 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share  
	 is computed by dividing income available to shareholders and assumed conversion by the weighted average number of common shares and potential  
	 common shares from outstanding stock options. 

XV.	 Segment Accounting 

	 Identification of segments: Segments are identified in line with Ind AS - 108 “Operating Segments”, taking into consideration the internal organization and  
	 management structure as well as the differential risk and returns of the segment.

	 The Company operates in Textile business which is the only reportable segment in accordance with the requirements of Ind-AS 108 “Operating Segments”.  
	 These activities are mainly conducted only in one geographical segment viz, India. Therefore, the disclosure requirements under the Ind AS 108 “Operating  
	 Segments” are not applicable.

	 Segment Policies: The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the  
	 financial statements of the Company as a whole.

XVI.	Government grants

	 Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the  
	 grants will be received.

	 Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs  
	 for which the grants are intended to compensate. Grants of the State and Central Government which are intended to compensate a specified percentage  
	 of the interest on borrowings are netted off against the related interest expenditure on borrowings.

	 Government grants whose primary condition is that Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as  
	 deferred revenue in the balance sheet and transferred to profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

XVII.	Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments: General

	 Provisions are recognised only when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow  
	 of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
	 When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a  
	 separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss  
	 net of any reimbursement.
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	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific  
	 to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

	 Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
	 A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
	 A present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;
	 A possible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

	 Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.

	 Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

XVIII.	 Cash flow statement

	 Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any  
	 deferrals of accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash  
	 flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and finance activities of the Company are segregated.

	 Effective April 1, 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial  
	 statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes,  
	 suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to  
	 meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption of amendment did not have any material impact on the financial statements.

3.1	 Critical Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

	 (a)	 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

	 In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2 above, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,  
	 estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and  
	 associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these  
	 estimates.

	 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the  
	 estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period.

	 (b)	 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

	 i)	 Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

	 Company reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are dependent upon an assessment  
	 of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and  
	 operating costs. Accordingly, useful lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management.

	 ii)	 Fair value measurements and valuation process

	 Management uses its judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation  
	 techniques commonly used by market participants are applied. Other financial instruments are valued using a discounted cash flow method based on  
	 assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market prices or rates. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining  
	 the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 41.

	 iii)	 Defined benefit plans

	 The cost of the defined benefit plans viz. gratuity, superannuation for the eligible employees of the Company are determined using actuarial valuations.  
	 An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of  
	 the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit  
	 obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

	 The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management  
	 considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

	 The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic  
	 changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rate.

	 Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 40.

	 iv)	 Provision and contingent liability

	 On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies. For contingent losses that are considered probable,  
	 an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as  
	 Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the financial statements. Gain  
	 contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.
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4	 Property, Plant and Equipment	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars Freehold
land Buildings Plant and 

machinery

Furniture, fixtures 
and Office 

equipments
Vehicles Total

Cost or deemed cost
At April 01, 2020  786.58 1399.74 6643.10  27.92  11.26  8,868.60 
Additions  -    -    -    0.02  -    0.02 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    (0.03)  (0.03)
At March 31, 2021  786.58  1,399.74  6,643.10  27.94  11.23  8,868.59 
Additions  -    -    0.24  0.26  -    0.50 
Disposals  -    -    (0.01)  -    -    (0.01)
At March 31, 2022  786.58  1,399.74  6,643.33  28.20  11.23  8,869.08 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At April 01, 2020  -    109.91  723.54  16.39  7.70  857.54 
Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  47.56  229.40  2.95  1.02  280.93 
Impairment  426.64  426.64 
Disposals  -    -    (0.03)  (0.03)
At March 31, 2021  -    157.47  1,379.58  19.34  8.69  1,565.08 
Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  47.54  211.12  2.13  0.74  261.53 
Disposals  -    -    -    -   
At March 31, 2022  -    205.01  1,590.70  21.47  9.43  1,826.61 
Net book value
At March 31, 2021  786.58  1,242.27  5,263.52  8.60  2.54  7,303.51 
At March 31, 2022  786.58  1,194.73  5,052.63  6.73  1.80  7,042.47 

4.1 	The detail of property, plant and equipments pledged against borrowings are presented in note 19 and 22.
4.2	 Details of Immovable Property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Company.
		  (₹ in crores)

Relevant Line Item in the
Balance Sheet

Description 
of item of 
Property

Gross 
Carrying 

Value

Title held in the 
name of 

Whether title deeds 
holder is a prmoter/ 
director or relative of 
promoter/director or 

employee of promoter/
director

Property held 
since date

Reason for not being 
held in the name of the 

company

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - 
Lunsapur

116.05 & 
320.76

Sixvent Power & 
Engineering Limited 
(Merged with Zep 
Infratech Limited)

No 2017 & 2019 Need to execute the sale 
deed for transfer of land

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.09 Thakor Manganji 

Punjaji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.10 Thakor Kachraji 

Mohanji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.04 Thakor Suryaben 

Thakaji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.03 Thakor Babaji 

Mangaji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.04 Thakor Suryaben 

Thakaji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.10 Thakor Shankarji 

Ghemaji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.03 Thakor Shedhaji 

Shankarji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE
Land - 

Aarshodiya 
Gandhinagar

1.62 Thakor Govindji 
Mohanji and Others No 2014 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE
Land - Patelka       

Dev-bhumi 
Dwarka

0.05 Gangaben Valu and 
Others No 1995 Need to execute the sale 

deed for transfer of land
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5	 Capital-work-in progress Aging As on 31-3-2022	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars Amount of CWIP for a period of 
 Total 

Capital-work-in progress (CWIP) Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 
Project in progress - - - - -
Project temporarily suspended - - - 1066.00 1066.00
Total - - - 1066.00 1066.00

Capital-work-in progress Aging As on 31-3-2021	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars Amount of CWIP for a period of 
 Total 

Capital-work-in progress (CWIP) Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 
Project in progress - - - - -
Project temporarily suspended - - 70.33 995.92 1066.25
Total - - 70.33 995.92 1066.25

Projects has been temporarily suspendesd on account of defaults in repayment of borrowings and also under CIRP w.e.f 6th April, 2021.

6	 Other intangible assets	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars Computer software
Cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2020  4.86 
Additions  0.01 
As at March 31, 2021  4.87 
Additions  0.01 
As at March 31, 2022  4.88 
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At April 1, 2020  2.45 
Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  0.82 
As at March 31, 2021  3.27 
Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  0.78 
As at March 31, 2022  4.05 
Net book value
As at March 31, 2021  1.60 
As at March 31, 2022  0.83 

7	 Depreciation and amortisation expense	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2022

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment  261.53  280.93 
Amortisation of intangible assets  0.78  0.82 
Total depreciation and amortisation  262.31  281.75 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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8	 Investments (non-current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

I Investments (At deemed cost)
A. Trade, Unquoted
Investments in Equity Instruments
subsidiary: 
BVM Overseas Ltd
45,00,000 (previous year 45,00,000) shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid  4.50  4.50 
Total Investments in equity instruments at deemed cost (i)  4.50  4.50 

II At fair value through other comprehensive income Investment in unquoted equity instruments
BVM Finance Pvt Ltd
17,38,000 (previous year 17,38,000) shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid - -
Sintex Oil & Gas Ltd
50,000 (previous year 50,000) shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid - -
Healwell International Ltd
9,00,000 (previous year 9,00,000) shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid  0.54  2.34 
Zep Infratech Ltd (formerly known as Sixvents Power and Engineering Ltd)
13,300 (previous year 13,300) shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid - -
Investments in quoted equity instruments
Bank of Baroda (formerly known as Dena Bank)
3,322 (previous year 3,322) shares of ₹10 each fully paid  0.04  0.02 

III Investment in Trust Securities
AAVAS TRUST 2019
33,30,22,460 (previous year 33,30,22,460) units of ₹1 per unit  33.30  33.30 
Total Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (ii)+(iii)  33.88  35.66 

Total  (i) + (ii)+(iii)  38.38  40.16 
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments  0.04  0.02 
Aggregate market value of quoted investment  0.04  0.02 
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted Investments  38.34  40.14 

9	 Other non-current assets	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Security deposits & Earnest money deposits  12.78  3.81 
(b) Capital advances  379.78  379.45 
(c) Service tax paid under protest  -    4.04 

Total  392.56  387.30 

10	 Non-Current Tax Assets (Net)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Taxation)  4.11  2.03 
Total  4.11  2.03 

11	 Inventories	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Raw invmaterials  165.55  75.70 
(b) Work-in-progress  54.60  34.17 
(c) Finished goods  84.34  33.46 
(d) Stores and spares  4.16  2.86 

Total  308.65  146.19 
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12	 Trade receivables *	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Trade Receivables, Unsecured, considered good  336.24  128.24 
Trade Receivables, credit impaired  0.19  0.19 
Less: Provision for  trade receivables  (0.19)  (0.19)

Total  336.24  128.24 

* Note: The average credit period on sales of good is 0 to 180 days. Credit Risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Company’s 
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on a detailed study of 
credit worthiness and accordingly individual credit  limits are defined/modified.There is no other customer representing more than 10% of the total balance 
of trade receivables except Wholly Owned Subisidiary (WOS) and one customer.

Trade Receivable Aging as on 31-3-2022		  (₹ in crores)

Particulars Unbilled Not Due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of  Payment

TotalLess than
6 months

6 months
-1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than

3 years 
Undisputed - Considered Goods 19.01 297.55 10.66 0.00 0.27 1.77 6.97 336.24
Undisputed- Credit Impaired 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.19 0.19
Disputed - Considered Goods 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disputed - Credit Impaired 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 19.01 297.55 10.66 0.00 0.27 1.77 7.16 336.43

Trade Receivable Aging as on 31-3-2021		  (₹ in crores)

Particulars Unbilled Not Due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of  Payment

TotalLess than
6 months

6 months
-1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than

3 years 
Undisputed - Considered Goods 0 110.36 8.31 0.07 2.11 6.68 0.71 128.24
Undisputed- Credit Impaired 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.19 0.19
Disputed - Considered Goods 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disputed - Credit Impaired 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 110.36 8.31 0.07 2.11 6.68 0.90 128.43

13	 Cash and Cash Equivalents	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Balance with banks  25.77  18.37 
(b) Cash on hand  0.22  0.57 
(c) Bank deposits with upto 3 months maturity  0.04  0.38 

 26.03  19.32 
Other bank balances 
 Earmarked balances with banks
    - Unclaimed dividend accounts  0.58  0.73 

 0.58  0.73 
Total  26.61  20.05 

14	 Bank Balances other than (13) above	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Other bank balances 
     Bank deposits having maturity beyond 3 months  -    -   

Total  -    -   
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15	 Loans ( Current )	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
(a) Security deposits & earnest money deposits  1.20  1.20 
(b) Others loans
      Unsecured, considered good  72.30  66.33 
      Doubtful  75.20  75.20 
      Less: Provision for other doubtful loans and advances  (75.20)  (75.20)

 72.30  66.33 
Total  73.50  67.53 

16	 Other current assets	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Export incentive receivable  12.81  0.01 
(b) Advances recoverables in cash or kind  353.09  278.12 
(c) Prepaid expenses  14.70  4.61 
(d) Balances with government authorities  31.02  27.32 
(e) Subsidies receivable (Refer note 49)  469.34  387.12 
(f) Interest receivable  -    0.00 

Total  880.96  697.18 

17	 Equity  Share capital	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Authorised
65,00,00,000 ( previous year 65,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ₹ 1 each  65.00  65.00 

Total  65.00  65.00 
Issued 
59,92,49,762 ( previous year 59,92,49,762) Equity Shares of ₹ 1 each  59.92  59.92 

Total  59.92  59.92 
Subscribed and fully paid up
59,92,17,962( previous year 59,92,17,962) Equity Shares of ₹ 1 each  59.92  59.92 

Total  59.92  59.92 

Notes:-
(i)	 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particulars  Opening  Balance  Conversion of FCCB into equity 
shares during the year 

 Right issue during
the year  Closing Balance 

Equity Shares 
Year ended 31st March 2021
- Number of shares  59,40,95,088  51,22,874  -    59,92,17,962 
- Amount (₹ In Crore)  59.41  0.51  -    59.92 
Year ended 31st March 2022
- Number of shares  59,92,17,962  -    -    59,92,17,962 
- Amount (₹ In Crore)  59.92  -    -    59.92 

(ii)	 Terms/ Rights attached to equity  shares
	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 1/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

(iii)	 As at 31st March, 2022: 47,56,970 shares (previous year 47,56,970  shares) were reserved for issuance towards Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB).

(iv)	 There are no shareholder holding more than 5% of Equity Share Capital of the company.
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(v)	 Shares held by Promoters and Promoters Group company.

Name of Promoter As on 31.03.2022
No.of Shares % of Share Capital  As on 31.03.2021

No.of Shares % of Share Capital Change during the year

Pranay Arunprasad Patel 758830 0.13 758830 0.13 0
Rahulbhai Patel 497090 0.08 497090 0.08 0
Amit Patel 398425 0.07 398425 0.07 0
Deval Rahul Patel 262500 0.04 262500 0.04 0
Leena Arunprasad Patel 177970 0.03 177970 0.03 0
Arunprasad Purshottamdas Patel 327710 0.05 327710 0.05 0
Dineshchandra Patel 290536 0.05 290536 0.05 0
Kalavati Patel 225468 0.04 225468 0.04 0
Poonam Pranay Patel 65620 0.01 65620 0.01 0
BVM Finance Private Limited 11303905 1.89 11303905 1.89 0
Opel Securities Private Limited 4223452 0.70 4223452 0.70 0
Kolon Investment Pvt. Ltd. 5877110 0.98 5877110 0.98 0
Star Line Leasing Ltd. 1713221 0.29 1713221 0.29 0
Som Shiva (Impex) Limited 262500 0.04 262500 0.04 0
Prominent Plastics Limited 796790 0.13 796790 0.13 0
Total Promoters Shareholding 27181127 4.54 27181127 4.54 0

(vi)	 List of Struckoff Shareholders

Name of Entity No. of Shares
STOCKYARD INVESTMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 370
UNIQUE CONSULTING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 150
KOTHARI INTERGROUP LTD. 1
COSMIC REALTORS PRIVATE LIMITED 100
M/S PRAVA BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 1100

18	 Other Equity
Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement in Equity Balances	
A.	 Summary of Other Equity Balances	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Securities premium  1,162.71  1,162.71 
(b) Debenture redemption reserve  111.03  111.03 
(c) General reserve  428.58  428.58 
(d) Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive income  (11.26)  (9.48)
(e) Retained Earning  (446.36)  121.64 

Total  1,244.70  1,814.48 

B	 Nature and purpose of reserves

(a)	 Securities Premium
	 Securities Premium is created due to premium on issue of shares.This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b)	 Debenture redemption reserve
	 This reserve has been created for redemption of debentures issued by the company in compliance of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules  
	 framed there under.

(c)	 General Reserve
	 The general reserve is created from time to time by transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriate purposes.  As the general reserve is created  
	 by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not  
	 be reclassified subsequently to Statement of profit and loss.

(d)	 Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
	 The reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive  
	 income.

(e)	 Retained earnings
	 The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the balance in this reserve and also  
	 considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.
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19	 Borrowings (non-current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Secured - at amortised cost 
(a)  Debentures (refer note (i) to (iii) below)  -    -   
(b)  Term loans  
       (i)   From banks (refer note (iv) to (vi) below)  -    -   
       (ii)  From a Financial Institution (refer note (iv) to (vi) below)  -    -   
       (iii) Foreign Currency Term loans from a bank (Refer note(vii) below)  -    -   
Unsecured - at amortised cost 
(a)  Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds  -    -   
(b)  Foreign Currency Term loans from a bank (Refer note (viii) below)  -    -   

 Total  -    -   

Notes: 		
(i)	 In view of the continuing default in payment of dues and Company under CIRP, most of the lenders have sent notices / letters recalling their loans given and  
	 called upon the Company to pay entire dues and other liabilities. Further, the Committee of Creditors has approved the Resolution Plan submitted by  
	 Reliance Industries Limited jointly with Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited  under CIRP on 19.03.2022. The IRP has submitted Resolution Plan  
	 before Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad for its approval. As on date approval of Resolution Plan is pending before Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad. Hence in view  
	 of the said facts & considering the matter of prudence, whole of the longterm borrowing outstanding as on 31st March,2022 has been classified as current  
	 borrowings.
(ii)	 2,500 (Previous year 2,500) 9.41% Secured Redeemable Non Convertible debentures of ₹ 10,00,000/- each, are redeemable at par on 8th October, 2020.  
	 The Debentures are secured by first pari passu charge on fixed assets (excluding spinning unit) of the Company.
(iii)	 1,375 (Previous year 1,375) 10.70% Secured Redeemable Non Convertible debentures of ₹ 10,00,000/- each, are redeemable at par in three equal annual  
	 installments starting from 30th September, 2019. The Debentures are secured by first pari passu charge on fixed assets (excluding  spinning unit) of the  
	 Company.
(iv)	 1,125 (Previous year 1,125) 10.70% Secured Redeemable Non Convertible debentures of ₹ 10,00,000/- each, are redeemable at par in three annual  
	 installments starting from 11th June, 2019. The Debentures are secured by first pari passu charge on fixed assets  (excluding spinning unit) of the Company.
(v)	 Term Loans from the banks and Financial Institution referred in point no (f) of Note (vi) below are secured by  first charge on pari passu basis on all the  
	 immovable and movable properties of the Company, both present and future excluding properties of spinning unit and on specified current assets and  
	 book debts on which prior charge created in favour of the Banks for working capital facilities (refer note 23).
(vi)	 Term Loans from the banks and Financial Institution referred in point no (a)  (b)  and  (c)  of Note (vii) below from the banks and financial institution are  
	 secured by first charge on pari passu basis on respective project assets of the spinning unit. The Phase I and II lenders of spinning unit are also secured by  
	 second pari passu charge over the entire current assets both present & future of Spinning Project.
(vii)	Terms of repayments of term loans (including current maturities of long term debt) carrying interest rate range of 2.4% to 12.55% p.a. are given below:
	 (a)	 Loan outstanding  of ₹ 930.12  crores (previous year ₹ 930.12 crores) - the overall loan repayment term includes 30 quarterly installment of ₹ 40.67  
		  crores each starting from August 2017 to November, 2024.
	 (b)	 Loan outstanding  of ₹ 1026.68  crores (previous year ₹ 1026.68 crores) - the overall loan repayment term includes 30 quarterly installment of ₹ 40.67  
		  crores each starting from April, 2018 to September, 2025.
	 (c)	 Loan outstanding  of ₹ 1758.50 crores (previous year ₹ 1758.50 crores) - the overall loan repayment term includes 36 quaterly installment of ₹ 52.40  
		  crores each starting from September, 2020 to June, 2029.
	 (d)	 Loan outstanding  of ₹ 75.14 crores (previous year ₹ 75.14 crores) - the loan repayment term includes 32 structured  quarterly installment of ₹ 1.03  
		  crores each starting from December, 2016 till September, 2021 and ₹ 4.125 crores starting from December, 2021 to September, 2025(For Security refer  
		  note (i) to (iii) above)
	 (e)	 Loan outstanding  of ₹ 84.79 crores (previous year ₹ 84.79 crores) - the loan repayment term includes 32 structured  quarterly installment of ₹ 1.15  
		  crores each starting from December, 2017  to  September, 2021 and  ₹ 4.59 crores starting from December,2021 to September 2025. (For Security refer  
		  note (i) to (iii) above)
	 (f)	 The Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (TUFs) term loans include:
		  (i)	 Loan outstanding of ₹ 73.08 crores (previous year ₹ 73.08 crores) - the overall loan repayment term includes 32 quarterly installment of ₹ 6.25 crore  
			   each starting from 1st October, 2014 till 1st July, 2022.
		  (ii)	Loan outstanding of ₹ 58.62 crores (previous year ₹ 58.62 crores) - the overall loan repayment term includes 32 quarterly installment of ₹ 4.51  
			   crores each commencing after 27 months moratorium period  i.e. starting from 1st October, 2014 till 1st July, 2022. 		
		  (iii)	Loan outstanding of ₹ 35.44 crores (previous year ₹ 35.44 crores) - the overall loan repayment term includes 32 quarterly installment of ₹ 3.13  
			   crores each commencing from 1st October, 2014 till 1st July, 2022.
(viii)	Foreign currency loan of ₹ 162.55 crores (previous year ₹ 165.31 crores) and ₹ 98.53 crores (previous year ₹ 100.20 crores) respectively has been secured  
	 against the specified assets created out of such loans and the same is  payable in 19 and 16 half yearly installment respectively commencing from 1st April,  
	 2019 and 14th May, 2019 respectively till 1st April,2028 and 16th November,2026 respectively.
(ix)	 Foreign currency loan of ₹ 75.81 crores (previous year ₹ 73.50 crores) payable in 2 yearly equal installment commencing from 5th April, 2021.
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20	 Provisions (non-current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Provision for employee benefits 
(i) Provision for compensated absences  3.25  2.75 
(ii) Provision for gratuity  -    1.62 

Total  3.25  4.37 

21	 Deferred tax liabilities (Net)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Deferred Tax Liability
(i)  Difference between book and tax depreciation  968.62  968.62 

 968.62  968.62 
Deferred Tax Asset
(i)   Disallowances under Income Tax  4.90  4.90 
(ii)  Provision for doubtful debts & advances  19.01  19.01 
(iii) Unabsorbed depreciation  663.26  663.26 
(iv) Minimum Alternate Tax  281.45  281.45 

 968.62  968.62 
Total  0.00 0.00

22	 Borrowings (current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Secured- at amortised cost
     Loans repayable on demand from banks (Refer note below)  1,491.95  1,353.46 
Unsecured- at amortised cost
     From Companies  249.99  249.99 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings  4,928.53  4,929.16 
     (Refer note 20 borrowings( Non Current Borrowings) for details of security)

Total  6,670.47  6,532.61 

Note: Loans from the banks are secured by first charge on the stocks and book debts of the Company, both present and future. This is further secured by (i) 
Second and subservient charge on the Borrower’s immovable fixed assets at (a) Phase-III at Village Lunsapur, Amreli, (b) Village Kalol, Taluka Kalol, District 
Gandhingar and (c) Village Saij, Taluka Kalol, District Gandhinagar together with all the plant and machinery (ii) second pari passu charge on the Borrower’s all 
the immovable fixed assets relating to Phase-I and Phase-II at Village Lunsapur, Amreli together with all the plant and machinery.

23	 Trade payables	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises  6.53  3.47 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprise  171.43  107.37 

Total  177.96  110.84 

The  average credit period on purchases of certain goods is 0 to 30 days. No interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 30 days from the date of 
invoice. Thereafter, interest is payable at 15% per annum on the outstanding balance. The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure 
that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.

Dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end  6.53  3.47 
Interest due on the above mention principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end  *  * 
Amount of the interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16  -    -   
Amount of the interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but without adding 
the interest specified under the MSMED Act

 -    -   

Amount of interest accrued and remaing unpaid at the end of the accounting year  -    -   

* The Company is under CIRP w.e.f 6th April,2021 and the moratorium period under section 14 of the IBC Code 2016 is declared.
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Trade Payable Aging as on 31-3-2022		  (₹ in crores)

Particulars Unbilled Not Due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of  Payment

Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

MSME 0 2.94 1.02 0.00 2.38 0.19 6.53
Others 38.62 69.32 3.85 0.37 5.03 54.24 171.43
Disputed - MSME 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Disputed - Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Total 38.62 72.26 4.87 0.37 7.41 54.43 177.96

Trade Payable Aging as on 31-3-2021		  (₹ in crores)

Particulars Unbilled Not Due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of  Payment

Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

MSME 0 1.14 0.00 1.95 0.23 0.15 3.47
Others 45.32 2.23 1.17 5.93 41.79 10.93 107.37
Disputed - MSME 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Disputed - Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Total 45.32 3.37 1.17 7.88 42.02 11.08 110.84

24	 Other financial liabilities (Current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Interest accrued on borrowings  1,805.18  1,130.41 
(b) Investor's Education and Protection Fund
      (i) Unclaimed dividends  0.58  0.73 
(c) Acceptances  111.97  111.97 
(d) Others:
      (i)  Payables on purchase of fixed assets  88.73  86.36 
      (ii) Trade / security deposits received  0.25  0.21 

Total  2,006.71  1,329.68 

25	 Other current liabilities	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Statutory remittances  2.61  1.42 
(b) Advances from customers  2.48  1.43 

Total  5.09  2.85 

26	 Provisions (Current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Provision for employee benefits 
    (i)  Provision for compensated absences  2.01  3.98 
    (ii) Provision for gratuity  0.20  1.31 

Total  2.21  5.29 
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27	 Revenue from operations (Refer Note 45)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Sale of products  3,128.90  1,689.65 
Less: Commission towards sales  (2.40)  (0.50)

Total  3,126.50  1,689.15 

28	 Other income	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

(a) Interest income earned on financial asset that are not designated as at fair value through
      profit or loss (FVTPL)

 4.24  8.50 

(b) Subsidies from government authorities  68.27  42.19 
(c) Miscellaneous income  4.85  4.32 

Total  77.36  55.01 

29	 Cost of materials consumed	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Opening stock  75.70  42.64 
Add: Purchases  2,280.85  1,143.30 
Less: Closing stock  165.55  75.70 

Cost of materials consumed  2,191.00  1,110.24 

30	 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Inventories at the end of the year:
(a) Finished goods  84.34  33.46 
(b) Work-in-progress  54.60  34.17 

 138.94  67.63 
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
(a) Finished goods  33.46  45.71 
(b) Work-in-progress  34.17  27.13 

 67.63  72.84 
Net (increase) / decrease  (71.31)  5.21 

31	 Employee benefits expense	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

(a) Salaries and wages  152.15  124.97 
(b) Contributions to provident and other funds  8.51  6.72 
(c) Staff welfare expenses  3.28  2.71 

Total  163.94  134.40 

32	 Finance costs	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

(a) Interest costs on borrowings carried at amortised cost (net of 
     interest subsidy)"

 804.70  771.06 

(b) Other Borrowing Costs  7.34  23.86 
Total  812.04  794.92 
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33	 Other expenses	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

(a) Consumption of stores and spare parts  85.37  46.48 
(b) Power and fuel  251.85  177.78 
(c) Rent including lease rentals  1.78  1.48 
(d) Repairs and maintenance - Buildings  0.26  0.29 
(e) Repairs and maintenance - Machinery  1.34  0.81 
(f) Repairs and maintenance - Others  6.01  1.75 
(g) Insurance  15.97  11.04 
(h) Rates and taxes  6.49  3.19 
(i) Travelling and conveyance  3.89  3.81 
(j) Transport & Freigh Charges  7.27  9.15 
(k) Donations and contributions  -    0.00 
(l) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note-43)  -    -   
(m) Payments to auditors (Refer below note)  0.18  0.11 
(n) Legal & Professional charges  8.71  10.70 
(o) Provisions for Doubtful Advances  -    21.00 
(p) Bad Debts & Subsidy written off  -    0.04 
(q) Forex Loss  0.80  (1.45)
(r) General Expenses  23.26  6.79 

Total  413.18  292.97 

Payments to Auditors	

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

(a) For audit  0.10  0.10 
(b) For other services (including certifications, etc.)  0.08  0.01 

 Total   0.18  0.11 

34	 Exceptional Items	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Impairement Loss of Property, Plants and Equipments  -    426.64 
Total  -    426.64 

35	 The Company is undergoing substantial financial stress and severe liquidity constraints since last Financial Year coupled with changed industrial dynamics,  
	 time and cost overrun in completion of its projects, reduction in subsidies and incentive benefits , Covid related disruptions etc.The company has defaulted  
	 in debt obligation of debentures aggregating to ₹ 500.00 Crores for the period April,19 to 6th April,2021 (date of admission in Corporate Insolvency  
	 Resolution Process) apart from other credit facilities. Further, Company’s inability to meet its obligation in relation to the payment of certain letters of  
	 credit which led to devolvement and consequent over utilization of the cash credit facilities availed by the Company , delay in payment of certain term loan  
	 instalments as well as interest thereof. The Company’s credit rating is “BWR D” from Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd. for Non-Convertible Debentures.  
	 However, Company has made provision for interest for the period April, 2019 to 31st March, 2022.

	 Petition for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 filed against the Company  
	 by Invesco Asset Management (India) Private Limited (Financial Creditor) for default amount of ₹ 15,00,00,000/- (Principal amount) of NCD has been  
	 admitted against the Company vide Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench order dated 06.04.2021. Mr. Pinakin Shah (having  
	 registration no. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248) has been appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by the Honourable National Company Law  
	 Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench under Section 13(1)(c) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and moratorium period under Section 14 of the Insolvency  
	 and Bankruptcy Code 2016 is declared.The Company is continued as going concern.

36	 The company has discontinued the manufacturing operations of structured fabrics (except bleaching facility) at Kalol effective from 1st July, 2019 on  
	 account of high cost of operations. Hence, Statutory Auditor of the Company informed the management in the last year to assesse any provision needs  
	 to be recognised on account of the impairment of assets in respect of property , plant and equipment of its Textile Division as per Ind AS 36. Accordingly  
	 the management of the company during the last year has assessed that any provision needs to be recognised on account of the impairment of assets in  
	 respect of property , plant and equipment of its Textile Division as per Ind AS 36 through approved valuer. The higher of Textile Division assets fair value  
	 (less cost of disposal) and its value in use as per valuation report obtained from approved valuer as on 30th September,2020 and is found lower than its  
	 carrying amount as per books of accounts of the company and hence the Company  has recognised impairment loss of ₹ 426.64 crores for the year 
	 2020-21. Therefore, the impairment loss has been shown under “Exceptional Item” during last year 2020-21.
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37	 Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)

	 On May 25, 2016, the Company issued USD 110 million Step Down Convertible Bonds due 2022 (“FCCBs”). The FCCBs bear interest (i) at the rate of 7%  
	 p.a from May 25, 2016 to May 25, 2018 and (ii) at the rate of 3.50%  p.a from May 25, 2018 to May 25, 2022, payable semi-annually in arrear on the interest  
	 payment dates falling every year on 25 November and 25 May.

	 The FCCBs are convertible at any time on and after July 5, 2016 and up to the close of business on May 15, 2022 by holders of the FCCBs into fully paid  
	 equity shares with full voting rights of the Issuer each with a nominal value of ₹ 1 at the option of the holder, at an initial conversion price of ₹ 93.8125 per  
	 share with a fixed rate of exchange on conversion of ₹ 67.4463 = USD 1.00. The conversion price is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances and may  
	 be reset on November 25, 2018 and November 25, 2019 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the FCCBs.

	 Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement approved by National Company Law Tribunal on 12th May,2017  on exercising option for conversion of  
	 the FCCBs, the FCCB holders shall receive one fully paid equity shares of ₹ 1 each  with full voting rights of Sintex Plastics Technology Limited (SPTL) and  
	 furhter the repayment of FCCBs is guaranteed by SPTL. In case of payment of any outstanding sum to the outstanding FCCB holders by the SPTL, the  
	 company shall without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or things, make the paymet to SPTL as mutually decided by the company and SPTL.		
					   
	 With respect to USD 110 Million Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds due 2022 (FCCBs) raised by the Company, there are USD 6.5 Million FCCBs outstanding  
	 for conversion as on 31st March, 2022.Further, the Company has defaulted in payment of Interest amounting to USD 0.64 Million for the period 25th  
	 May, 19 to 31st March, 2022.

38	 Segment information

	 The Company has presented segment information in the consolidated financial statements which are presented in the same financial report.

	 Accordingly, in terms of paragraph 3 of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, no discolures related to segments are presented in this standalone financial  
	 statements.

39	 Related Party Transactions
a. 	 Names of the related parties and description of relationship

Sr. No. Nature of Relationship Name of Related Parties

1 Key Management Personnel
* Shri Rahul A. Patel, Chairman & Managing Director
* Shri Amit D. Patel, Managing Director
Shri Pinakin S Shah, Interim Resolution Professional (IRP)

Relatives of Key Management Personnel Mr. Ishan P. Shah
Subsidiary BVM Overseas Limited

* Note: The Company has been admitted under CIRP as per Honable NCLT, Ahmedabad order dated 6th April, 2021. Hence Powers of Board of Directors 
has been suspensed and vested with Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) under the supervision of CoC.

b.1	 Transactions during the year with related parties *	 (₹ in crores)

Sr. No. Nature of Transactions
Nature of Relationship

Subsidiaries Key Management Personnel
& relatives thereof Total

1 Sale of goods/services #
 788.13  -    788.13 

 (301.63)  -    (301.63)

2 Reimbusement of Expenses recovered
 0.23  -    0.23 

 (0.20)  -    (0.20)

3 Rent Income
 0.01  -    0.01 

 (0.01)  -    (0.01)

4 Purchase of RODTEP Scrip
 0.43  0.43 

 (-)  (-) 

5 Professional Fees
 (-)  1.15  1.15 
 (-)  (-)  (-) 

	 # Including taxes.
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b.2	 Balance as at March 31, 2022* 	 (₹ in crores)

Sr. No. Nature of Transactions
Nature of Relationship

Subsidiaries Key Management Personnel
& relatives thereof Total

1  Trade Payable 
 -  6.00  6.00 
 -    (6.00)  (6.00)

2  Trade Receivable 
 188.86  -    188.86 
 (68.11)  (-)  (68.11)

	 * Figures in brackets indicates figures of previous year.

40	 Employee benefits plans

a.	 Defined contribution plan
	 The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. The assets of the plans are held separately from those  
	 of the Company in funds under the control of trustees. Where employees leave the plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable  
	 by the Company are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

	 The Company makes Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes,  
	 the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.  The Company recognised ₹ 7.13 crores (for the  
	 year ended March 31, 2021 ₹ 5.32 crores) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans  
	 by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

b.	 Defined benefit plans:
	 The Company sponsors funded defined benefit plans for qualifying employees of its subsidiaries. The defined benefit plans are administered by a separate  
	 Fund that is legally separated from the entity. The board of the fund is composed of an equal number of representatives from both employers and (former)  
	 employees. The board of the fund is required by law and by its articles of association to act in the interest of the fund and of all relevant stakeholders in  
	 the scheme, i.e. active employees, inactive employees, retirees, employers. The board of the fund is responsible for the investment policy with regard to  
	 the assets of the fund.

	 Under the Gratuity plan, the eligible employees are entitled to post-retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each year of service until the  
	 retirement age of  60  without any payment ceiling. The vesting period for Gratuity as payable under The Payment of Gratuity Act is 5 years. Under the  
	 Compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement,  
	 superannuation or resignation. At the rate of daily salary, as per current accumulation of leave days.

	 The defined benefit pension plans requires contributions from employees. Contributions are in the following two forms; one is based on the number of  
	 years of service and the other one is based on a fixed percentage of salary of the employees. Note 3(V) describes change in accounting in the current year  
	 following the adoption of the amendments to Ind AS 19.

	 The plans in India typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to market yields at 
the end of the reporting period on government bond yields; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. 
Currently the plan has a relatively balanced investment in equity securities and debt instruments.

Acturial risk It is the risk that benefis will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:(1) Adverse Salary Growth 
Experience;(2) Variability in mortality rates and (3) Variability in withdrawal rates

Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan 
participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the 
plan’s liability.

Liquidity Risk Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarcgy, accumulate significant level of benefits. if some of such 
employees resign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows.

Market Risk
Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes in fluctuations of the financial markets. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields 
as at the valuation date.

	 The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-insured by an external insurance company.  
	 No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees.

	 The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at March 31,2021 by M/s   
	 Kapadia Global Actuaries.The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured  
	 using the projected unit credit method.
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c.	 The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:

	 i.	 Gratuity Funded through annual payment to Trust Bank Account.
	 ii.	 Compensated Absences (Unfunded)	

A.	 Gratuity

	 The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Discount rate 5.8% p.a. 5.2% p.a.
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 5.00% p.a. 2% p.a for next 2 years and 5% p.a thereafter
Attrition rate/Withdrawal rate 50% p.a at yonger age reducing to 10% p.a at olderage 50% p.a at yonger age reducing to 10% p.a at olderage
Mortality tables  Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
Actuarial Valuation Method  Projected Unit Credit Method

	 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the  
	 obligations.

	 The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factor.

	 Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Components of employer expense
Current service cost
Net interest expense

 
1.26 

 0.12 
 1.19 
 0.21 

Component of defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss  1.38  1.40 
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial losses/(gains)
Return on plan assets (excluding interest income amounts included in 'Net interest expense')

 0.84 
 (0.13)

 0.58 
 0.01 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income  0.71  0.60 
Total  2.08  2.00 

	 The current service cost and net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Employee benefit expense’ line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

	 The amount included in balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation  6.86  5.05 
Less:Fair value of plan assets  6.66  2.12 
Net liability/(asset) arising from defined benefit obligation  0.20  2.93 

	 Movement in present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Opening defined benefit obligation  5.05  4.70 
Current service cost  1.26  1.19 
Interest cost  0.23  0.24 
Actuarial (gains) / losses  0.84  0.58 
Past service cost  -    -   
Benefits paid  (0.52)  (1.66)
Closing defined benefit obligation  6.86  5.05 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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	 Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Opening fair value of plan assets  2.12  0.32 
Interest income  0.11  0.03 
Expected return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  0.13  (0.02)
Contribution by employer  4.75  3.45 
Actuarial gain / (loss)  -    -   
Benefits paid  (0.46)  (1.66)
Closing fair value of plan assets  6.66  2.12 
Actual return on plan assets  0.13  (0.02)

	 Composition of the plan assets:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Policy of Insurance 0% 1%
Bank balance 100% 99%

(₹ in crores)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate next year  0.20  1.31 

	 Sensitivity analysis:

	 Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The  
	 sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting  
	 period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars
Year ended  March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Gratuity:
Discount rate (0.5% movement)  6.76  6.97  4.96  5.13 
Future salary growth (0.5% movement)  6.96  6.76  5.13  4.96 

	 The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change  
	 in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

	 Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit  
	 credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance  
	 sheet.

	 There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

	 Each year an Asset-Liability-Matching study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic investment policies are analyzed in terms of risk-and- 
	 return profiles. Investment and contribution policies are integrated within this study.

	 The expected benefit payments is as follows:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars Less than 1 year Between 1-2 years Between 2-5 years Over 5 years Total
Gratuity:
As at March 31, 2022
Defined benefit obligation  1.80  1.54  2.73  1.67  7.74 
As at March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obligation  1.21  0.98  2.17  1.23  5.59 
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B.	 Compensated Absences:

	 The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as follows:	

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Discount rate 5.80% 5.20%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 5.00% p.a. 2% p.a for next 2 years and 5% p.a thereafter
Attrition rate/ Withdrawal rate 50 % p.a yonger ages reducing to 10% p.a at older ages 50 % p.a yonger ages reducing to 10% p.a at older ages
Mortality tables Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
Actuarial Valuation Method Projected Unit Credit Method

	 The amount included in Balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit obligation plans are as follows:		
		  	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation  5.26  6.73 
Fair value of plan assets  -    -   
Net liability/(asset) arising from defined benefit obligation  5.26  6.73 

41	 Financial instruments

1	 Capital management
	 The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders  
	 through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

	 The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt and total equity of the Company.

1.1	 Gearing ratio
	 The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows.	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Debt (i)  8,475.65  7,663.03 
Less: Cash and bank balances (Refer note 14 and 15)  26.61  20.05 
Net debt  8,449.04  7,642.98 
Total equity  1,304.62  1,874.40 
Net debt to equity ratio  6.48  4.08 

	 (i)	 Debt is defined as long-term and short term borrowings (excluding derivative, financial guarantee contracts and contingent consideration), as described  
		  in earlier notes ( Refer note 20, 23 and 25).



87

SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022

2	 Categories of financial instruments	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2022
As at

March 31, 2021
Carrying values Fair values Carrying values Fair values

Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Non-current investments  4.50  4.50  4.50  4.50 
Loans  73.50  73.50  67.53  67.53 
Trade receivables  336.24  336.24  128.24  128.24 
Cash and cash equivalents  26.61  26.61  20.05  20.05 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  -    -    -    -   
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost (A)  440.85  440.85  220.32  220.32 
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Non-current investments in equity instruments  33.88  33.88  35.66  35.66 
Total financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (B)  33.88  33.88  35.66  35.66 
Total financial assets (A+B)  474.73  474.73  255.98  255.98 
Total financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (C)
Total financial assets (A+B+C)
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Non-current liabilities
Non-current borrowings *  -    -    -    -   
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings  6,670.47  6,670.47  6,532.61  6,532.61 
Trade payables  177.96  177.96  110.84  110.84 
Other financial liabilities  2,006.71  2,006.71  1,329.68  1,329.68 
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost  8,855.14  8,855.14  7,973.13  7,973.13 
Total financial liabilities  8,855.14  8,855.14  7,973.13  7,973.13 

	 * The fair value of company’s fixed interest borrowing are determined by using Discounted Cash Flow Method.

3	 Financial risk management objectives

	 The Company’s Corporate finance department provides services to business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitors  
	 and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyse the exposures by degree and  
	 magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

	 The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives  
	 is governed by the Company’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit  
	 risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure  
	 limits is reviewed by the Management and the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments,  
	 including derivatives for speculative purposes.

	 The Corporate Treasury function reports quarterly to the Company’s risk management committee, an independent body that monitors risks and policies  
	 implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

4	 Market risk

	 The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates due to foreign currency  
	 borrowings and variable interest loans. The Company has not been able to enter into derivative contracts to manage part of its foreign currency risk  
	 considering credit default. The Company does not enter into derivative contracts to manage risks related to anticipated sales and purchases.

5	 Foreign currency risk management

	 The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate  
	 exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilizing forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options taken at the time of initiation  
	 of the booking by the management. Such decision is taken after considering the factors such as upside potential, cost of structure and the downside risks  
	 etc. Quarterly reports are submitted to Management Committee on the covered and open positions and MTM valuation.
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	 The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as  
	 follows.
			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

USD EURO INR Others Total USD EURO INR Others Total
Financial assets
Non-current financial assets
Investments  -    -    33.88  -    33.88  -    -    35.66  -    35.66 
Loans  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total non-current financial assets (A)  -    -    33.88  -    33.88  -    -    35.66  -    35.66 
Current financial assets
Investments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Trade receivables  3.31  -    332.93  336.24  -    -    128.24  -    128.24 
Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    26.61  26.61  -    -    20.05  -    20.05 
Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Loans  -    -    73.50  -    73.50  -    -    67.53  -    67.53 
Total current financial assets (B)  3.31  -    433.04  -    436.35  -    -    215.82  -    215.82 
Total financial assets (C) =  (A) + (B)  3.31  -    466.92  -    470.23  -    -    251.48  -    251.48 
Financial liabilities
Non current financial liabilities
Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total non-current financial liabilities (D)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Current financial liabilities
Borrowings  125.08  261.07  6,284.32  -    6,670.47  121.08  261.96  6,149.57  -    6,532.61 
Trade payables  0.38  0.03  177.12  0.43  177.96  0.39  0.04  110.01  0.40  110.84 
Other financial liabilities  78.05  21.44  1,907.22  -    2,006.71  68.90  17.63  1,243.07  0.08  1,329.68 
Total current financial liabilities  (E)  203.51  282.54  8,368.66  0.43  8,855.14  190.37  279.63  7,502.65  0.48  7,973.13 
Total financial liabilities (F) =  (D) +  (E)  203.51  282.54  8,368.66  0.43  8,855.14  190.37  279.63  7,502.65  0.48  7,973.13 
Excess of financial liabilities over 
financial assets (F)-(C )  200.20  282.54  7,901.74  0.43  8,384.91  190.37  279.63  7,251.17  0.48  7,721.65 

Net Exposure of foreign currency risk  200.20  282.54  -    0.43  483.17  190.37  279.63  -    0.48  470.48 
Sensitivity impact on Net liabilities/
(assets) exposure at 10%  20.02  28.26  -    0.04  48.32  19.04  27.97  -    0.05  47.05 

5.1	 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

	 The Company is mainly exposed to USD and EURO currency.

	 The above table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the INR against relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity  
	 rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably  
	 possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency risk denominated monetary items and adjusts  
	 their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans where the denomination of  
	 the loan is in a currency other than the functional currency of the lender or the borrower. A negative number below indicates an increase in profit/equity  
	 where the INR strengths 10% against the relevant currency. For a 10% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable  
	 impact on the profit/equity and the balances below would be positive.

5.2	 Forward foreign exchange contracts

	 The Company has not been able to enter  into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover foreign currency payments and receipts considering credit  
	 default.

6	 Interest rate risk management

	 The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using  
	 the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in PLR and  
	 LIBOR rates. The Company uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day  
	 operations like non-convertible debentures and short term loans. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed  
	 and floating rate borrowings. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost- 
	 effective hedging strategies are applied.
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	 The table in 6.1 provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

6.1	 Interest rate sensitivity analysis

	 The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the  
	 end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting  
	 period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management  
	 personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

	 The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings and interest rate sensitivity analysis.		
			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Gross amount
(₹ in crores)

Interest rate sensitivity 
@0.50% (₹ in crores)

Gross amount
(₹ in crores)

Interest rate sensitivity 
@0.50% (₹ in crores)

Fixed loan  549.27  -    547.78  -   
Variable loan  7,926.38  39.63  7,115.25  35.58 
Total  8,475.65  39.63  7,663.03  35.58 

7	 Credit risk management

	 Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk encompasses  
	 of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company has adopted a policy of only  
	 dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from  
	 defaults. The Company uses publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The Company’s exposure  
	 and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved  
	 counterparties.

	 Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed  
	 on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

	 The Company does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty. Concentration of credit risk related to the above mentioned company  
	 did not exceed 10% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year excluding sales to WOS. Concentration of credit risk to any other counterparty did  
	 not exceed 10% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year excluding sales to WOS.

7.1	 Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

	 The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risk associated with its financial assets.

8	 Liquidity risk management

	 Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where business  
	 conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which  
	 has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and  
	 liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing  
	 facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

	 The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods and its  
	 non-derivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on  
	 which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

	 To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The  
	 contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.
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			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

< 1year 1-5 years > 5 years Total < 1year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Financial assets
Non-current
Investments  -    33.88  -    33.88  -    35.66  -    35.66 
Loans  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total non-current financial assets  -    33.88  -    33.88  -    35.66  -    35.66 
Current
Investments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Trade receivables  336.24  -    -    336.24  128.24  -    -    128.24 
Cash and cash equivalents  26.61  -    -    26.61  20.05  -    -    20.05 
Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Loans  73.50  -    -    73.50  67.53  -    -    67.53 
Total current financial assets  436.35  -    -    436.35  215.82  -    -    215.82 
Total financial assets  436.35  33.88  -    470.23  215.82  35.66  -    251.48 
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total non-current financial liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Current
Borrowings  6,670.47  -    -    6,670.47  6,532.61  -    -    6,532.61 
Trade payables  177.96  -    -    177.96  110.84  -    -    110.84 
Other financial liabilities  2,006.71  -    -    2,006.71  1,329.68  -    -    1,329.68 
Total current financial liabilities  8,855.14  -    -    8,855.14  7,973.13  -    -    7,973.13 
Total financial liabilities  8,855.14  -    -    8,855.14  7,973.13  -    -    7,973.13 

9	 Fair value measurements

	 This note provides information about how the Company determines fair values of various financial assets. Some of the Company’s financial assets and  
	 financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these  
	 financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars Fair values as at  
March 31, 2022

Fair values as at  
March 31, 2021 Level* Valuation technique and key inputs

Financial assets
Non-current investments
Investment in unquoted equity instruments
BVM Finance Pvt Ltd  0.00  0.00 3 Net assets method was used to capture the present 

value of the expected future economic benefits that 
will flow to the entity due to the investments.

Sintex Oil and Gas Ltd  -    -   3
Healwell International Ltd  0.54  2.34 3
Zep Infratech Limited  -    -   3
Investment in quoted equity instruments

Quoted bid prices in an active market
Bank of Baroda (formerly known as Dena Bank)  0.04  0.02 1
Current investments

Quoted bid prices in an active market
Investments in Mutual funds  -    -   1

	 * There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 during the period.	
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42	 Income taxes

	 The Company has decided not to opt new taxation scheme of Section 115BAA of the income tax Act 1961, Introduced by the Taxation Law (Amendment)  
	 ordinance 2019 effective from financial 2019-2020 in view of MAT Credit Availability, Accumulated Losses and Unabsorbed Depreciation.	

a.	 Income taxes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Current tax
In respect of the current year  -    -   
Short/(Excess) provision of tax for earlier years  (0.00)  (0.15)
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year  -    -   
Total income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss  (0.00)  (0.15)

b.	 Tax reconciliation

	 The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Profit before taxes  (567.30)  (1,301.97)
Enacted tax rate in India 34.944% 34.944%
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate  (198.24)  (454.96)
Effect of:
(i) Expenses on which deferred tax not recognised  198.24  454.96 
(i) Tax effect on non -deductible expenses  -    -   
(ii) Tax effect on deductible expenses  -    -   
(iii) Reversal of MAT Credit  -    -   
(iv) Current year loss to be carried forward  -    -   
(v) (Short)/Excess Provision for tax of earlier years  (0.00)  (0.15)
Income taxes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss  (0.00)  (0.15)

	 The tax rate used for the 2021-22 and 2020-21 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 34.944% payable by corporate entities in India on taxable  
	 profits under the Indian tax laws.

c.	 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Deferred tax
Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income:  -    -   
    Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation  -    -   
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  -    -   
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into:-
    Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss  -    -   
    Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss  -    -   

 -    -   

	 In view of losses during the year, company has not recognised deferred tax on OCI Item.

d.	 Components of Deferred Tax (charge)/benefit for the year	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

(i)   Depreciation and amortisation  -    -
(ii)  Unabsorbed depreciation and business losses  -   -
(iii) Disallowances under Income Tax  -   -
(iv) Provision of bad and doubtful debts  -   -
(v)  Others  -    -   
(vi) MAT Credit Taken  -   -
Total deferred tax for the year *  -   -
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e.	 Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

(a) Deferred tax liabilities
     (i)  Difference between book and tax depreciation  968.62  968.62 
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (A)  968.62  968.62 
(b) Deferred tax assets
     (i)  Disallowances under Income Tax  4.90  4.90 
     (ii) Provision for doubtful debts & advances  19.01  19.01 
    (iii) Unabsorbed depreciation and business losses  663.26  663.26 
    (iv) Minimum Alternate Tax    281.45  281.45 
Total Deferred Tax Assets (B)  968.62  968.62 

Total (A-B)  -    -   

f.	 The Company has following unused tax losses which arosen on incurrence of capital losses under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for which no deferred tax assets  
	 has been recognised in the balance sheet.
	                                                                                                                       	    (₹ in crores)

Finacial Year As at
March 31, 2022 Expiry date

2013-14  55.75 31-03-2023
2015-16  0.23 31-03-2025
2016-17  55.02 31-03-2026
2019-20  0.61 31-03-2029

	 * Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes” requires the company to determine probability of sufficient taxable income to utilize the deferred tax assets including MAT  
	    credit. Considering the factors described in Note 35 and 36 above, the company is of the view not  to recognize deferred tax assets during the year under  
	    review.

43	 In view of losses incurred, the Company has spent Nil (Previous Year  Nil)towards schemes of Corporate Social Responsibility as prescribed under section  
	 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

	 I.   Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year Nil (Previous Year Nil)

	 II.  Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars (₹ in crores)
i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset -

(-)
ii) For purposes other than (i) above -

(-)
[figures in brackets pertain to 2020-21]

44	 Earnings per share

Particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2022
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
₹ per share ₹ per share

Basic Earnings per share  (9.47)  (21.88)
Total basic earnings per share  (9.47)  (21.88)
Diluted Earnings per share  (9.47)  (21.88)
Total diluted earnings per share  (9.47)  (21.88)

	 Basic earnings per share
	 The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (₹ in crores)  (567.30)  (1,301.82)
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share (₹ in crores)  (567.30)  (1,301.82)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share  59,92,17,962  59,50,21,416 
Earnings per share - Basic (₹)  (9.47)  (21.88)
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	 Diluted earnings per share
	 The earnings used in calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows.	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (₹ in crores)  (567.30)  (1,301.82)
FCCB Interest Expenses (Net of Tax)  1.85  3.12 
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share (₹ in crores)  (565.45)  (1,298.70)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share  60,39,74,932  59,97,78,386 
Earnings per share-  Antidulutive in nature (9.36)  (21.65)
Earnings per share-  - Diluted  (₹)  (9.47)  (21.88)

	 The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share reconciles to the weighted average number of equity shares  
	 used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows:		
			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share  59,92,17,962  59,50,21,416 
Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of:
a. Employee options  -    -   
b. Partly paid equity shares  -    -   
c. Convertible bonds  47,56,970  47,56,970 
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of Diluted EPS  60,39,74,932  59,97,78,386 

	 Note: There are  potential equity shares issued by the Company which are anti-dilutive in its nature.

45	 Ind As 115:Revenue from Contracts with Customers

	 The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of yarn.

	 The disagreegation of revenue from contracts with customers is as under:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Domestic Sales  3,106.28  1,685.39 
Export Sales  20.22  3.76 

Total  3,126.50  1,689.15 

	 Contract Liability: (Advance received from customers)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Opening Balance of Contract Liability  1.43  0.94 
Revnue Recognised from the opening balance of contract liability  (1.43)  (0.94)
Current year Contract liability Carried Forward  2.48  1.43 
Closing Balance of Contract Liability  2.48  1.43 

46	 In respect of overseas direct investment  (ODI) made by the company in the earlier years in erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary, the Directorate of  
	 Enforcement, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance, Government of India has held that the end-use of such funds made by the then foreign  
	 subsidiary company is in contravention of the provisions of Section 4 of the Foreign Exchange Management Act (FEMA), 1999 and has, therefore, vide its  
	 Seizure Order dated 15th December, 2017 attached the immovable property of the company by way of certain unencumbered open plots of  land  
	 admeasuring in aggregate about 1,27,851.50 sq. metres having aggregate cost of ₹ 3.69 Crores as per books of accounts of the company. During F.Y.2018- 
	 19, a Notice was issued to the company where by the company was required to show-cause as to why adjudicating proceedings as contemplated under  
	 the relevant Rules should not be held against the company and the aforesaid land should not be confiscated to the Central Government in terms of  
	 Section 13(2) of FEMA,1999.The company strongly believes that it has not contravened provisions of FEMA as alleged in the seizure order and is, therefore,  
	 taking appropriate steps under the law.  In the opinion of the management of the Company all the activities carried out by the then foreign subsidiary are  
	 in compliance with the ODI route under FEMA read with the relevant rules and regulations. The Company’s management is confident of successful outcome  
	 from the proceedings. Therefore, no accounting adjustments have been made in the books of accounts of the Company in this regard.Further, the Company  
	 has filed request application under Section 37A(4) of Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 (‘FEMA’) before Special Director, Directorate of Enforcement,  
	 Mumbai for setting aside the seizure and release of assets seized under Section 37A(1) of FEMA.
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47	 Leases
	 The Company as lessee
	 Leasing arrangements	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Office premises  1.78  1.48 
Total  1.78  1.48 

	 As per the Standard, it is at the option of the company to apply IND AS 116 for the short-term leases (period of 12 months or less) & low value assets. Since  
	 all major lease agreements are for a period of 12 months and 1 of the long term lease is of low value, we have availed the exception. Lease Payments  
	 associated with short term \ low value leases shall be recognized as an expense on straight-line basis. Apart from this, there are no other assets taken on  
	 lease and hence IND AS 116 is not applicable.

48	 Interest on borrowings is net of interest income of ₹ 5.97 crores.	

49	 Subsidies receivables ( Note -16 , Other Current Assets) of ₹ 469.34 crores outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 includes interest subsidy of ₹ 210.96 crores  
	 receivable under Revised Restructured Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (RRTUFS) announced by Ministry of Textiles, Government of India for various  
	 years from F.Y. 15-16 to F.Y. 19-20 upto May,2019. The amount of subsidy benefit recognized is reduced from the borrowing costs in the respective years.  
	 The management and IRP is perusing for recovery of this amount of subsidy. The IRP also filed application in NCLT Ahmedabad for recovery of power and  
	 GST subsidies.	

50	 Commitments	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 75.18 74.81
Total 75.18 74.81

51	 Contingent liabilities	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

a. Company has imported machineries duty free under EPCG Scheme for which  duty saved amount* 187.02  496.09 
b. Disputed demand not acknowledged as debt against which the Company has preferred appeal 0.35  4.39 
c. Counter guarantees given to banks against guarantees issued by banks on behalf of group   
    companies to various authorities

29.56  29.56 

Total  216.93  530.04 

	 *  Against duty  saved of ₹ 187.02 crore (Previous Year  ₹ 496.09 crores) company has export obligation of   ₹ 1,122.12 crores (Previous year ₹ 2,976.54  
	     crore) for which company would be filing statement of export/redemption of EPCG License with DGFT in 2022-23.		
			   (₹ in crores)

Disputed demand not acknowledged as debt against which the Company has preferred appeal As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Income Tax *  0.35  0.35 
Service tax*  -    4.04 

Total  0.35  4.39 

	 *  The amount deposited with the authority in respect of above Income Tax and Service Tax demands of ₹ 0.35 crores (previous year ₹ 0.35 crores) and  Nil   
	     (previous year ₹ 4.04 crores) respectively.

52	 Confirmation of balances (other than related party) in respect of amounts due from trade receivables, capital advances given and loans and advances  
	 granted as well as for the amounts due to/payables to trade payables have not been obtained and/or received by the company and, therefore, these  
	 balances remained unconfirmed.  The process of obtaining confirmation from these parties could not be undertaken due to Covid 19, and will be now  
	 initiated by the management of the company and adjustments, if any required on reconciliation of balances on receipt of confirmations, shall be made  
	 subsequently. However, the management believes that the effect of such adjustments/discrepancies shall not be material.

53	 In respect of certain plots of land located at village Lunsapur, Tal. Jafrabad of Amreli District in the state of Gujarat admeasuring in aggregate 821084 Sq.  
	 Mtrs., where the company’s plant for manufacture of yarn is located, during the year 18-19, the company entered into Agreement to Sell with the owner  
	 of the land for purchase of these plots for aggregate consideration of ₹ 436.81 crores, the possession of which has been obtained by the company  
	 subsequent to the end of FY 18-19. The entire consideration amount of ₹ 436.81 crores has already been paid by the company to an intermediary party  
	 who is also a party to this Agreement to Sell as confirming party. This includes certain plots of land having aggregate cost of ₹ 116.05 crores, which  
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	 was already accounted for as purchase in the books of accounts of the company in F.Y. 2016-17.  During F.Y.2018-19, ₹ 320.76 crores has been accounted  
	 as Purchases/Additions to Freehold Land in the books of accounts of the company. The final Sale Deed in respect of all these plots of land having aggregate  
	 consideration of ₹ 436.81 crores is yet to be executed and, therefore, the relevant expenses of stamp duty, registration fees, etc. shall be accounted for at  
	 the time of execution of documents and actual payment. Accordingly, Title Deeds in respect of all above lands have not been transferred in the name of  
	 the company.

54	 As disclosed by the Company to the stock exchange on 28.08.2021, expected quantum of loss is approximately ₹ 115 crores on account of Cyclone  
	 Tauktae. Till 31.03.2022 the Company has incurred expenses of ₹ 83.11 crore (including loss of inventory of ₹ 21.02 crores and advance of ₹ 5.07 Cr)  
	 for restoration of plant which was damaged due to Cyclone Tauktae on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May, 2021.  As on 31.03.2022 the Company has recovered  
	 ₹ 16.64 crores by realization of salvage value of damaged materials and ₹ 1 crore as advance against insurance claim on 17.03.2022 from Insurance  
	 Company. Accordingly, as on 31.03.2022 net amount of ₹ 65.47 crores shown under the head “Other Current Assets - Advances recoverable in cash or  
	 kind” and not debited to Statement of Profit & Loss account, considering loss / damage is covered by the Insurance. Process of claiming insurance is going  
	 on. Further, out of 65.47 crores receivable from Insurance Company on account of Insurance claim of Cyclone Taukate, the Company has received ₹ 24.98  
	 crores as on 25.04.2022 and ₹ 1 crores as on 27.04.2022 as advance against insurance claim.

55	 The Company continuously monitoring the Covid situation & accordingly managing the operations of the Company. The Company plant was operational for  
	 whole year including period of 2nd & 3rd wave of Covid 19 by taking precautionary steps. Further However, during first quarter ended 30th June 2021,  
	 there is severe damage at our factory plant situated at Taluka Jafarabad, Lunsapur, Amreli, Gujarat due to Cyclone Tauktae on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May,  
	 2021. The loss / damage is covered by the Insurance.Process of claiming insurance is going on. Plant of the Company was not operational due to non  
	 availability of electricity at our factory plant due to damage of Cyclone Tauktae. Electricity was restored at our plant on 05th July, 2021 and operations of  
	 the Company have commenced in a phased manner and achieved 95% capacity as on date. 

56	 The Company has outstanding advances of ₹ 531.91 crores receivables from Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited. Petition for initiation of Corporate Insolvency  
	 Resolution Process under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 filed against Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited by Bank of Baroda (Financial  
	 Creditor) has been admitted vide Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench order dated 24.02.2021. The Company has submitted  
	 claims of ₹ 531.91 crores to Mr. Chandra Prakash Jain (IRP of Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited) on 16.03.2021.However admission of claim yet to be confirmed  
	 by IRP of Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited.

57	 Advances recoverable in cash or kind in Note – 16, “Other Current Assets”, include Insurance claim of ₹ 23.11 crores of F.Y. 2016-17 is outstanding as on  
	 31st March,2021. The insurance company has repudiated  claim pertaining to FY 2016 - 17. Management of company during the year  has filed reply against  
	 the same and is hopeful of settling the claims in full. The Company has initiated legal proceedings against the same.

58	 The Company has defaulted in repayment of principal and interest payments. The period and amount of continuing default as on the Balance sheet date  
	 are as under:			 
			   (₹ in crores)

Name of Lender Principal Interest Period of Continuing 
Default Start Month

Banks/NBFCs
Punjab National Bank (Including Oriental Bank of Commerce & United Bank of India)  1,437.98  235.38 May-19
Punjab Sind Bank  321.74  80.10 May-19
Bank of India  540.77  172.90 May-19
Bank of Baroda (Including Dena Bank & Vijaya Bank)  856.31  297.82 May-19
Canara Bank (Including Syndicate Bank)  514.73  107.37 May-19
Central Bank of India  295.49  90.90 Jun-19
Union Bank of India (Including Andra Bank)  574.63  193.56 May-19
South Indian Bank  238.00  87.61 May-19
Karnataka Bank  95.21  31.70 May-19
IDBI Bank  73.08  26.39 Jun-19
State Bank of India  159.93  84.53 Aug-19
Axis Bank Ltd  82.42  24.01 Jun-19
Canbank Factors Limited  5.54  1.52 Jun-19
The Federal Bank Limited  13.28  3.40 Jun-19
UCO Bank Limited  0.42  0.11 Jun-19
Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank  75.81  16.77 Oct-19
DZ Bank AG  261.07  18.10 Oct-19

 5,546.41  1,472.17 
Financial Institutions
Export Import Bank of India  436.76  166.25 Jun-19

 436.76  166.25 
Non-Convertible Debentures  500.00  149.57 Jun-19

Total  6,483.17  1,787.99 
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	 As per Section 14 of IBC 2016, during moratorium period institution of suits or continuation of pending suits proceedings against the corporate debtor  
	 including execution of any judgement, decree or order in any court law, tribunal, arbitration panel or other authority is prohibited. Interim Resolution  
	 Professional is of the view, on the basis of Honable Calcutta high court in the matter of Ayan Mallick v/s State Bank of India passed on 04th March, 2021   
	 stated that  proceedings for declaration of wilful defaulter in respect of the borrowing Company / Corporate Debtor during CIRP must be construed to  
	 fall within the purview of section 14 of IB Code,2016.The aforesaid view of IRP was recorded in the minutes of meeting of Committee of Creditors held  
	 on 02.07.2021. However, Bank of Baroda and Punjab & Sind Bank declared Sintex Industries Limited as wilful defaulter on November,2021 & September,2021  
	 respectively.

59	 Previous year figures are regrouped / reclassified wherever required in order to make it comparable in line with the amendments in Schedule III, Division  
	 II to the Companies Act, 2013 effective from 1st April, 2021.

60	 The Resolution Plan submitted by Reliance Industries Limited jointly with Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited has been approved by CoC. As  
	 per the said approved Resolution Plan there may be impairment of assets of the Company. However, as on date impact of the same is not considered in the  
	 financial statements as the Resolution Plan is pending before Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad for approval. Once the Resolution Plan is approved by Hon’ble NCLT  
	 Ahmedabad, the necessary effect of impairment of assets if any will be done in the financial statement as part of implementation of the Resolution Plan.

61	 Events Occuring After Balance Sheet Date
	 The company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the financial statements to determine the  
	 necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of 23rd May,2022 there were no  
	 subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed.

62	 Disclosure of Key Ratios                                                                            (₹ in crores)

Sr.
No Ratio

Amount
as on

31st March 
2022

Ratio
as on  

31st March 
2022

Amount
as on 

31st March 
2021

Ratio
as on

31st March
2021

% Change
in Ratio

Explanation provided for any 
change in ratio by more than 25% 

in current year as compared to 
previous year

1 Current Ratio
Current Assets 
Current Liabilities

 1,625.96 
 0.74 

 1,059.19 
 0.73 1.45% -

 2,191.97  1,448.66 
2 Debt-to-equity Ratio

Total Debt
Total Equity

 8,587.62 
 6.58 

 7,775.00 
 4.15 58.69% Due to provision of interest on 

Debt upto 31st March, 2022 1,304.62  1,874.40 
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Earning available for Debt Service
Interest + Principal

 507.05 
 0.62 

 201.49 
 0.25 148.95% Due to improve in earning

during the year 812.04  803.31 
4 Return on Equity Ratio

Profit After Tax
Total Equity

 (567.30)
-43.48%

 (1,301.82)
-69.45% -37.39% Due to improve in earning

during the year 1,304.62  1,874.40 
5 Inventory Turnover Ratio

Cost of Goods Sold
Inventory of FG and WIP

 2,463.97 
17.73 

 1,464.40 
 21.65 -18.09% -

 138.93  67.63 
6 Receivables Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Sales
Trade Receivables

 3,126.50 
 9.30 

 1,689.15 
 13.17 -29.41% Improvement in average

collection days. 336.24  128.24 
7 Payables Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Purchases
Trade Payables

 2,696.81 
 15.15 

 1,542.81 
 13.92 8.87% -

 177.96  110.84 
8 Net capital turnover Ratio

Net Sales
Net Worth 

 3,126.50 
 2.40 

 1,689.15 
 0.90 165.93% Due to increased in sales

during the year 1,304.62  1,874.40 
9 Net profit ratio

Proift After Tax
Net Sales

 (567.30)
-18.14%

 (1,301.82)
-77.07% -76.46% Due to improve in earning

during the year 3,126.50  1,689.15 
10 Return on Capital employed Ratio

EBIT
Capital Employed

 244.74 
2.47%

 (80.41)
-0.83% -396.87% Due to improve in earning

during the year 9,891.41  9,647.80 
11 Return on investment Ratio

Net Return on Investment
Investment

 -   
Not Applicable

 -   
Not Applicable - -

 38.38  40.16 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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As per our report of even date attached

For R Choudhary & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Sintex Industries Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 101928W	 L17110GJ1931PLC000454

K M Chaudhary	 Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
Partner	 Interim Resolution Professional	 CFO	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 133388	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248		

Place : Ahmedabad	 Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 Date : 23rd May, 2022

63	 Contingent assets
	 The are no contingent assets recognised as at March 31, 2022.

64	 Approval of financial statements
	 The financial statements were approved for issue by the Interim Resolution Professional on 23rd May,2022		
	

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Sintex Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditor’s Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sintex Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent”) and its subsidiary 
company (BVM Overseas Limited) (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred as “the Group”), comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
31st March, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the 
Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the  consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind As”) and 
other  accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, Loss, total comprehensive loss, changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.  

Emphasis of Matter

i.	 We draw attention to Note 37 to the consolidated financial statement, which states that the company’s credit rating has been downgraded (Company’s  
	 credit rating is “BWR D” from Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd. for Non-Convertible Debentures), which may substantially impair its ability to raise or  
	 generate funds to repay its obligations. As mentioned in the same note, The company has defaulted in debt obligation of debentures aggregating to   
	 ₹ 500.00 Crores for the period April,19 to 6th April,2021 (date of admission in Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) apart from other credit facilities.  
	 However, Company has made provision for interest for the period April,2019to March,2022. Further, Company’s inability to meet its obligation in relation  
	 to the payment of certain letters of credit which led to devolvement and consequent over utilization of the cash credit facilities availed by the Company,  
	 delay in payment of certain term loan instalments as well as interest thereof. Further, as described in said Note, although the Company submitted various  
	 Resolution Plans to lenders on various dates, the Punjab National Bank filed petition before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Ahmedabad under  
	 Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 for initiating Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the company in December,2019.  
	 Petition for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 filed against the Company by  
	 Invesco Asset Management (India) Private Limited (Financial Creditor) for default amount of ₹ 15,00,00,000/- (Principal amount) has been admitted  
	 against the Company vide Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench order dated 06.04.2021. Mr. Pinakin Shah (having registration  
	 no. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248) has been appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by the Honourable National Company Law Tribunal,  
	 Ahmedabad Bench under Section 13(1)(c) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and moratorium period under Section 14 of the Insolvency and  
	 Bankruptcy Code 2016 is declared.

ii.	 We draw attention to Note 38 to the consolidated financial statement, with respect to impairment of assets, as described in the said note, the company  
	 has discontinued the manufacturing operations of structured fabrics (except bleaching facility) at Kalol effective from 1st July, 2019 on account of high cost  
	 of operations. The management of the company has assessed that any provision needs to be recognised on account of the impairment of assets in respect  
	 of property, plant and equipment of its Textile Division. The higher of Textile Division assets fair value (less cost of disposal) and its value in use as per  
	 valuation report obtained from approved valuer as on 30th September,2020 and is found lower than its carrying amount as per books of accounts of the  
	 company and hence the Company has recognised impairment loss of ₹ 426.64 crores for the year 2020-21. Therefore, the impairment loss has been  
	 shown under “Exceptional Item”.

iii.	 We draw attention to Note 39 to the consolidated financial statement, with respect to USD 110 Million Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds due 2022  
	 (FCCBs) raised by the Company, there are USD 6.5 Million FCCBs outstanding for conversion as on 31st March, 2022.Further, the Company has defaulted in  
	 payment of Interest amounting to USD 0.64 Million for the period 25th May,19 to 31st March,2022.

iv.	 We draw attention to Note 44 to the consolidated financial statement, with respect to recognition of deferred tax assets. As stated in the said Note,  
	 deferred tax asset has not been recognized in view of losses during the year.

v.	 We draw attention to Note 45 to the standalone financial statement, with respect to spending on Corporate Social responsibility. As stated in the said Note,  
	 company has not spent anything on it.

vi.	 We draw attention to Note 50 to the consolidated financial statement, with respect to realization of subsidies aggregating to ₹ 469.34 crores outstanding as  
	 at 31st March, 2022 including interest subsidy of ₹ 210.96 Crores. As per the information and explanations furnished to us, IRP and the suspended  
	 management is taking necessary actions for realization of these subsidies and as stated in the said Note, IRP has also filed application in NCLT Ahmedabad  
	 for recovery of power and GST subsidies. 
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vii.	 We draw attention to Note 53 to the consolidated financial statement, with respect to confirmation of balances. As stated in the said note confirmation of  
	 balances in respect of amounts due from trade receivables, capital advances given and loans and advances granted as well as for the amounts due to/ 
	 payables to trade payables have not been obtained and/or received by the Group and, therefore, these balances remained unconfirmed.

viii.	We draw attention to Note 55 to the consolidated financial statement, with respect to expected quantum of loss is approximately ₹ 115.00 crores on  
	 account of Cyclone Tauktae. Till 31.03.2022 the Company has incurred expenses of Rs 83.11 crore (including loss of inventory of ₹ 21.02 crores and  
	 advance of ₹ 5.07 Cr) for restoration of plant which was damaged due to Cyclone Tauktae on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May, 2021.  As on 31.03.2022 the  
	 Company has recovered ₹ 16.64 crores by realization of salvage value of damaged materials and ₹ 1 crore as advance against insurance claim on  
	 17.03.2022 from Insurance Company. Accordingly, as on 31.03.2022 net amount of ₹ 65.47 crores shown under the head “Other Current Assets - Advances  
	 recoverable in cash or kind” and not debited to Statement of Profit & Loss account, considering loss / damage is covered by the Insurance. Process of  
	 claiming insurance is going on. Further, out of 65.47 crores receivable from Insurance Company on account of Insurance claim of Cyclone Taukate, the  
	 Company has received ₹ 24.98 crores as on 25.04.2022 and ₹ 1 crores as on 27.04.2022 as advance against insurance claim.

ix.	 We draw attention to Note 56 to the consolidated financial statement wherein it is mentioned that- the Group continuously monitoring the Covid situation  
	 & accordingly managing the operations of the Company. The Company plant was operational for whole year including period of 2nd & 3rd wave of Covid  
	 19 by taking precautionary steps. Further, during first quarter ended 30th June 2021, there is severe damage at our factory plant situated at Taluka  
	 Jafarabad, Lunsapur, Amreli, Gujarat due to Cyclone Tauktae on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May, 2021. The loss / damage is covered by the Insurance. Process  
	 of claiming insurance is going on. Plant of the Company was not operational due to non availability of electricity at our factory plant due to damage of  
	 Cyclone Tauktae. Electricity was restored at our plant on 05th July, 2021 and operations of the Company have commenced in a phased manner and  
	 achieved 95% capacity as on date.

x.	 We draw attention to Note 57 to the consolidated financial statement, wherein it is mentioned that, the Holding Company has outstanding advances of 
	 ₹ 531.91 crores receivables from Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited. Petition for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Section 7 of the  
	 Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 filed against Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited by Bank of Baroda (Financial Creditor) has been admitted vide Honourable  
	 National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench order dated 24.02.2021. The Company has submitted claims of ₹ 531.91 crores to Mr. Chandra  
	 Prakash Jain (IRP of Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited) on 16.03.2021. However admission of claim yet to be confirmed by IRP of Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited.

xi.	 We draw attention to Note 58 to the consolidated financial statement, with respect to insurance claim receivable. The insurance claim receivable includes  
	 insurance claim of ₹ 23.11 crores of F.Y. 2016-17 is outstanding as on 31st March,2022. The insurance company has repudiated claim pertaining to FY  
	 2016 - 17. Management of company has filed reply against the same and is hopeful of settling the claims in full. The Company has initiated legal proceedings  
	 against the same.

xii.	 We draw attention to Note 59 to the consolidated financial statement, with respect to defaulted in repayment of principal and interest payments. The  
	 period and amount of continuing default as on the Balance sheet date are as under:
				    (₹ in Crores)

Name of lenders Principal Interest Period of Continuing
Default Start Month

Banks / NBFCS
Punjab National Bank (Including Oriental Bank of Commerce & United Bank of India) 1,437.98 235.38 May-19
Punjab Sind Bank  321.74 80.10 May-19
Bank of India       540.77 172.90 May-19
Bank of Baroda (Including Dena Bank & Vijaya Bank)       856.31 297.82 May-19
Canara Bank (Including Syndicate Bank)       514.73 107.37 May-19
Central Bank of India       295.49 90.90 Jun-19
Union Bank of India (Including Andra Bank)       574.63 193.56 May-19
South Indian Bank       238.00 87.61 May-19
Karnataka Bank        95.21 31.70 May-19
IDBI Bank        73.08 26.39 Jun-19
State Bank of India       159.93 84.53 Aug-19
Axis Bank Ltd        82.42 24.01 Jun-19
Canbank Factors Limited          5.54 1.52 Jun-19
The Federal Bank Limited        13.28 3.40 Jun-19
UCO Bank Limited          0.42 0.11 Jun-19
Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank        75.81 16.77 Oct-19
DZ Bank AG       261.07        18.10 Oct-19
  5,546.41  1,472.17  
Financial Institutions    
Export Import Bank of India       436.76       166.25 Jun-19
      436.76      166.25  
Non-Convertible Debentures      500.00      149.57 Jun-19

xiii.	We draw attention to Note 61 to the consolidated financial statement, with respect to the Resolution Plan submitted by Reliance Industries Limited jointly  
	 with Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited has been approved by CoC. As per the said approved Resolution Plan there may be impairment of  
	 assets of the Company. However, as on date impact of the same is not considered in the financial statements as the Resolution Plan is pending before  
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	 Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad for approval. Once the Resolution Plan is approved by Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad, the necessary effect of impairment of assets if  
	 any will be done in the financial statement as part of implementation of the Resolution Plan.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors and IRP are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s 
Report and Annexure to Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to 
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

Management’s and Interim Resolution Professional’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statement	
	
The Company’s Board of Directors and Interim resolution Professional are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the 
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Interim Resolution Professional are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors and IRP are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures  
	 responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material  
	 misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,  
	 misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under  
	 section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in  
	 place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether  
	 a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we  
	 conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements  
	 or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s  
	 report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements  
	 represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 



102

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statement / financial information of 1 subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements, whose financial statement / 
financial information reflects total assets of ₹ 244.75 Crores as at 31st March, 2022, total revenue of ₹ 681.46 Crores, total Net profit after tax of ₹ 1.15 Crores 
and total Comprehensive income of ₹ 1.15 Crores for the year ended 31st March, 2022 respectively and net cash inflow of ₹ 4.67 Crores for the year ended on 
31st March, 2022 as considered in the statement. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose reports have been furnished to us by 
the Management and our opinion and conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary 
is based solely on the report of the other auditor and the procedures performed by us as stated under Auditor’s Responsibilities section above.

Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of other auditors on separate financial statements of  
	 the subsidiary incorporated in India, referred in the Other Matters paragraph above we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

	 (a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of  
		  our audit.

	 (b)   In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

	 (c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the  
		  Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with  
		  Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the IRP, none of the directors is  
		  disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

	 (f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of  
		  such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”, which is based on the auditor’s report of the Parent Company and Subsidiary company  
		  incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over  
		  financial reporting of those companies, for reasons stated therein.

	 (g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as  
		  amended:

		  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no managerial remuneration has been paid by the  
		  company to its directors during the year in accordance with provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

	 (h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,  
		  as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements – Refer Note no 52 to the consolidated  
			   financial statements;

		  ii.	 Provision has been made in the financial statements, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses,  
			   if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

		  iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor’s education and protection fund by the company.

		  iv.	 (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either  
			   from borrowed funds or share  premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including  
			   foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly  
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			   or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever  by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)  
			   or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		  iv.	 (b) The management has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the company from any  
			   person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the  
			   company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the  
			   Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		  iv.	 (c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice  
			   that has caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

		  v.	 Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

				    For, R Choudhary & Associates
				    Chartered Accountants
				    Firm Regn. No: 101928W

				    K M Chaudhary
				    (Partner)
Place : Ahmedabad	 M. No.: 133388
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 UDIN : 22133388AJKVQX6980 
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ANNEXURE A - to the Independent Auditors’ Report
of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Sintex Industries Limited

(Referred to in Paragraph 2(F) under the Heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our 
Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Parent Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent Company”) and its 
subsidiary Companies which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its Subsidiary company which are incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by these entities, considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note)  
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the other auditor of the subsidiary companies incorporated in India, in terms of their report referred to 
in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference 
to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of  other auditors, 
as referred to in Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary Companies which are incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2022, based on, “the internal control with reference to financial statements established by the respective companies, 
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considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in so far as its relates to consolidated/standalone financial statements of subsidiary company which are incorporated in India, is based solely on the 
corresponding reports of the auditor of such company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

				    For, R Choudhary & Associates
				    Chartered Accountants
				    Firm Regn. No: 101928W

				    K M Chaudhary
				    (Partner)
Place : Ahmedabad	 M. No.: 133388
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 UDIN : 22133388AJKVQX6980
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(₹ in crores)

Particulars Note As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
I ASSETS

Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4  7,042.52  7,303.57 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5  1,066.00  1,066.25 
(c) Other Intangible assets 6  0.83  1.60 
(d) Financial Assets
     (i) Investments 8  33.88  35.66 
(e) Deferred tax assets 21  0.35  0.74 
(f) Other non-current assets 9  392.67  387.41 
(g) Non-current tax assets (net) 10  4.52  2.25 
Total non-current assets  8,540.77  8,797.48 

Current assets
(a) Inventories 11  381.58  158.06 
(b) Financial assets
      (i)   Investments  -    -   
     (ii)  Trade receivables 12  260.01  109.41 
     (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13  39.33  28.10 
     (iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 14  -    -   
     (v)  Loans 15  73.50  67.53 
(c) Other current assets 16  914.06  712.41 
Total current assets  1,668.48  1,075.51 
TOTAL ASSETS  10,209.25  9,872.99 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
(a) Equity share capital 17  59.92  59.92 
(b) Other equity 18  1,244.08  1,820.38 
Total equity  1,304.00  1,880.30 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 19  -   -
(b) Provisions 20  3.25  4.37 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21 - -
Total non-current liabilities  3.25  4.37 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
     (i)   Borrowings 22  6,670.47  6,532.61 
     (ii)  Trade payables
           (a) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise 23  6.82  3.59 
           (b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprise 23  180.34  110.56 
     (iii) Other financial liabilities 24  2,006.77  1,329.89 
(b) Other current liabilities 25  35.39  6.38 
(c) Provisions 26  2.21  5.29 
Total current liabilities  8,902.00  7,988.32 
Total liabilities  8,905.25  7,992.69 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  10,209.25  9,872.99 

See accompanying notes 1 to 65  to the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For R Choudhary & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Sintex Industries Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 101928W	 L17110GJ1931PLC000454

K M Chaudhary	 Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
Partner	 Interim Resolution Professional	 CFO	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 133388	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248		

Place : Ahmedabad	 Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 Date : 23rd May, 2022



107

SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(₹ in crores)

Particulars Note For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

I Revenue from operations 27  3,059.70  1,695.71 
II Other income 28  109.35  61.06 
III Total Income (I+II)  3,169.05  1,756.77 
IV Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed 29  2,191.00  1,110.24 
(b)  Purchases of stock-in-trade 30  0.00  0.00 
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 31  (132.35)  11.97 
(d) Employee benefits expense 32  164.14  134.57 
(e) Finance costs 33  813.11  795.32 
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 7  262.33  281.77 
(g) Other expenses 34  444.25  302.25 
Total expenses (IV)  3,742.48  2,636.12 

V Profit/(Loss) before tax and Exceptional Item(III-IV)  (573.43)  (879.35)
VI Exceptional Item 35  -    426.64 
VII Profit/(Loss) before tax (V)-(VI)  (573.43)  (1,305.99)
VIII Tax expense:

(a) Current tax  -    -   
(b) Short/(Excess) Provision for tax of earlier years  (0.00)  (0.14)
(c) Deferred tax  0.39  0.56 

 0.39  0.42 
IX Profit after tax for the year (VII-VIII)  (573.82)  (1,306.41)

Other Comprehensive Income:
A  (i)  Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
          (a) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income  (1.78)  0.08 
          (b) Remeasurment of the net defined benefit plans  (0.70)  (0.59)
     (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of
           Profit and Loss

 -    -   

B  (i)  Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss  -    -   
    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Statement of
         Profit and Loss

 -    -   

X Other Comprehensive Income for the year (A(i)+(ii)+B(i)+(ii))  (2.48)  (0.51)
XI Total Comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)  (576.30)  (1,306.92)
XII Earnings per share (of ₹ 10/- each):

Basic (In ₹) 36  (9.58)  (21.96)
Diluted (In ₹) 36  (9.58)  (21.96)

See accompanying notes 1 to 65  to the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For R Choudhary & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Sintex Industries Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 101928W	 L17110GJ1931PLC000454

K M Chaudhary	 Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
Partner	 Interim Resolution Professional	 CFO	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 133388	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248		

Place : Ahmedabad	 Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 Date : 23rd May, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

(₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

A Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and Exceptional Item  (573.43)  (879.35)
Adjustments for:
Unreaslised Foreign Loss  (1.04)  0.75 
Bad Debts  written off  0.04  21.28 
Interest income  (4.47)  (8.50)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  262.33  281.77 
Finance cost  813.11  795.32 
Operating profit before working capital changes  496.54  211.27 
Adjustments for increase/decrease in Operating Assets/ Liabilities:
Trade receivables, loans and other assets  (356.50)  (109.24)
Inventories  (223.52)  (20.35)
Trade payables, other liabilities and provisions  99.39  (30.35)
Cash generated from operations  15.91  51.33 
Direct taxes paid (Net)  (2.27)  44.88 
Net cash generated from operations activities (A)  13.64  96.21 

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment/addition to capital-work-in progress  (0.27)  (0.63)
Interest received  4.48  8.58 
Net cash used in investing activities (B)  4.21  7.95 

C Cash flow from financing activities
Repayments from long term borrowings  -    (8.39)
Interest Paid  (6.46)  (85.87)
Dividend paid  (0.16)  (0.19)
Net cash genereted from financing activities (C )  (6.62)  (94.45)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  11.23  9.71 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  28.10  18.39 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  39.33  28.10 

Notes:				  
1.	 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7
	 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

2.	 Cash and cash equivalents comprises of				     (₹ in crores) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
(a) Balance with banks  38.49  26.41 
(b) Cash on hand  0.22  0.58 
(c) Bank deposits with upto 3 months maturity  0.04  0.38 

 38.75  27.37 
Other bank balances 
 Earmarked balances with banks
- Unclaimed dividend accounts  0.58 0.73

 0.58  0.73 
Cash and cash equivalents in Cash flow statement  39.33  28.10 

As per our report of even date attached

For R Choudhary & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Sintex Industries Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 101928W	 L17110GJ1931PLC000454

K M Chaudhary	 Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
Partner	 Interim Resolution Professional	 CFO	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 133388	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248		

Place : Ahmedabad	 Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 Date : 23rd May, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A.  Equity Share Capital				    (₹ in crores)

Particulars Amount
 Balance as at 1st April, 2020  59.41 
 Changes in equity share capital during the year  0.51 
 Balance as at 1st April, 2021  59.92 
 Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   
 Balance as at March 31, 2022  59.92 

B.  Other equity				    (₹ in crores)

Particulars

Equity 
component 

of compound 
financial 

instruments 
(FCCBs)

Reserves and surplus
Item of Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Total
Securities 
premium 

Debenture 
redemption 

reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Equity instruments 
through other 

comprehensive 
income

Balance as at April 01, 2020  -    1,116.01  111.03  428.58  1,434.54  (9.56)  3,080.60 
Premium on conversion of FCCBs  46.70  46.70 
Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    (1,306.41)  (1,306.41)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of income tax -Equity Instruments through Other 
Comprehensive income

 0.08  0.08 

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan  -    -    -    -    (0.59)  -    (0.59)
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year  -    -    -    -    (1,307.00)  0.08  (1,260.22)
Balance as at March 31, 2021  -    1,162.71  111.03  428.58  127.54  (9.48)  1,820.38 
Premium on conversion of FCCBs  -    -   
Profit for the year  (573.82)  (573.82)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of income tax -Equity Instruments through Other 
Comprehensive income

 (1.78)  (1.78)

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan  (0.70)  -    (0.70)
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    (574.52)  (1.78)  (576.30)
Balance as at March 31, 2022  -    1,162.71  111.03  428.58  (446.98)  (11.26)  1,244.08 

As per our report of even date attached

For R Choudhary & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Sintex Industries Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 101928W	 L17110GJ1931PLC000454

K M Chaudhary	 Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
Partner	 Interim Resolution Professional	 CFO	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 133388	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248		

Place : Ahmedabad	 Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 Date : 23rd May, 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022

1.	 General Information

	 Sintex Industries Limited (“the Company”) is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of yarn.

	 Sintex Industries Limited is a public limited company incorporated in India on June 01, 1931 under the Companies Act, 1956 and listed on the Bombay Stock  
	 Exchange and National Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is at Kalol (North Gujarat) – 382 721, India. The Textile Division of the  
	 company is situated at Kalol (N.G) and its Yarn Division is situated at Village Lunsapur, Talu: Jafrabad, Dist: Amreli.

	 The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of the company and its subsidiary (collectively, the Group) for the year ended March  
	 31, 2022. The principal activities of the subsidiary are described in note 40

2.	 Basis of preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

I.	 Basis of preparation and Compliance with Ind AS

	 These consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been prepared in accordance with the Indian  
	 Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting  
	 Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (collectively called as Ind AS).

	 The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures laid down under the Accounting Standard notified  
	 under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The consolidated financial statements comprise  
	 the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as disclosed in Note no. 40 combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together book values of like  
	 items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances and transactions and resulting unrealized gain / loss. The consolidated  
	 financial statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group.

II.	 Principles of Consolidation

	 The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary company.

	 Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other event in similar circumstances. If a  
	 member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements, appropriate adjustments are made to  
	 that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies. 

	 The financial statements of all the entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company.  
	 When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the respective entity prepares, for consolidation purposes,  
	 additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information  
	 of the said entity, unless it is impracticable to do so. 

	 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis.

	 Subsidiaries

	 Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns  
	 from its power and involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 

	 Subsidiaries are considered for consolidation when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and are derecognized when the Group loses control  
	 of the subsidiary. Subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of the like items of assets, liabilities,  
	 equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains resulting on intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.  
	 Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in arriving at the carrying amount of assets unless transaction provides an evidence  
	 of impairment of transferred asset. 

	 Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the Group and are presented separately in the Statement of  
	 Profit and Loss and Consolidated Balance Sheet, separately from parent shareholders’ equity. Profit and loss and each component of other comprehensive  
	 income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling  
	 interests having a deficit balance.

	 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity  
	 transactions. The carrying amounts of the Groups interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests  
	 in the subsidiaries.

III.	 Basis of measurement

	 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of  
	 accounting, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value, as required by relevant Ind AS.

	 1.	 Derivative financial instruments
	 2.	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)
	 3.	 Defined benefit plans

IV.	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency. All financial information  
	 presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded to the nearest Crore with two decimals.

V.	 Current and Non-current Classification

	 The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current classification.
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	 An asset is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following criteria:

	 a)	 It is expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in the Group’s normal operating cycle,
	 b)	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
	 c)	 It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
	 d)	 It is a cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

	 All other assets are classified as non-current.

	 A liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following criteria:

	 a)	 it is expected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle,
	 b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
	 c)	 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period
	 d)	 there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability beyond twelve months after the reporting period

	 The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

	 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified  
	 twelve months as its operating cycle.

3.	 Significant Accounting policies

I.	 Revenue recognition

	 The Group derives revenues from sale and trading of yarn. 

	 Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that  
	 reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

	 The Group recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale. 

	 The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment  
	 by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

	 The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if any one of the following criteria is met.

	 1.	 The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs; or

	 2.	 The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

	 3.	 The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an enforceable right to payment for  
		  performance completed to date.

	 For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the performance  
	 obligation is satisfied.

	 Dividend and interest income

	 Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established (provided that it is probable that  
	 the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably). 

	 Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can  
	 be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,  
	 which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount  
	 on initial recognition.

	 Subsidy income

	 Income from Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidy will be received and all  
	 attaching conditions will be complied with.

II.	 Leases

	 Transition

	 Effective April 01, 2019, Group has adopted Ind AS 116 “leases” and applied the standard to all applicable lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using  
	 the modified retrospective method with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised on the date of initial application. Accordingly, Group  
	 has not restated comparative information and recognised right of use assets at an amount equal to lease liability.

	 The Group’s lease asset primarily consists of leases for building & Land. The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract.  
	 A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.  
	 To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of  
	 an identified asset (ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group has  
	 the right to direct the use of the asset.
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	 Group as a lessee

	 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements  
	 in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value  
	 leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense.

	 The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or  
	 prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated  
	 depreciation and impairment losses.

	 Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the  
	 underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts  
	 may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. The higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in- 
	 use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In  
	 such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the  
	 interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding  
	 adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

	 Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and finance cost portion of lease payments have been classified as  
	 financing cash flows.

	 Group as a lessor 

	 At the inception of the lease, the Group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Group recognizes lease payments  
	 received under operating leases as income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

III.	 Foreign currency translations

	 The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiary has been determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which it operates.  
	 The functional currency of the Company is INR. 

	 In preparing the consolidated financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency  
	 (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary  
	 items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated  
	 in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in  
	 terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

	 Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences  
	 on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they  
	 are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

	 The Group has decided to continue the policy adopted for accounting for exchange differences arising from translation of long-term foreign currency  
	 monetary items recognised in the standalone financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial  
	 reporting period as per the previous GAAP i.e. exchange differences relating to long term foreign currency monetary items in so far as they relate to  
	 acquisition of depreciable capital assets is adjusted to the cost of such capital asset and depreciated over the balance useful life of such asset.

IV.	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial  
	 period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for  
	 their intended use or sale.

	 All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

V.	 Employee Benefits

	 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

	 Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the  
	 contributions. For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with  
	 actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the  
	 changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of financial position  
	 with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive  
	 income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period  
	 of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.  
	 Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

	 •	 service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
	 •	 net interest expense or income; and
	 •	 remeasurement

	 The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item employee benefits expenses. Curtailment gains and  
	 losses are accounted for as past service costs. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position represents  



113

SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022

	 the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic  
	 benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans. A liability for a termination benefit is recognised  
	 at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring  
	 costs.

	 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

	 A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is  
	 rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

	 Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange  
	 for the related service.

	 Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected  
	 to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

VI.	 Taxation  

	 Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

	 Current tax

	 Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions  
	 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and  
	 the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.  
	 Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available  
	 against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference  
	 arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor  
	 the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary and associates, and interests in joint  
	 ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not  
	 reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are  
	 only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences  
	 and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that  
	 sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,  
	 based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

	 The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at  
	 the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

	 For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets on non-depreciable assets the carrying amounts of such properties are  
	 presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the  
	 deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

	 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax  
	 liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as a deferred  
	 tax asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Group.

	 Current and deferred tax for the year

	 Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relating to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or  
	 directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

VII.	 Property, plant and equipment

	 The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the standalone financial statements  
	 as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition and hence regarded  
	 thereafter as historical cost.

	 The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other  
	 than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use,  
	 including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such  
	 as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul  
	 expenditure is capitalized as the activities undertaken improves the economic benefits expected to arise from the asset. 
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	 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued  
	 use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between  
	 the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under construction account. At the point when an asset is operating at management’s  
	 intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences. Costs  
	 associated with the commissioning of an asset and any obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalized where the asset is available for use but incapable  
	 of operating at normal levels until a period of commissioning has been completed. Revenue generated from production during the trial period is capitalized.

VIII.	Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated Amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.  
	 Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and Amortisation method are reviewed at  
	 the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite  
	 useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

IX.	 Depreciation and Amortisation 

	 Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is provided on  
	 buildings and plant & machinery on a straight-line method and in case of other tangible assets, on written-down value method over the estimated useful  
	 lives of the assets as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except for plant and machinery, where life of the plant and  
	 machinery has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the plant and machinery, the estimated usage of the  
	 plant and machinery, the operating conditions of the plant and machinery, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers  
	 warranties and maintenance support, etc. The useful lives of plant and machinery has been estimated as 22 years and 30 years for different categories as  
	 technically determined.

	 When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific  
	 useful lives.

	 Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives on straight line method. The amortization rates used for intangible assets are as under:

Class of assets Years
Software 5 years

	 Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease, except where the lease is convertible to freehold land under  
	 lease agreements at future dates at no additional cost.

	 The Group reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is  
	 accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

X.	 Impairment of non-current assets

	 At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any  
	 indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to  
	 determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group  
	 estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be  
	 identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating  
	 units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

	 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there  
	 is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

	 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted  
	 to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset  
	 for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

	 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash- 
	 generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the  
	 relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

	 Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its  
	 recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment  
	 loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of  
	 Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation  
	 increase.

XI.	 Inventories

	 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs  
	 including manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost of raw materials, traded goods and  
	 stores and spares are ascertained on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated  
	 costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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XII.	 Financial Instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of  
	 financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss) are added to  
	 or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 

	 A.	 Financial assets

	 a)	 Recognition and initial measurement

		  i)	 The Group initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issues and subordinated liabilities on the date on which they originate.  
			   All other financial instruments (including regular purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on  
			   which the Group became a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or liability is initially measured at fair value plus,  
			   for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

		  ii)	 In case of investments in subsidiary, joint ventures and associates the Company has chosen to measure its investments at deemed cost.

		  iii)	 The Company has elected to apply the requirements pertaining to Level III financial instruments of deferring the difference between the fair value  
			   at initial recognition and the transaction price prospectively to transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.

	 b)	 Classification

		  On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at; amortized cost, FVOCI or FVTPL

		  A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

		  •	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

		  •	 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the  
			   principal amount outstanding

		  This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using  
		  the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs  
		  that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR Amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are  
		  recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 12.  
		  A debt instrument is classified as FVOCI only if it meets both the of the following conditions and is not recognised at FVTPL;	

		  •	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

		  •	 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the  
			   principal amount outstanding

		  Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are  
		  recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign  
		  exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to  
		  P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

		  All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration  
		  recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the group  
		  may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The group makes such election on  
		  an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

		  If the group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in  
		  the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the group may transfer the cumulative gain or  
		  loss within equity.

		  Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L. 

		  All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. 

		  In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at  
		  amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

	 c)	 Derecognition

		  A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet)  
		  when:

		  •	  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

		  •	  The group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without  
			   material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards  
			   of the asset, or (b) the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of  
			   the asset.
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		  When the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to  
		  what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards  
		  of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing  
		  involvement. In that case, the group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis  
		  that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

		  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the  
		  asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be required to repay.

	 d)	 Impairment 

		  Impairment of financial assets

		  In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the  
		  following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

		  a)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank  
			   balance
		  b)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
		  c)	 Lease receivables under Ind AS 116
		  d)	 Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind  
			   AS 11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to as ‘contractual revenue receivables’ in these illustrative financial statements)
		  e)	 Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL
		  f)	 Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

		  The group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

		  I)	 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
		  II)	 All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

		  The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based  
		  on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

		  For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the group determines that whether there has been a significant increase  
		  in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However,  
		  if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no  
		  longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month  
		  ECL.

		  Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL  
		  is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

		  ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity  
		  expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

		  i)	 All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial  
			   instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to  
			   use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument
		  ii)	 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

		  ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L).  
		  This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described  
		  below:

		  i)	 Financial assets measured as at amortized cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an  
			   integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write- 
			   off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.
		  ii)	 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.
		  iii)	 Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from  
			   its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

		  For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the group combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics  
		  with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

		  The group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on  
		  purchase/ origination.

	 e)	 Effective interest method

		  The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant  
		  period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that  
		  form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,  
		  or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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		  Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

	 B.	 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

	 a)	 Classification as debt or equity

		  Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the  
		  contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

	 b)	 Equity instruments

		  An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments 	
		  issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

		  Repurchase of the Group’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit  
		  and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

	 c)	 Financial liabilities

		  Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’.

		  Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

		  Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

		  Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The  
		  net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and  
		  losses’ line item in the consolidated [statement of comprehensive income/Statement of Profit and Loss]. 

		  The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference  
		  between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and  
		  Loss. 

	 d)	 Derivative financial instruments

		  The Group has entered into forward exchange contracts or principal only swap which are in substance of forward exchange contracts to manage its  
		  exposure to foreign currency cash flows. 

		  Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value  
		  at the end of each reporting period. 

	 e)	 Reclassification of financial assets

		  The group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for  
		  financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only  
		  if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The group’s  
		  senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the group’s operations.  
		  Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the group either begins or ceases to perform an activity  
		  that is significant to its operations. If the group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date  
		  which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The group does not restate any previously  
		  recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

		  The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment
Amortized cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortized cost and 

fair value is recognised in P&L.
FVTPL Amortized Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated 

based on the new gross carrying amount.
Amortized cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortized cost and 

fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to reclassification.
FVTOCI Amortized cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortized cost carrying amount. However, 

cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured 
as if it had always been measured at amortized cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other adjustment is 
required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in 
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification date.

XIII.	Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or  
	 less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash  
	 and short-term deposits, as defined above.
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XIV.	Earnings per share 

	 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share  
	 is computed by dividing income available to shareholders and assumed conversion by the weighted average number of common shares and potential  
	 common shares from outstanding stock options.

XV.	 Segment Accounting 

	 Identification of segments: Segments are identified in line with Ind AS - 108 “Operating Segments”, taking into consideration the internal organization and  
	 management structure as well as the differential risk and returns of the segment.

	 The Group operates in Textile business which is the only reportable segment in accordance with the requirements of Ind-AS 108 “Operating Segments”.  
	 These activities are mainly conducted only in one geographical segment viz, India. Therefore, the disclosure requirements under the Ind AS 108 “Operating  
	 Segments” are not applicable.

XVI.	Government grants

	 Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the  
	 grants will be received.

	 Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for  
	 which the grants are intended to compensate. Grants of the State and Central Government which are intended to compensate a specified percentage of  
	 the interest on borrowings are netted off against the related interest expenditure on borrowings.

	 Government grants whose primary condition is that Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred  
	 revenue in the balance sheet and transferred to profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

XVII.	Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments: General

	 Provisions are recognised only when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of  
	 resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
	 When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a  
	 separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss  
	 net of any reimbursement.

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific  
	 to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

	 Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
	 A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
	 A present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;
	 A possible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

	 Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.

	 Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

XVIII.	Cash flow statement

	 Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any  
	 deferrals of accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash  
	 flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and finance activities of the Group are segregated.

	 Effective April 1, 2017, the Group adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial  
	 statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes,  
	 suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to  
	 meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption of amendment did not have any material impact on the financial statements.

3.1	 Critical Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

	 (a)	 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

	 In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2 above, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,  
	 estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and  
	 associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these  
	 estimates.

	 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the  
	 estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period.

	 (b)	 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

	 i)	 Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

	 Group reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are dependent upon an assessment of  
	 both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and  
	 operating costs. Accordingly, useful lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management.
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	 ii)	 Fair value measurements and valuation process

	 Management uses its judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation  
	 techniques commonly used by market participants are applied. Other financial instruments are valued using a discounted cash flow method based on  
	 assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market prices or rates. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining  
	 the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 43.

	 iii)	 Defined benefit plans

	 The cost of the defined benefit plans viz. gratuity, superannuation for the eligible employees of the Company are determined using actuarial valuations.  
	 An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of  
	 the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit  
	 obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

	 The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management  
	 considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

	 The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic  
	 changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rate.

	 iv)	 Provision and contingent liability

	 On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies. For contingent losses that are considered probable, an  
	 estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as  
	 Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the financial statements. Gain  
	 contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.
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4	 Property, Plant and Equipment	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars Freehold
land Buildings Plant and 

machinery

Furniture, fixtures 
and Office 

equipments
Vehicles Total

Cost or deemed cost
At April 01, 2020  786.58  1,399.74  6,643.12  28.07  11.26  8,868.77 
Additions  -    -    -    0.02  -    0.02 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    (0.03)  (0.03)
At March 31, 2021  786.58  1,399.74  6,643.12  28.09  11.23  8,868.76 
Additions  -    -    0.25  0.26  -    0.51 
Disposals  -    -    (0.01)  -    -    (0.01)
At March 31, 2022  786.58  1,399.74  6,643.36  28.35  11.23  8,869.26 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At April 01, 2020  -    109.91  723.55  16.46  7.71  857.63 
Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  47.56  229.41  2.96  1.02  280.95 
Impairment loss  -    -    426.64  -    -    426.64 
Disposals  -    -    -    (0.03)  (0.03)
At March 31, 2021  -    157.47  1,379.60  19.42  8.70  1,565.19 
Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  47.54  211.12  2.15  0.74  261.55 
Impairment  -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   
At March 31, 2022  -    205.01  1,590.72  21.57  9.44  1,826.74 
Net book value
At March 31, 2021  786.58  1,242.27  5,263.52  8.67  2.53  7,303.57 
At March 31, 2022  786.58  1,194.73  5,052.64  6.78  1.79  7,042.52 

4.1 	The detail of property, plant and equipments pledged against borrowings are presented in note 19 and 22.
4.2	 Details of Immovable Property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Company.
		  (₹ in crores)

Relevant Line Item in the
Balance Sheet

Description 
of item of 
Property

Gross 
Carrying 

Value

Title held in the 
name of 

Whether title deeds 
holder is a prmoter/ 
director or relative of 
promoter/director or 

employee of promoter/
director

Property held 
since date

Reason for not being 
held in the name of the 

company

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - 
Lunsapur

116.05 & 
320.76

Sixvent Power & 
Engineering Limited 
(Merged with Zep 
Infratech Limited)

No 2017 & 2019 Need to execute the sale 
deed for transfer of land

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.09 Thakor Manganji 

Punjaji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.10 Thakor Kachraji 

Mohanji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.04 Thakor Suryaben 

Thakaji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.03 Thakor Babaji 

Mangaji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.04 Thakor Suryaben 

Thakaji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.10 Thakor Shankarji 

Ghemaji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE Land - Saij 
Gandhinagar 0.03 Thakor Shedhaji 

Shankarji and Others No 2011 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE
Land - 

Aarshodiya 
Gandhinagar

1.62 Thakor Govindji 
Mohanji and Others No 2014 Revenue Related Case

Property, Plant and Equipments- PPE
Land - Patelka       

Dev-bhumi 
Dwarka

1.20 Gangaben Valu and 
Others No 1995 Need to execute the sale 

deed for transfer of land

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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5	 Capital-work-in progress Aging As on 31-3-2022	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars Amount of CWIP for a period of 
 Total 

Capital-work-in progress (CWIP) Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 
Project in progress - - - - -
Project temporarily suspended - - - 1066.00 1066.00
Total - - - 1066.00 1066.00

Capital-work-in progress Aging As on 31-3-2021	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars Amount of CWIP for a period of 
 Total 

Capital-work-in progress (CWIP) Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 
Project in progress - - - - -
Project temporarily suspended - - 70.33 995.92 1066.25
Total - - 70.33 995.92 1066.25

Projects has been temporarily suspendesd on account of defaults in repayment of borrowings and also under CIRP w.e.f 6th April, 2021

6	 Other intangible assets	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars Computer software
Cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2020  4.86 
Additions  0.01 
As at March 31, 2021  4.87 
Additions  0.01 
At March 31, 2022  4.88 
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At April 1, 2020  2.45 
Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  0.82 
As at March 31, 2021  3.27 
Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  0.78 
At March 31, 2022  4.05 
Net book value
As at March 31, 2021  1.60 
At March 31, 2022  0.83 

7	 Depreciation and amortisation expense	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2022

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment  261.55  280.95 
Amortisation of intangible assets  0.78  0.82 
Total depreciation and amortisation  262.33  281.77 
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8	 Investments (non-current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Investments (At cost)
I At fair value through other comprehensive income

Investments in unquoted equity instruments - others:
BVM Finance Private Limited
17,38,000 (previous year 17,38,000) shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid  -    -   
Sintex Oil & Gas Limited
50,000 (previous year 50,000) shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid  -    -   
Healwell International Limited
9,00,000 (previous year 9,00,000) shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid  0.54  2.34 
Zep Infratech Ltd (formerly known as Sixvents Power and Engineering Limited)
13,300 (previous year 13,300) shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid  -    -   
Investment in quoted equity instruments - others:
Bank of Baroda (formerly known as Dena Bank
3,322 (previous year 3,322) shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid  0.04  0.02 

II Investment in Trust Securities
AAVAS TRUST 2019
33,30,22,460 (previous year 33,30,22,460) units of ₹ 1 per unit  33.30  33.30 
Total investments at fair value through other comprehensive income  33.88  35.66 
Aggregate book value of quoted Investments  0.04  0.02 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  0.04  0.02 
Aggregate carring value of unquoted Investments  33.84  35.64 

9	 Other non-current assets	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Security deposits and earnest money deposits  12.89  3.92 
(b) Capital advance  379.78  379.45 
(c) Service tax paid under protest  -    4.04 

Total  392.67  387.41 

10	 Non-Current Tax Assets (Net)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Taxation)  4.52  2.25 
Total  4.52  2.25 

11	 Inventories	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Raw materials  165.55  75.70 
(b) Work-in-progress  54.60  34.17 
(c) Finished goods  84.34  33.46 
(d) Stock-in-Trade  72.92  11.87 
(e) Stores and spares  4.17  2.86 

Total  381.58  158.06 
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12	 Trade receivables *	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Trade receivables,Unsecured, considered good  260.01  109.41 
Trade Receivables, credit impaired  0.19  0.19 
Less: Provision for  trade receivables  (0.19)  (0.19)

Total  260.01  109.41 

* Note: The average credit period on sales of good is 0 to 180 days. Credit Risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Company’s 
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on a detailed study of 
credit worthiness and accordingly individual credit  limits are defined/modified.The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base 
is large. One customer has a balance of more than 10% of the total balance of trade receivables.

Trade Receivable Aging as on 31-3-2022		  (₹ in crores)

Particulars Unbilled Not Due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of  Payment

TotalLess than
6 months

6 months
-1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than

3 years 
Undisputed - Considered Goods 11.22 215.64 24.13 0.00 0.28 1.77 6.97 260.01
Undisputed- Credit Impaired 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.19 0.19
Disputed - Considered Goods 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disputed - Credit Impaired 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 11.22 215.64 24.13 0.00 0.28 1.77 7.16 260.20

Trade Receivable Aging as on 31-3-2021		  (₹ in crores)

Particulars Unbilled Not Due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of  Payment

TotalLess than
6 months

6 months
-1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than

3 years 
Undisputed - Considered Goods 0 84.24 15.44 0.08 2.26 6.67 0.71 109.41
Undisputed- Credit Impaired 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.19 0.19
Disputed - Considered Goods 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disputed - Credit Impaired 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 84.24 15.44 0.08 2.26 6.67 0.90 109.60

13	 Cash and Cash Equivalents	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(A) Cash and Cash Equivalents
      (a) Balance with banks  38.49  26.41 
      (b) Cash on hand  0.22  0.58 
      (c) Bank deposits with upto 3 months maturity  0.04  0.38 

 38.75  27.37 
(B) Other bank balances 
      In earmarked accounts
      Unclaimed dividend accounts  0.58  0.73 

 0.58  0.73 
Total  39.33  28.10 

14	 Bank balance other than 13 above	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Other bank balances
    Bank deposits having maturity beyond 3 months  -    -   

Total  -    -   
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15	 Loans (Current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered goods unless otherwise stated
(a) Security deposits & Earnest money deposits  1.20  1.20 
(b) Other loans 
Unsecured, considered good  72.30  66.33 
Doubtful  75.20  75.20 
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances  (75.20)  (75.20)

 72.30  66.33 
Total  73.50  67.53 

16	 Other current assets (Unsecured, considered good)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Export Incentive receivables  23.21  0.01 
(b) Advance recoverable in cash or kind  353.16  279.13 
(c) Prepaid expenses  20.86  5.35 
(d) Balances with government authorities  47.49  40.80 
(e) Subsidies receivables (Refer Note 50)  469.34  387.12 
(f) Interest receivable  -    0.00 

Total  914.06  712.41 

17	 Equity  Share capital	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Authorised
65,00,00,000 ( previous year 65,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ₹ 1 each  65.00  65.00 

Total  65.00  65.00 
Issued 
59,92,49,762  ( previous year 59,41,26,888) Equity Shares of ₹ 1 each  59.92  59.92 

Total  59.92  59.92 
Subscribed and fully paid up
59,92,17,962( previous year 59,40,95,088) Equity Shares of ₹ 1 each  59.92  59.92 

Total  59.92  59.92 

Notes:-
(i)	 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particulars  Opening  Balance  Conversion of FCCB into equity 
shares during the year 

 Right issue during
the year  Closing Balance 

Equity Shares 
Year ended 31st March 21
- Number of shares  59,40,95,088  51,22,874  -    59,92,17,962 
- Amount (₹ In Crore)  59.41  0.51  -    59.92 
Year ended 31st March 2022
- Number of shares  59,92,17,962  -    -    59,92,17,962 
- Amount (₹ In Crore)  59.92  -    -    59.92 

(ii)	 Terms/ Rights attached to equity  shares.
	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 1/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per  share.

(iii)	 As at 31st March, 2022: 47,56,970 shares (previous year 47,56,970 shares) were reserved for issuance towards Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds  
	 (FCCB).

(iv)	 Thre are no shareholder holding more than 5% of Equity Share Capital of the company.
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(v)	 Shares held by Promoters and Promoters Group company.

Name of Promoter As on 31.03.2022
No.of Shares % of Share Capital  As on 31.03.2021

No.of Shares % of Share Capital Change during the year

Pranay Arunprasad Patel 758830 0.13 758830 0.13 0
Rahulbhai Patel 497090 0.08 497090 0.08 0
Amit Patel 398425 0.07 398425 0.07 0
Deval Rahul Patel 262500 0.04 262500 0.04 0
Leena Arunprasad Patel 177970 0.03 177970 0.03 0
Arunprasad Purshottamdas Patel 327710 0.05 327710 0.05 0
Dineshchandra Patel 290536 0.05 290536 0.05 0
Kalavati Patel 225468 0.04 225468 0.04 0
Poonam Pranay Patel 65620 0.01 65620 0.01 0
BVM Finance Private Limited 11303905 1.89 11303905 1.89 0
Opel Securities Private Limited 4223452 0.70 4223452 0.70 0
Kolon Investment Pvt. Ltd. 5877110 0.98 5877110 0.98 0
Star Line Leasing Ltd. 1713221 0.29 1713221 0.29 0
Som Shiva (Impex) Limited 262500 0.04 262500 0.04 0
Prominent Plastics Limited 796790 0.13 796790 0.13 0
Total Promoters Shareholding 27181127 4.54 27181127 4.54 0

(vi)	 List of Struckoff Shareholders

Name of Entity No. of Shares
STOCKYARD INVESTMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 370
UNIQUE CONSULTING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 150
KOTHARI INTERGROUP LTD. 1
COSMIC REALTORS PRIVATE LIMITED 100
M/S PRAVA BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 1100

18	 Other Equity
Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement in Equity Balances	
A.	 Summary of Other Equity Balances	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Securities premium  1,162.71  1,162.71 
(b) Debenture redemption reserve  111.03  111.03 
(c) General reserve  428.58  428.58 
(d) Equity component of compound financial instruments (FCCBs)  -    -   
(e) Equity Instrument through other comprehensive income  (11.26)  (9.48)
(f) Retained earnings  (446.98)  127.54 

Total  1,244.08  1,820.38 

B.	 Nature and purpose of reserves

(a)	 Securities Premium
	 Securities Premium is created due to premium on issue of shares.This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b)	 Debenture redemption reserve
	 This reserve has been created for redemption of debentures issued by the company in compliance of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 amd rules  
	 framed there under.

(c)	 General Reserve
	 The general reserve is created from time to time by transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriate purposes.  As the general reserve is created  
	 by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not  
	 be reclassified subsequently to Statment of profit and loss.

(d)	 Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
	 The reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive  
	 income.

(e)	 Retained earnings
	 The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the balance in this reserve and also  
	 considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.
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19	 Borrowings (non-current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Secured- at amortised cost
(a) Debentures  -    -   
(b) Term loans 
     (i)   from banks  -   -
     (ii)  from a financial institution  -    -   
     (iii) Foreign Currency Term loans from a bank  -    -   
Unsecured-at amortised cost
(a) Foreign currency convertible bonds (FCCB's)  -    -   
(b) Term loan from a bank  -    -   

Total  -   -

Notes: For details of security, rate of interest and terms of repayment refer note 19 of Standalone Financial Statement.

20	 Provisions (non-current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Provision for employee benefits:  
(i) Provision for compensated absences  3.25  2.75 
(ii) Provision for gratuity  -    1.62 

Total  3.25  4.37 

21	 Deferred tax liabilities (Net)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a)Deferred Tax Liability
(i) Difference between book and tax depreciation  968.61  968.61 

 968.61  968.61 
Deferred Tax Asset
(i) Disallowances under income tax  4.90 4.90
(ii) Provision for doubtful debts & advances  19.01 19.01
(iii) Unabsorbed depreciation  662.30  662.69 
(iv) Minimum alternate tax  282.75 282.75

 968.96  969.35 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  -    -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    -   
Deferred Tax Assets  0.35  0.74 

22	 Borrowings (current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

 (a) Secured- at amortised cost- from Banks
       Loans repayable on demand (refer note below)  1,491.95  1,353.46 
 (b) Unsecured-at amortised cost
       from  companies  249.99  249.99 
(c) Current maturities of long-term debt  4,928.53  4,929.16 

Total  6,670.47  6,532.61 

Note: For details of security refer note 22 of Standalone Financial Statement.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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23	 Trade payables	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises  6.82  3.59 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprise  180.34  110.56 

Total  187.16  114.15 

The  average credit period on purchases of certain goods is 0 to 30 days. No interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 30 days from the date of 
invoice. Thereafter, the interest is payable at 15% per annum on the outstanding balance. The Company has financial risk management policies in place to 
ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.

Dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end  6.82 3.59
Interest due on the above mention principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end * *
Amount of the interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 0 0
Amount of the interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but without adding 
the interest specified under the MSMED Act

0 0

Amount of interest accrued and remaing unpaid at the end of the accounting year 0 0

* The Company is under CIRP w.e.f 6th April,2021 and the moratorium period under section 14 of the IBC code is declared.

Trade Payable Aging as on 31-3-2022		  (₹ in crores)

Particulars Unbilled Not Due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of  Payment

Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

MSME 0 3.23 1.02 0.00 2.38 0.19 6.82
Others 53.28 63.46 3.96 0.37 5.03 54.24 180.34
Disputed - MSME 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Disputed - Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Total 53.28 66.69 4.98 0.37 7.41 54.43 187.16

Trade Payable Aging as on 31-3-2021		  (₹ in crores)

Particulars Unbilled Not Due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of  Payment

Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

MSME 0 1.26 0.00 1.95 0.23 0.15 3.59
Others 47.57 2.98 1.32 5.97 41.79 10.93 110.56
Disputed - MSME 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Disputed - Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Total 47.57 4.24 1.32 7.92 42.02 11.08 114.15

24	 Other financial liabilities	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Interest accrued on borrowings  1,805.18  1,130.41 
(b) Investor's eductation and protection fund
      Unclaimed dividends  0.58  0.73 
(c)  Acceptances  111.97  111.97 
(d) Other payables 
      (i)  Payables on purchase of fixed assets  88.73  86.37 
      (ii) Trade / security deposits received  0.31  0.41 

Total  2,006.77  1,329.89 
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25	 Other current liabilities	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a) Statutory remittances  2.87  1.48 
(b) Advances from customers  32.52  4.90 

Total  35.39  6.38 

26	 Provisions (Current)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Provision for employee benefits:  
     (i)  Provision for compensated absences  2.01  3.98 
     (ii) Provision for gratuity  0.20  1.31 

Total  2.21  5.29 
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27	 Revenue from operations (Refer Note 46)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Sale of products   3,070.24  1,697.41 
Less: Commission towards sales  10.54  1.70 

Total  3,059.70  1,695.71 

28	 Other income	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

(a) Interest income earned on financial asset that are not designated at fair value through
      profit or loss (FVTPL)

 4.47  8.50 

(b) Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation (other than considered as finance cost)  5.47  2.55 
(c) Subsidies from government authorities  68.27  42.19 
(d) Miscellaneous income  31.14  7.82 

Total  109.35  61.06 

29	 Cost of materials consumed	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Opening stock 75.70 42.64
Add: Purchases  2,280.85  1,143.30 
Less: Closing stock  165.55  75.70 

Cost of material consumed  2,191.00  1,110.24 

30	 Purchase of traded goods	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Yarn  0.00  0.00 
Total  0.00  0.00 

31	 Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock in Trade  and work-in-progress	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Inventories at the end of the  year:
(a) Finished goods  84.34  33.46 
(b) Stock in Trade  72.92  11.87 
(c) Work-in-progress  54.60  34.17 

 211.85  79.50 
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
(a) Finished goods  33.46  45.71 
(b) Stock in Trade  11.87  18.63 
(c) Work-in-progress  34.17  27.13 

 79.50  91.47 
Net (increase) / decrease  (132.35)  11.97 

32	 Employee benefits expense	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

(a) Salaries and wages  152.35  125.14 
(b) Contributions to provident and other funds  8.51  6.72 
(c) Staff welfare expenses  3.28  2.71 

Total  164.14  134.57 
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33	 Finance costs	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

(a) Interest expenses on borrowings (net of interest subsidy)  804.70  771.06 
(b) Other borrowing cost  8.41  24.26 

Total  813.11  795.32 

34	 Other expenses	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

(a) Consumption of stores and spares  85.37  46.48 
(b) Power and fuel  251.85  177.78 
(c) Rent including lease rentals  1.87  1.56 
(d) Repairs and maintenance - Buildings  0.26  0.29 
(e) Repairs and maintenance - Machinery  1.34  0.81 
(f) Repairs and maintenance - Others  6.01  1.75 
(g) Insurance  17.35  11.43 
(h) Rates and taxes  6.49  3.19 
(i) Travelling and conveyance  3.89  3.81 
(j) Transport and freight charges  32.53  13.87 
(k) Donations and contributions  -    0.00 
(l) Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (Refer Note-45)  -    0.31 
(m) Payments to auditors  0.23  0.16 
(n) Provisons for doubtful advances and Subsidy  -    21.00 
(o) Legal and professional charges  8.73  10.71 
(p) Bad Debts  and Subsidy written off  0.04  0.28 
(r) Forex Loss  0.80  -   
(s) General expenses  27.50  8.82 

Total  444.25  302.25 

35	 Exceptional Items	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Impairement Loss of Property, Plants and Equipments  -    426.64 
Total  -    426.64 

36	 Earnings Per share	

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Basic Earnings per share (₹)  (9.58)  (21.96)
Diluted Earnings per share (₹)  (9.58)  (21.96)

Basic earnings per share
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:	

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (₹ in crores)  (573.82)  (1,306.41)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share  59,92,17,962  59,50,21,416 
Earnings per share - Basic (₹)  (9.58)  (21.96)
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Diluted earnings per share		
The earnings used in calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (₹ in crores)  (573.82)  (1,306.41)
FCCB Interest Expenses (Net of Tax)  1.85  3.12 
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share (₹ in crores)  (571.97)  (1,303.29)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share  60,39,74,932  59,97,78,386 
Earnings per share-  Antidulutive in nature  (9.47)  (21.73)
Earnings per share  - Diluted (₹)  (9.58)  (21.96)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share reconciles to the weighted average number of equity shares 
used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows:

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share  59,92,17,962  59,50,21,416 
Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of:
a. employee options  -    -   
b. partly paid equity shares  -    -   
c. convertible bonds  47,56,970  47,56,970 
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of Diluted EPS  60,39,74,932  59,97,78,386 

Note: There are  potential equity shares issued by the Company which are anti-dilutive in its nature. However, the company has defaulted in payment of Interest 
on Convertible bonds amounting to USD 0.64 Million for the period 25th May, 2019 to 31st March, 2022.

37	 The Holding Company is undergoing substantial financial stress and severe liquidity constraints since last Financial Year coupled with changed industrial  
	 dynamics, time and cost overrun in completion of its projects, reduction in subsidies and incentive benefits , Covid related disruptions etc.The company  
	 has defaulted in debt obligation of debentures aggregating to ₹ 500.00 Crores for the period April, 2019 to 6th April, 2021 (date of admission in Corporate  
	 Insolvency Resolution Process) apart from other credit facilities. Further, Company’s inability to meet its obligation in relation to the payment of certain  
	 letters of credit which led to devolvement and consequent over utilization of the cash credit facilities availed by the Company, delay in payment of  
	 certain term loan instalments as well as interest thereof. The Company’s credit rating is “BWR D” from Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd. for Non-Convertible  
	 Debentures. However, Company has made provision for interest for the period April,2019 to 31st March, 2022.

	 Petition for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 filed against the Company  
	 by Invesco Asset Management (India) Private Limited (Financial Creditor) for default amount of ₹ 15,00,00,000/- (Principal amount) of NCD has been  
	 admitted against the Company vide Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench order dated 06.04.2021. Mr. Pinakin Shah (having  
	 registration no. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248) has been appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by the Honourable National Company Law  
	 Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench under Section 13(1)(c) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and moratorium period under Section 14 of the Insolvency  
	 and Bankruptcy Code 2016 is declared.The Company is continued as going concern.

38	 The Holding Company has discontinued the manufacturing operations of structured fabrics ( except bleaching facility) at Kalol effective from 1st July, 2019  
	 on account of high cost of operations. Hence, Statutory Auditor of the Company informed the management in the last year to assesse any provision needs  
	 to be recognised on account of the impairment of assets in respect of property , plant and equipment of its Textile Division as per Ind AS 36. Accordingly  
	 the management of the company during the last year has assessed that any provision needs to be recognised on account of the impairment of assets in  
	 respect of property , plant and equipment of its Textile Division as per Ind AS 36 through approved valuer. The higher of Textile Division assets fair value  
	 (less cost of disposal) and its value in use as per valuation report obtained from approved valuer as on 30th September, 2020 and is found lower than its  
	 carrying amount as per books of accounts of the company and hence the Company  has recognised impairment loss of ₹ 426.64 crores for the year 
	 2020 21. Therefore, the impairment loss has been shown under “Exceptional Item” during last year 2020-21.

39	 Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)
	 On May 25, 2016, the Holding  Company issued USD 110 million Step Down Convertible Bonds due 2022 (“FCCBs”). The FCCBs bear interest (i) at the rate of  
	 7% p.a from May 25, 2016 to May 25, 2018 and (ii) at the rate of 3.50%  p.a from May 25, 2018 to May 25, 2022, payable semi-annually in arrear on the  
	 interest payment dates falling every year on 25 November and 25 May.

	 The FCCBs are convertible at any time on and after July 5, 2016 and up to the close of business on May 15, 2022 by holders of the FCCBs into fully paid  
	 equity shares with full voting rights of the Issuer each with a nominal value of ₹ 1 at the option of the holder, at an initial conversion price of ₹ 93.8125 per  
	 share with a fixed rate of exchange on conversion of ₹ 67.4463 = USD 1.00. The conversion price is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances and may  
	 be reset on November 25, 2018 and November 25, 2019 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the FCCBs.
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	 Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement approved by National Company Law Tribunal on 12th May,2017  on exercising option for conversion of  
	 the FCCBs, the FCCB holders shall receive one fully paid equity shares of ₹ 1 each  with full voting rights of Sintex Plastics Technology Limited (SPTL) and  
	 furhter the repayment of FCCBs is guaranteed by SPTL. In case of payment of any outstanding sum to the outstanding FCCB holders by the SPTL, the  
	 company shall without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or things, make the paymet to SPTL as mutually decided by the company and SPTL.

	 With respect to USD 110 Million Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds due 2022 (FCCBs) raised by the Company, there are USD 6.5 Million FCCBs outstanding  
	 for conversion as on 31st March, 2022.Further, the Company has defaulted in payment of Interest amounting to USD 0.64 Million for the period 25th  
	 May,19 to 31st March,2022.

40	 Subsidiaries

	 Details of Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Name of subsidiary Principal activity Place of incorporation
and operation

Proportion of ownership interest and
voting power held by the Group

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
BVM Overseas Limited Trading of Products India 100% 100%

40.1  Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 by way of Additional Information	 (₹ in crores)

Name of entity in the Group Share in Net Assets Share in profit and Loss Share in other 
comprehensive income

Share in Total 
comprehensive income

Particulars
As  % of 

consolidated 
net assets

Amount
As a % of 

consolidated 
Profit

Amount

As % of 
consolidated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Amount
As % of total 

comprehensive 
income

Amount

Sintex Industries Limited  99.09  1,292.17  100.20  (574.97)  100.00  (2.48)  100.20  (577.45)
BVM Overseas Limited  0.91  11.83  (0.20)  1.15  -    -    (0.20)  1.15 
Total  100.00  1,304.00  100.00  (573.82)  100.00  (2.48)  100.00  (576.30)

41	 Related Party Transactions
a. 	 Names of the related parties and description of relationship

Sr. No. Nature of Relationship Name of Related Parties

1 Key Management Personnel (KMP)
* Shri Rahul A. Patel, Chairman & Managing Director
* Shri Amit D. Patel, Managing Director
   Shri Pinakin S Shah, Interim Resolution Professional (IRP)

2 Relatives of Key Management Personnel Mr. Ishan P. Shah

*Note: The Company has been admitted under CIRP as per Honable NCLT, Ahmedabad order dated 6th April, 2021. Hence Powers of Board of Directors has 
been suspensed and vested with Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) under the supervision of CoC.

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiry, which is related party of the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and are 
not disclosed in the note. Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below:

b.1	 Transactions during the year with related parties *	 (₹ in crores)

Sr. No. Nature of Transactions
Nature of Relationship

Key Management Personnel
& relatives thereof Total

1 Professional fees
 1.15 1.15

 (-) -

	 * Figures in brackets indicates figures of previous year.

b.2	 Balance as at March 31, 2022 *	 (₹ in crores)

Sr. No. Nature of Transactions
Nature of Relationship

Key Management
Personnel Total

1  Trade payable 
 -    -   

 (6.00)  (6.00)

	 * Figures in brackets indicates figures of previous year.
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42	 Segment information

i.	 Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues.

	 Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance  
	 focuses on the types of goods or services delivered or provided. The directors have chose to organise the Group around difference in products and services.  
	 No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

	 The Company operates in Textile business which is the only reportable segment in accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

ii.	 Geographical information

	 Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location of the customers.

	 Group’s all non-current assets are located in India (i.e. its country of domicile).

	 The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of operations are detailed below:-	 (₹ in crores)

Revenue from external customers For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

India (includes deemed export)  2,499.85  1,504.91 
Asia (Other than India)  327.03  126.90 
Europe  111.19  14.80 
USA  62.58  37.22 
Others  59.05  11.88 

Total  3,059.70  1,695.71 

43	 Financial instruments

1	 Capital management
	 The Group  manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through  
	 the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

	 The capital structure of the Group  consists of net debt and total equity of the Group.

	 The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

	 Gearing ratio

	 The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows.	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Debt (i)  8,475.65  7,663.03 
Less: Cash and bank balances (Refer note 13 and 14)  39.33  28.10 
Net debt  8,436.32  7,634.93 
Total equity  1,304.00  1,880.30 
Net debt to equity ratio  6.47  4.06 

	 (i)	 Debt is defined as long-term and short term borrowings (excluding derivative, financial guarantee contracts and contingent consideration), as described  
		  in earlier notes ( Refer note 19, 22 and 24).
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2	 Categories of financial instruments	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2022
As at

March 31, 2021
Carrying values Fair values Carrying values Fair values

Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Non-current investments  -    -    -    -   
Loans  73.50  73.50  67.53  67.53 
Trade receivables  260.01  260.01  109.41  109.41 
Cash and cash equivalents  39.33  39.33  28.10  28.10 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  -    -    -    -   
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost (A)  372.84  372.84  205.04  205.04 
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Non-current investments in equity instruments  33.88  33.88  35.66  35.66 
Total financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (B)  33.88  33.88  35.66  35.66 
Total financial assets (A+B)  406.72  406.72  240.70  240.70 
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Non-current liabilities
Non-current borrowings *  -    -   - -
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings  6,670.47  6,670.47  6,532.61  6,532.61 
Trade payables  187.16  187.16  114.15  114.15 
Other financial liabilities  2,006.77  2,006.77  1,329.89  1,329.89 
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost  8,864.40  8,864.40  7,976.65  7,976.65 
Total financial liabilities  8,864.40  8,864.40  7,976.65  7,976.65 

	 * The fair value of Group fixed interest borrowing are determined by using Discounted Cash Flow Method.

3	 Financial risk management objectives

	 The Group’s Corporate finance department provides services to business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitors  
	 and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal risk reports which analyse the exposures by degree and magnitude  
	 of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

	 The Group seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives  
	 is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit  
	 risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure  
	 limits is reviewed by the Management and the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments,  
	 including derivatives for speculative purposes.

	 The Corporate Treasury function reports quarterly to the Group’s risk management committee, an independent body that monitors risks and policies  
	 implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

4	 Market Risk

	 The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates due to foreign currency  
	 borrowings and variable interest loans. The Group has not been able to entered into derivative contracts to manage part of its foreign currency risk  
	 considering credit default. The Group does not enter into derivative contracts to manage risks related to anticipated sales and purchases.

5	 Foreign currency risk management

	 The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate  
	 exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilizing forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options taken at the time of initiation  
	 of the booking by the management. Such decision is taken after considering the factors such as upside potential, cost of structure and the downside risks  
	 etc. Quarterly reports are submitted to Management Committee on the covered and open positions and MTM valuation.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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	 The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as  
	 follows.
			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

USD EURO INR Others Total USD EURO INR Others Total
Financial assets
Non-current financial assets
Investments  -    -    33.88  -    33.88  -    -    35.66  -    35.66 
Loans  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total non-current financial assets (A)  -    -    33.88  -    33.88  -    -    35.66  -    35.66 
Current financial assets
Investments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Trade receivables  108.76  -    151.25  -    260.01  11.95  0.49  96.97  -    109.41 
Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    39.33  39.33  -    -    28.10  -    28.10 
Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Loans  -    -    73.50  -    73.50  -    -    67.53  -    67.53 
Other financial assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total current financial assets (B)  108.76  -    264.08  -    372.84  11.95  0.49  192.60  -    205.04 
Total financial assets (C) = (A) + (B)  108.76  -    297.96  -    406.72  11.95  0.49  228.26  -    240.70 
Financial liabilities
Non current financial liabilities
Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    0.00  -    0.00 
Total non-current financial liabilities (D)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    0.00  -    0.00 
Current financial liabilities
Borrowings  125.08  261.07  6,545.39  6,670.47  121.08  261.96  6,149.57  -    6,532.61 
Trade payables  0.38  0.03  186.32  0.43  187.16  0.39  0.04  113.32  0.40  114.15 
Other financial liabilities  78.05  21.44  1,907.28  -    2,006.77  68.90  17.63  1,243.28  0.08  1,329.89 
Total current financial liabilities  (E)  203.51  282.54  8,638.99  0.43  8,864.40  190.37  279.63  7,506.17  0.48  7,976.65 

 203.51  282.54  8,638.99  0.43  8,864.40  190.37  279.63  7,506.17  0.48  7,976.65 
Excess of financial liabilities over 
financial assets (F)-(C )  94.75  282.54  8,341.03  0.43  8,457.68  178.42  279.14  7,277.91  0.48  7,735.95 

Net Exposure of foreign currency risk  94.75  282.54  -    0.43  377.72  178.42  279.14  -    0.48  458.04 
Sensitivity impact on Net liabilities/
(assets) exposure at 10%  9.48  28.25  -    0.04  37.77  17.84  27.91  -    0.05  45.80 

5.1	 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

	 The Group  is mainly exposed to USD and EURO currency.

	 The above table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the INR against relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used  
	 when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change  
	 in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency risk denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation  
	 at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans where the denomination of the loan is in  
	 a currency other than the functional currency of the lender or the borrower. A negative number below indicates an increase in profit/equity where the INR  
	 strengths 10% against the relevant currency. For a 10% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the  
	 profit/equity and the balances below would be positive.

5.2	 Forward foreign exchange contracts

	 The Group has not been able to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover  foreign currency payments and receipts considering credit default.

6	 Interest rate risk management

	 The Group  is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the  
	 cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The Group has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in PLR and LIBOR  
	 rates. The Group uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations  
	 like non-convertible debentures and short term loans. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating  
	 rate borrowings. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective  
	 hedging strategies are applied.
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	 The table in 6.1 provides a break-up of the Group’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

6.1	 Interest rate sensitivity analysis

	 The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the  
	 end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting  
	 period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management  
	 personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

	 The following table provides a break-up of the Group’s fixed and floating rate borrowings and interest rate sensitivity analysis.		
			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Gross amount
(₹ in crores)

Interest rate sensitivity 
@0.50% (₹ in crores)

Gross amount
(₹ in crores)

Interest rate sensitivity 
@0.50% (₹ in crores)

Fixed loan  549.27  -    547.78  -   
Variable loan  7,926.38  39.63  7,115.25  35.58 
Total  8,475.65  39.63  7,663.03  35.58 

7	 Credit risk management

	 Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. Credit risk encompasses of  
	 both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Group has adopted a policy of only  
	 dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from  
	 defaults. The Group uses publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The Group’s exposure and the  
	 credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved  
	 counterparties.

	 Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed  
	 on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

	 The Group does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty. Concentration of credit risk related to the above mentioned Group  
	 did not exceed 10% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year. Concentration of credit risk to any other counterparty did not exceed 10% of gross  
	 monetary assets at any time during the year.

7.1	 Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

	 The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risk associated with its financial assets.

8	 Liquidity risk management

	 Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where  
	 business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of  
	 directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term  
	 funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve  
	 borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

	 The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods and its non- 
	 derivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which  
	 the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

	 To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The  
	 contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay.
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			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

< 1year 1-5 years > 5 years Total < 1year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Financial assets
Non-current
Investments  -    33.88  -    33.88  -    35.66  -    35.66 
Loans  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total non-current financial assets  -    33.88  -    33.88  -    35.66  -    35.66 
Current
Investments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Trade receivables  260.01  -    -    260.01  109.41  -    -    109.41 
Cash and cash equivalents  39.33  -    -    39.33  28.10  -    -    28.10 
Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Loans  73.50  -    -    73.50  67.53  -    -    67.53 
Other financial liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total current financial assets  372.84  -    -    372.84  205.04  -    -    205.04 
Total financial assets  372.84  33.88  -    406.72  205.04  35.66  -    240.70 
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    0.00 
Total non-current financial liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    0.00 
Current
Borrowings  6,670.47  -    -    6,670.47  6,532.61  -    -    6,532.61 
Trade payables  187.16  -    -    187.16  114.15  -    -    114.15 
Other financial liabilities  2,006.77  -    -    2,006.77  1,329.89  -    -    1,329.89 
Total current financial liabilities  8,864.40  -    -    8,864.40  7,976.65  -    -    7,976.65 
Total financial liabilities  8,864.40  -    -    8,864.40  7,976.65  -    -    7,976.65 

9	 Fair value measurements

	 This note provides information about how the Group determines fair values of various financial assets. Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial  
	 liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial  
	 assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
			   (₹ in crores)

Particulars Fair values as at  
March 31, 2022

Fair values as at  
March 31, 2021 Level* Valuation technique and key inputs

Financial assets
Non-current investments
Investment in unquoted equity instruments
BVM Finance Pvt Ltd  -    -   3 Net assets method was used to capture the present 

value of the expected future economic benefits that 
will flow to the entity due to the investments.

Sintex Oil and Gas Ltd  -    -   3
Healwell International Ltd  0.54  2.34 3
Zep Infratech Pvt Limited  -    -   3
Investment in quoted equity instruments

Quoted bid prices in an active market
Bank of Baroda (formerly known as Dena Bank)  0.04  0.02 1
Current investments

Quoted bid prices in an active market
Investments in Mutual funds  -    -   1

	 * There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 during the period.	

44	 Income taxes

	 The Holding Company has decided not to opt new taxation scheme of Section 115BAA of the income tax Act 1961, Introduced by the Taxation Law  
	 (Amendment) ordinance 2019 effective from financial 2019-2020 in view of MAT Credit Availability, Accumulated Losses and Unabsorbed Depreciation.	
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a.	 Income taxes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Current tax
In respect of the current year - -
Excess/(Short) provision for tax of earlier years -  (0.14)
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year  0.39  0.56 
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year  0.39  0.42 

b.	 Tax reconciliation

	 The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Income before taxes  (573.43)  (1,305.99)
Enacted tax rate in India 34.944% 34.944%
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate  (200.38)  (456.36)
Effect of:
Expenses on which deferred tax not recognised  200.77  455.11 
Tax effect on non -deductible expenses  -    0.08 
Tax effect on deductible expenses  -    -   
Others  -    1.74 
Reversal of MAT Credit recognised of earlier years  -    -   
(Short)/Excess  provisiion for tax of earlier years -  (0.14)
Current year loss to be Carried Forward  -    -   
Income taxes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss  0.39  0.42 

c.	 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Deferred tax
Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income:
    As at March 31, 2019  -    -   
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  -    -   
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into:-
    Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss  -    -   
    Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss  -    -   

 -    -   

	 In view of losses during the year, Group has not recognised deferred tax on OCI Item.

d.	 Components of Deferred Tax (charge)/benefit for the year	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Depreciation and amortisation  -    -   
Unabsorbed depreciation and losses  0.39  0.56 
Disallowances under Income Tax  -    -   
Provision of bad and doubtful debts  -    -   
MAT Credit Taken  -    -   
Total deferred tax for the year *  0.39  0.56



139

SINTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022

e.	 Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

(a) Deferred tax liabilities
     (i) Difference between book and tax depreciation  968.61  968.61 

 968.61  968.61 
(b) Deferred tax assets
     (i)   Disallowances under Income Tax  4.90  4.90 
     (ii)  Provision for doubtful debts & advances  19.01  19.01 
     (iii) Unabsorbed depreciation and losses  662.30  662.69 
     (iv) Minimum Alternate Tax  282.75  282.75 

 968.96  969.35 
Deferred tax liabilities (net)  -    -   
Deferred tax liabilities  -    -   
Deferred tax assets  0.35  0.74 

f.	 The Group has following unused tax losses which arosen on incurrence of capital losses under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for which no deferred tax assets  
	 has been recognised in the balance sheet.
	                                                                                                                       	    (₹ in crores)

Finacial Year As at
March 31, 2022 Expiry date

2013-14  55.75 31-03-2023
2015-16  0.23 31-03-2025
2016-17  55.02 31-03-2026
2019-20  0.61 31-03-2029

	 * Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes” requires the Holding company to determine probability of sufficient taxable income to utilize the deferred tax assets including  
	 MAT credit. Considering the factors described in Note 37 above, the company is of the view not  to recognize deferred tax assets during the year under  
	 review.

45	 In view of losses incurred, the Group  has spent Nil (Previous Year Nil) towards schemes of Corporate Social Responsibility as prescribed under section 135  
	 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 I.	 Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year Nil (Previous Year Nil)

	 II.	 Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars (₹ in crores)
i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset  - 

 (-) 
ii) For purposes other than (i) above  -   

 (0.31) 
[figures in brackets pertain to 2020-21]

46	 Ind As 115:Revenue from Contracts with Customers

	 The Group derives revenues from sale of yarn and structured fabrics 

	 The disagreegation of revenue from contracts with customers is as under:	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Domestic Sales  2,499.85  1,504.91 
Export Sales  559.85  190.80 

Total  3,059.70  1,695.71 



140

	 Contract Liability: (Advances received from customers)	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Opening Balance of Contract Liability  4.90  1.49 
Revnue Recognised from the opening balance of contract liability  (4.90)  (1.49)
Current year Contract liability Carried Forward  32.52  4.90 
Closing Balance of Contract Liability  32.52  4.90 

47	 In respect of overseas direct investment (ODI) made by the company in the earlier years in erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary, the Directorate of  
	 Enforcement, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance, Government of India has held that the end-use of such funds made by the then foreign  
	 subsidiary company is in contravention of the provisions of Section 4 of the Foreign Exchange Management Act (FEMA), 1999 and has, therefore, vide its  
	 Seizure Order dated 15th December, 2017 attached the immovable property of the company by way of certain unencumbered open plots of land  
	 admeasuring in aggregate about 1,27,851.50 sq. metres having aggregate cost of ₹ 3.69 Crores as per books of accounts of the company. During F.Y. 2018- 
	 19, a Notice was issued to the company where by the company was required to show-cause as to why adjudicating proceedings as contemplated under  
	 the relevant Rules should not be held against the company and the aforesaid land should not be confiscated to the Central Government in terms of  
	 Section 13(2) of FEMA,1999.The company strongly believes that it has not contravened provisions of FEMA as alleged in the seizure order and is, therefore,  
	 taking appropriate steps under the law. In the opinion of the management of the Company all the activities carried out by the then foreign subsidiary are  
	 in compliance with the ODI route under FEMA read with the relevant rules and regulations. The Company’s management is confident of successful outcome  
	 from the proceedings. Therefore, no accounting adjustments have been made in the books of accounts of the Company in this regard.Further, the Company  
	 has filed request application under Section 37A(4) of Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 (‘FEMA’) before Special Director, Directorate of Enforcement,  
	 Mumbai for setting aside the seizure and release of assets seized under Section 37A(1) of FEMA.

48	 Leases
	 The Group as lessee
	 Leasing arrangements	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Office premises  1.87  1.56 
Total  1.87  1.56 

	 As per the Standard, it is at the option of the Group to apply IND AS 116 for the short-term leases (period of 12 months or less) & low value assets. Since all  
	 major lease agreements are for a period of 12 months and 1 of the long term lease is of low value, we have availed the exception. Lease Payments  
	 associated with short term \ low value leases shall be recognized as an expense on straight-line basis. Apart from this, there are no other assets taken on  
	 lease and hence IND AS 116 is not applicable.

49	 Interest on borrowings is net of interest income of ₹ 5.97 crores.	

50	 Subsidies receivables ( Note -16 , Other Current Assets) of ₹ 469.34 crores outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 includes interest subsidy of ₹ 210.96 crores  
	 receivable under Revised Restructured Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (RRTUFS) announced by Ministry of Textiles, Government of India for various  
	 years from F.Y. 15-16 to F.Y. 19-20 upto May,2019. The amount of subsidy benefit recognized is reduced from the borrowing costs in the respective years.  
	 The management and IRP is perusing for recovery of this amount of subsidy. The IRP also filed application in NCLT Ahmedabad for recovery of power and  
	 GST subsidies.

51	 Commitments	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for.  75.18  74.81 
Total  75.18  74.81 

52	 Contingent liabilities	 (₹ in crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

a. Group has imported machineries duty free under EPCG Scheme for which  duty saved amount* 187.02 496.09
b. Disputed demand not acknowledged as debt against which the Group  has preferred appeal 0.35 4.39
c. Counter guarantees given to banks against guarantees issued by banks on behalf of group 
    companies to various authorities

29.56 29.56

Total  216.93  530.04 

	 *  Against duty  saved of ₹ 187.02  crores (Previous Year ₹ 496.09 crores) company has export obligation of ₹ 1,122.12 crores   (Previous year ₹ 2,976.54 crores)  
	 for which Holding Company would be filing statement of export/redemption of EPCG License with DGFT in 2021-22.
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			   (₹ in crores)

Disputed demand not acknowledged as debt against which the Group has preferred appeal As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Income Tax*  0.35  0.35 
Service tax*  -    4.04 

Total  0.35  4.39 

	 * The amount deposited with the authority in respect of above Income Tax and Service Tax demands of ₹ 0.35 crores (previous year ₹  0.35 crores) and  Nil  
	 (previous year ₹ 4.04 crores) respectively.

53	 Confirmation of balances in respect of amounts due from trade receivables, capital advances given and loans and advances granted as well as for the  
	 amounts due to/payables to trade payables have not been obtained and/or received by the Group and, therefore, these balances remained unconfirmed.  
	 The process of obtaining confirmation from these parties could not been undertaken due to Covid 19, and will be now initiated by the management of  
	 the Group and adjustments, if any required on reconciliation of balances on receipt of confirmations, shall be made subsequently. However, the  
	 management believes that the effect of such adjustments/discrepancies shall not be material.

54	 In respect of certain plots of land located at village Lunsapur, Tal. Jafrabad of Amreli District in the state of Gujarat admeasuring in aggregate 821084 Sq.  
	 Mtrs., where the company’s plant for manufacture of yarn is located, during the year 18-19, the company entered into Agreement to Sell with the owner  
	 of the land for purchase of these plots for aggregate consideration of ₹ 436.81 crores, the possession of which has been obtained by the company  
	 subsequent to the end of the year. The entire consideration amount of ₹ 436.81 crores has already been paid by the company to an intermediary party  
	 who is also a party to this Agreement to Sell as confirming party. This includes certain plots of land having aggregate cost of ₹ 116.05 crores, which  
	 was already accounted for as purchase in the books of accounts of the company in F.Y. 2016-17.  During F.Y.2018-19, ₹ 320.76 crores has been accounted  
	 as Purchases/Additions to Freehold Land in the books of accounts of the company. The final Sale Deed in respect of all these plots of land having aggregate  
	 consideration of ₹ 436.81 crores is yet to be executed and, therefore, the relevant expenses of stamp duty, registration fees, etc. shall be accounted for at  
	 the time of execution of documents and actual payment.  Accordingly, Title Deeds in respect of all above lands have not been transferred in the name of  
	 the company.

55	 As disclosed by the Company to the stock exchange on 28.08.2021, expected quantum of loss is approximately ₹ 115 crores on account of Cyclone  
	 Tauktae. Till 31.03.2022 the Company has incurred expenses of Rs 83.11 crore (including loss of inventory of ₹ 21.02 crores and advance of ₹ 5.07 Cr)  
	 for restoration of plant which was damaged due to Cyclone Tauktae on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May, 2021.  As on 31.03.2022 the Company has recovered  
	 ₹ 16.64 crores by realization of salvage value of damaged materials and ₹ 1 crore as advance against insurance claim on 17.03.2022 from Insurance  
	 Company. Accordingly, as on 31.03.2022 net amount of ₹ 65.47 crores shown under the head “Other Current Assets - Advances recoverable in cash or  
	 kind” and not debited to Statement of Profit & Loss account, considering loss / damage is covered by the Insurance. Process of claiming insurance is going  
	 on. Further, out of 65.47 crores receivable from Insurance Company on account of Insurance claim of Cyclone Taukate, the Company has received ₹ 24.98  
	 crores as on 25.04.2022 and ₹ 1 crores as on 27.04.2022 as advance against insurance claim.

56	 The Group continuously monitoring the Covid situation & accordingly managing the operations of the Company. The Company plant was operational for  
	 whole year including period of 2nd & 3rd wave of Covid 19 by taking precautionary steps. Further, during first quarter ended 30th June 2021, there is severe  
	 damage at our factory plant situated at Taluka Jafarabad, Lunsapur, Amreli, Gujarat due to Cyclone Tauktae on 17th May, 2021 and 18th May, 2021.  
	 The loss/damage is covered by the Insurance.Process of claiming insurance is going on. Plant of the Company was not operational due to non availability of  
	 electricity at our factory plant due to damage of Cyclone Tauktae. Electricity was restored at our plant on 05th July, 2021 and operations of the Company  
	 have commenced in a phased manner and achieved 95% capacity as on date.

57	 The Holding Company has outstanding advances of ₹ 531.91 crores receivables from Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited. Petition for initiation of Corporate  
	 Insolvency Resolution Process under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 filed against Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited by Bank of Baroda  
	 (Financial Creditor) has been admitted vide Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench order dated 24.02.2021. The Company has  
	 submitted claims of ₹ 531.91 crores to Mr. Chandra Prakash Jain (IRP of Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited) on 16.03.2021.However admission of claim yet to  
	 be confirmed by IRP of Sintex Prefab & Infra Limited.

58	 Advances recoverable in cash or kind in Note - 16, “Other Current Assets”, include Insurance claim of ₹ 23.11 crores of F.Y. 2016-17 is outstanding as on  
	 31st March,2021. The insurance company has repudiated  claim pertaining to FY 2016 - 17. Management of company during the year  has filed reply against  
	 the same and is hopeful of settling the claims in full. The Company has initiated legal proceedings against the same.
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59	 The Group has defaulted in repayment of principal and interest payments. The period and amount of continuing default as on the Balance sheet date are  
	 as under:
			   (₹ in crores)

Name of Lenders Principal Interest Period of Continuing 
Default Start Month

Banks / NBFCs
Punjab National Bank (Including Oriental Bank of Commerce & United Bank of India)  1,437.98  235.38 May-19
Punjab Sind Bank  321.74  80.10 May-19
Bank of India  540.77  172.90 May-19
Bank of Baroda (Including Dena Bank & Vijaya Bank)  856.31  297.82 May-19
Canara Bank (Including Syndicate Bank)  514.73  107.37 May-19
Central Bank of India  295.49  90.90 Jun-19
Union Bank of India (Including Andra Bank)  574.63  193.56 May-19
South Indian Bank  238.00  87.61 May-19
Karnataka Bank  95.21  31.70 May-19
IDBI Bank  73.08  26.39 Jun-19
State Bank of India  159.93  84.53 Aug-19
Axis Bank Ltd  82.42  24.01 Jun-19
Canbank Factors Limited  5.54  1.52 Jun-19
The Federal Bank Limited  13.28  3.40 Jun-19
UCO Bank Limited  0.42  0.11 Jun-19
Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank  75.81  16.77 Oct-19
DZ Bank AG  261.07  18.10 Oct-19

 5,546.41  1,472.17 
Financial Institutions
Export Import Bank of India  436.76  166.25 Jun-19

 436.76  166.25 
Non-Convertible Debentures  500.00  149.57 Jun-19
Total  6,483.17  1,787.99 

	 As per Section 14 of IBC 2016, during moratorium period institution of suits or continuation of pending suits proceedings against the corporate debtor  
	 including execution of any judgement, decree or order in any court law, tribunal, arbitration panel or other authority is prohibited. Interim Resolution  
	 Professional is of the view, on the basis of Honable Calcutta high court in the matter of Ayan Mallick v/s State Bank of India passed on 04th March, 2021   
	 stated that  proceedings for declaration of wilful defaulter in respect of the borrowing Company / Corporate Debtor during CIRP must be construed to  
	 fall within the purview of section 14 of IB Code,2016.The aforesaid view of IRP was recorded in the minutes of meeting of Committee of Creditors held  
	 on 02.07.2021. However, Bank of Baroda and Punjab & Sind Bank declared Sintex Industries Limited as wilful defaulter on November,2021 & September,2021  
	 respectively.

60	 Previous year figures are regrouped / reclassified wherever required in order to make it comparable in line with the amendments in Schedule III, Division  
	 II to the Companies Act, 2013 effective from 1st April, 2021.

61	 The Resolution Plan submitted by Reliance Industries Limited jointly with Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited has been approved by CoC. As  
	 per the said approved Resolution Plan there may be impairment of assets of the Company. However, as on date impact of the same is not considered in the  
	 financial statements as the Resolution Plan is pending before Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad for approval. Once the Resolution Plan is approved by Hon’ble NCLT  
	 Ahmedabad, the necessary effect of impairment of assets if any will be done in the financial statement as part of implementation of the Resolution Plan.

62	 Events Occuring After Balance Sheet Date

	 The company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the financial statements to determine the  
	 necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of 23rd May,2022 there were no  
	 subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed.
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63	 Disclosure of Key Ratios
	 a.  As at 31st March 2022	 (₹ in crores)

Sr.
No Ratio

Amount
as on  

31st March 
2022

Ratio
as on  

31st March 
2022

Amount
as on 

31st March 
2021

Ratio
as on  

31st March
2021

% Change
in Ratio

Explanation provided for any 
change in ratio by more than

25% in current year as
compared to previous year

1 Current Ratio
Current Assets 
Current Liabilities

 1,668.48 
 0.75 

 1,075.51 
 0.74 1.20% -

 2,231.53  1,455.71 
2 Debt-to-equity Ratio

Total Debt
Total Equity

 8,587.62 
 6.59 

 7,775.00 
 4.13 59.27% Due to provision of interest on 

Debt upto 31st March, 2022 1,304.00  1,880.30 
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Earning available for Debt Service
Interest + Principal

 501.62 
 0.62 

 197.31 
 0.25 148.67% Due to improve in earning

during the year 813.11  795.32 
4 Return on Equity Ratio

Profit After Tax
Total Equity

 (573.82)
-44.00%

 (1,306.41)
-69.48% -36.67% Due to improve in earning

during the year 1,304.00  1,880.30 
5 Inventory Turnover Ratio

Cost of Goods Sold
Inventory of FG and WIP

 2,403.05 
 11.34 

 1,471.26 
 18.51 -38.71% Due to increased in trading stock

at the end of the year 211.85  79.50 
6 Receivables Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Sales
Trade Receivables

 3,059.70 
 11.77 

 1,695.71 
 15.50 -24.07% Improvement in average

collection days. 260.01  109.41 
7 Payables Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Purchases
Trade Payables

 2,667.04 
 14.25 

 1,559.03 
 13.66 4.34% -

 187.16  114.15 
8 Net capital turnover Ratio

Net Sales
Net Worth 

 3,059.70 
 2.35 

 1,695.71 
 0.90 160.18% Due to increased in sales

during the year 1,304.00  1,880.30 
9 Net profit ratio

Proift After Tax
Net Sales

 (573.82)
-18.75%

 (1,306.41)
-77.04% -75.66% Due to improve in earning

during the year 3,059.70  1,695.71 
10 Return on Capital employed Ratio

EBIT
Capital Employed

 239.68 
2.42%

 (84.03)
-0.87% -378.39% Due to improve in earning

during the year 9,890.79  9,653.70 
11 Return on investment Ratio

Net Return on Investment
Investment

 -   
Not Applicable

 -   
Not Applicable - -

 33.88  35.66 

64	 Contingent assets

	 The are no contingent assets recognised as at March 31, 2022.

65	 Approval of financial statements

	 These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue the Interim Resolution Professional on 23rd May,2022.

As per our report of even date attached

For R Choudhary & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 Sintex Industries Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 101928W	 L17110GJ1931PLC000454

K M Chaudhary	 Pinakin Shah	 Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
Partner	 Interim Resolution Professional	 CFO	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 133388	 IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248		

Place : Ahmedabad	 Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022	 Date : 23rd May, 2022
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first porviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A” : Subsidiaries	 (₹ in crores)

Sr.
No.

Name 
of the 

Subsidiary 
Company

Reporting 
period

Reporting 
Currency

Share 
Capital

Reserve 
& 

Surplus

Total 
Assets 

Total 
Liabilities 

Investments 
other than 

Investments 
in 

subsidiaries

Turnover/ 
Total 

Income

Profit/
(Loss) 
Before 

Taxation

Provision 
for 

Taxation

Profit/
(Loss) 
After 

Taxation

Proposed 
Dividend

% of 
Shareholding 

1
BVM 

Overseas 
Limited

31-03-2022 INR  4.50  11.83  244.75  228.42  -    713.44  1.54  0.39  1.15  -   100.00%

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sintex Industries Limited
L17110GJ1931PLC000454

Mr. Pinakin Shah
Interim Resolution Professional 			 
IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00106/2017-18/10248

Hitesh Dihiye	 Hitesh T. Mehta
CFO	 Company Secretary

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23rd May, 2022
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